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figure, keeps the body at a uniform and healthy temperature, prevents chills, assists digestion,
and promptly renews that vitality, the loss of which is the first symptom of decay.

ITS HEALING PROPERTIES are multifarious, it stimulates the functions of the various organs, increases
their secretions, relaxes morbid contractions, improves nutrition, and gives tone to every muscle and nerve of
the body. Acting directly on the system, it sustains and assists its various functions, renews exhausted nerve
and brain force, and thus promotes the health and strength of
the entire frame.

WHY WE ADVERTISE.—One reason why we advertise so

largely 1s to enable the public to know where they can obtain a
bona-fide guaranteed genuine curative Electric Appliance and
| the best Medical Electrical Treatment, at a moderate cost, and

so, as far as possible, prevent this noble and invaluable branch of
science from being abused by unscrupulous vendors of bogus
appliances. The Company's Institute is the largest of the kind

} in the world, and a personal inspection and examination of
Harness' Electropathic Belts cannot fail to inspire confidence in
the minds of the most sceptical critics.

Another reason whywe advertise solargelyis tocounteract
the prejudice which exists among many Medical Practitioners
against advertising—which they consider is ‘‘ unprofessional.”
They know that our Electropathic Belts are invaluable in many
cases of disease, but they do not usually recommend them until
they feel they can do no more for their patients. This being the
case there is positively no other way of making our appliances
and treatment known to the public but by advertising,and we
cordially invite all the readers of our announcements to call, if
possible, and personally examine the Belts before purchasing.

IMPORTANT TO INVALIDS.

Mp. C. B. HARNESS, Consulting Medical Electrician, and
the Com any's thsician. Surgeon, and other Officers, may be
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THE STORY OF “ROOM 15.

—

TOLD BY DONAL SULLIVAN

(One of the Hon. Secretaries of the Irish Parliwmentary Parly).

(Reprinted from the National Press, November 2lst to Oecember 5th, 1891.)

—_——

Ax accurate narrative of the incidents—inner
wnd outward—of the stormy days of Room 15,
has become desirable for many reasons. The
accounts of the debates of the Irish Party
were necessarily taken from the reports sup-
plied by the Freeman’s Journal, whose re-
porters alone were admitted to the meetings.
These reports were revised in Mr Parnell’s in-
terest by the London correspondent of the
Freeman, and both Mr Parnell and his leading
partisans, like Mr Redmond, were accorded the
privilege of seeing their speeches in manu-
script before being sent to the Press.
Similarly, any passages in the debates awk-
ward fer the chairman were frequently
-a.lbogether omitted by the Freeman’s Journal.
On the first occasion when the Trish
Party met there were no reporters present,
nor were they admitted during the debates
on the following day, when Mr Parnell was
" requested to reconsider his position; and
these were the critical days in the struggle.
The extraordinary speech made by Mr
Parnell on the opening day in returning
thanks for his re-election has never been
published, and is now given from mnotes
taken at the time, which were after-
wards submitted to ensure accuracy toseveral
members who were present. With the same
object, several of the Irish members con-
versant with the facts were usked te perure
and make suggestions for the narrative. It
has been desired as far as possible to make
the record less controversial tham historical ;
and although the “ Story” appeared eriginally
in daily stalments in the National Press, its

accuracy has net been challenged by Mr Par-
nell’s followers.

The story opens with the following summons
to the members of the Irish Parliamentary
Party, the last ever to be addressed to them
as their leader, by Mr Parnell.

DeAr Sir—You will permit me, in accordance
with my usual custom, to remind the members of
the Irish Parliamentary Party that the session
will oper on Tuesday, the 25th inst, when it is
most desirable that our full strength should be
available. I wish to lay special stress upon the
necessity for the attendance of every man upon
the opening day, as it is unquestionable that the
coming session will be one of combat from first to
last, and that great issues depend upon its
course.—1 am, dear sir, yours truly, CHARLES
STEWART PARNELL.

This appeared in the Freeman’s Journal of
Monday, 17th November, 1890, the very day on
which the jury in the London Divorce Court
returned their verdict against Mr Parnell.

LEAGUE AND LEINSTER HALL MEETINGS.
On Tuesday, Nov. 18, at the wusual fort-

nightly meeting of the National League, Mr.
J. E. Redmond, M.P., who presided, spoke
strongly in Mr. Parnell’s favour. Two days
afterwards a meeting which had long pre-
viously been summoned to support the
evicted temants in the Leinster Hall, Dublin,
and which had been abandoned when the
divorce decrze was pronounced, was proceeded
with, and diverted at the instance of Mr Red-
mond, and Dr Kenny, M.P., into one in sus-
tainment of Mr Parnell. The Freeman’s Journal,
on which the popular party depended for infor-
mation, suppressed every consideration unfa-
vourable to him, and backed him strongly
every day.

Parliament opened on Tvesday, 25th Novem
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ber, 1890. Before the Speaker went to the

4 House of Lords to hear the Queen’s Speech
read, word was passed amongst the Irish mem-
bers in the House that the usual meeting of
the Party held each year on the opening
day of the Session would take place in
Room 15 about 3 o’clock. During
the earlier part of the day there was a
good deal of anxious conversation amongst
little knots of the members as to what Mr
Parnell would do or say at the meeting in re-
spect to the proceedings in the Divorce Court.
His position, like Mr Butt’s and Mr Shaw’s,
was that of Sessional Chairman, and at the
opening of each session the chairman of the
Party is elected.

BELIEF THAT MR PARNELL WOULD RETIRE.

Amongst some the impression had been
created by rumours from authoritative
and influential quarters that if Mr Par-
nell were re-elected he would retire imme-
diately afterwards from the chair. A para-
graph to that effect had appeared in the
Standard the same morning to which con-
siderable weight was attached, owing
o the fact that Mr Tuohy, the Londou
correspondent of the Freeman, usually
supplied that journal with news relat-
ing to the Irish Party. Indeed, a num-
ber of members, as a matter within their
own knowledge, stated that Mr Parnell would
announce his retirement after re-election, on
the ground that his continuing to act as Leader
would be disastrons to Ireland and imperil
/the cause of Home Rule. Mr Henry Campbell,
Mr Parnell’s private and confidential
secretary, led several to believe this.
This intelligence also Mr Tuohy conveyed,
as he said, “on the best possible autho-
rity, that of Mr. Henry Campbell, Mr
Parnell’s private secretary,” to Messrs Sexton.
John Barry, W J Lane, and others. A similar
rumour had been authoritatively circulated
through Dublin some days previously. This

the interest of Ireland he would retire

from the position—at least for that
session. For, despite the meetings
in the Leinster Hall and at the Na-

tional League, the feeling against his leader-
ship, during the critical week since his sum-
mons to the Party was issued, as shown by
declarations such as those from Mr Davitt, in
his newspaper, the Labour World, had been
immensely growing.

THE IRISH PARTY MEETS.

It was a cold, foggy, wet afternoon when
the Irish memhers, to the number of 59,
streamed into Room 15. Their names were—
Abraham, Barry, Blane, Byrne, Corbett,
Clancy, Crilly, Conway, Condon, Cox, Camp-
bell, Dalton, Esmonde, Foley, Finucane,
Fitzgerald, Flynn, Fox, Jordan, E Har-
rington, Hayden, Harrison, Maurice Healy,
Dr Kenny, M J Kenny, Kilbride, Knox, Lane,
Leamy, Justin M‘Carthy, J Huntly M‘Carthy,
MacNeill, W A Macdonald, Peter M‘Donald,
M*Kenna, Morrogh, Mahony, Maguire, Murphy,
Colonel Nolan, Joseph Nolan, John O’Connor,
James O’Kelly, P J O’Brien,J F X O’Brien, R P
Power, P J Power, Pinkerton, Parnell, Quinn,
Roche, Sexton, Sheehan, Stack, D Sullivan,
Sheehy, Tanner, Tuite, and Webb. A slightly
different list of names was published in the
papers at the time, but the above is believed
to be an accurate one. Messrs Molloy, Com-
mins, Deasy, Arthur O’Connor, Reynolds, and
M‘Cartan arrived either after the meeting
was over, or as it was about to break up.
Messrs Wm O’Brien, John Dillon, T P
O’Connor, T D Sullivan, T P Gill, and T
Harrington were in America. Mr T M Healy
was in Dublin, just convalescent after a
serious illness, and no opportunity whatever
was afforded to the party for consultation,
deliberation, or communication in reference
to the grave crisis that had arisen.

ROOM 15.
Room 15, which has now become historic, is

was all freely ventilated in the Lobby, and | one of the ordinary committee rooms, situated
most of the Irish members concluded that , astory higher than the House itself and over-

after Mr Parnell was, as a final compliment | looking the river Thames.

On this chilly

for distinguished services, formally moved to | evening neither lamps nor fire were lighted,
the chair, hewould thank his colleagues for the J and the room felt and looked dark and

honour they had paid him, and declare that in | cheerless.

Before the Party assembled

>
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Mr Parnell. accompanied by Mr Henry
Campbell, had seated himself in the room.
For him this was a most unusual circum-
stance. His habit had been to keep the Party
waiting often for half an hour, and many
times much longer. They found him seated
at the table next to Mr Justin M‘Carthy.
He had slipped in quietly fifteen minutes
before the appointed hour, and as col-
league after colleague arrived no word of

- greeting or welcome was exchanged with any
of them. The whole Plan of Campaign had
been carefully thought out by Mr Parnell.
Mr M. J. Kenny, M.P.,three weeks afterwards
declared in a speech at Castlecomer (Sun-
day, 14th December, 1890), that Mr Henry
Campbell said to him before the meeting—
“Morley is searching everywhere through
the House for Parnell with a letter from Glad-
stone, but I will take devilish good care he
will not find the Chief, because Iwill keep him
out of the way.” :

THE LIBERAL LEADERS AND MR PARNELL.

A letter which Mr John Morley published
on the 17th of August, 1891, threw a good
deal of light on the tactics adopted by Mr
Parnell. He wrote :—

“ In his speech at Kells yesterday Mr Par-
nell makes the following reply to a charge
that he had deliberately cut off all communi-
cations with the Liberal Leaders in the in-
terval between the decree in the Divorce Court
and his re-election as Chairman of the Irish
Party:—

I never withdrew myself anywhere. I stopped
in the same place I was in before the verdict. I
remained in the same place where Mr.Morley came
to see me nine days before the verdict, and where
he knew he could find me during the nine days
after the verdict which elapsed before the meeting
-of the party.

I did not know where I could find him. Mr
Parnell is well aware that I never knew, and
never sought to know, any private address
of his at any time. His interview with me in
S my rooms at Brighton was arranged, as usual,
; through Mr Henry Campbell and it was through
: the same channel that I reached him in
the following week. There was no other.
The decree was pronounced on Monday. No-
vember 17th. I naturally expected daily to
hear from My Parnell. At last, on Saturday,

November 22, I wrote to Mr Campbell desir-
ing him to call on me as soon as possible.
He came to my house on Sunday evening.
I begged him to be good enough to inforin
Mr Parnell that Mr Gladstone was coming to
London on the following day (Monday,
November 24th), and that it was most im-
portant that I should be able to communicate
with Mr Parnell not later than Tuesday fore-
noon, and before the meeting of the Irish
Party. On the last point I laid special
stress. Mr Campbell told me that Mr Parnell
was at Brighton, that he would go there the
next day and deliver my request, and finally,
that I might rely on hearing from him by
eleven on Tuesday forenoon. At half-past
eleven on Tuesday forenoon I received a tele-
gram purporting to come from Mr Campbell,
saying that he was sorry he could not find
his friend, but hoped to see him at the House
of Commons. I immediately applied to Mr
M<Carthy, but he, too, was entirely in the dark
and so were all the other members of the Irish
Party then and nowsupposed to bemuch in Mr
Parnell’s confidence. Before the hour at
which the Irish Party were to meet I went
down to the House, but the Irish meeting, I
rather think, had been accelerated. At any
rate it was over. From the day of the decree
down to that time I had no better means of
reaching Mr Parnell (save those to which I
actually resorted) than I have to-day of
reaching the man in the moon. I cannot prove
that the cutting off of communication was de-
liberate. It certainly was effectual.”
MR PARNELL LIES PERDU.

Messrs Parnell and Campbell well knew ths
object of Mr John Morley’s quest, and master
and man arranged to prevent the interview.
On the previous Sunday (Nov 23), Mr Bernard
Molloy, M P, had twice sent down a messenger
to Brighton with important letters for My Par-
nell, but the messenger being unable to find
him they were delivered to Mrs O’Shea, who
promised they should be placed immediately
in Mr Parnell’s hands. No reply, however,
was received, and no notice was taken of them,
although they warned Mr Parnell in the
clearest terms of the gathering storm, and
hegged of him to take counsel with his friewds
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It will be remembered that barely a fortnight
afterwards (Rotundo, December 10th, 1890), Mr
Parnell declared that if Mr Gladstone had
only “by hint, by whisper, or by inuendo,’,
conveyed to him that his leadership was un-
desirable, he would at once have sought the
advice of his colleagues. Yet we know by the
declaration of Mr Justin M‘Carthy (Pall Mall
Gazelte, December 12,1890), that he formally
communicated to him Mr Gladstone’s message,
while Mr Molloy has preserved copies of his
own remonstrances. Mr Parnell’s plan was to
“rush” the meeting of the members. The
exact hour of the meeting was left undefined.
It was understood to be “after the Queen’s
Speechisread.” Some of the party understood
by this, the reading of the Speech in the Com-
mons by the Speaker, who re-reads it, after
hearing it in the Lords, as many members do
not proceed to the Upper House, and several
therefore did not arrive till the momentous
part of the proceedings had taken place.

HOW ME PARNELL’S RE-ELECTION WAS WORKED.

Mr Richard Power, the senior Whip of
the Party, was placed in the chair. Mr
Parnell was on his right, looking quite as
unconcerned as if it was an ordinary
occasion, with Mr M Carthy mnext him,
Mr Justin Huntly M‘Carthy sat be-
side his father, and Mr Sexton was next to
young Mr M‘Carthy. To the left of Mr
Power were seated the hon. secs., Measrs
Henry Campbell and Donal Sullivan ;
next to them one of the Whips, Mr
Deasy (Mr Carew, the second Whip, being
absent through illness). The meeting was
like all similar meetings, private. Mr
Sexton, at Mr M‘'Carthy’s request, rose
and proposed the re-election of Mr Parnell
as Sessional Chairman for 1891, in that
felicitious language in which he invariably
expresses his ideas, but not a few of his
hearers felt that Mr Sexton was oppressed by
some feelings which did not find utterance in
his short speech, and that his heart was not
in it. Colonel Nolan then briefly seconded
the motion. After a short pause Mr Jordan,
in a respectful but firm tone, voiced the
igelings of the great majority of the members

present, and requested Mr Parnell to retire.
ME JORDAN’S PROTEST.

Only those who had experience of the man-
ner in which the meeting was hypnotised under
the personality of Mr Parnell, can appreciate
the act of a diffident and retiring man
like Mr Jordan, rising to question for the
first time amongst his followers the position cf
the Uncrowned King. Mr Jordan said, now
that the Irish Party had conferred the honour
of re-electing him unanimously to the leader- .
ship, and thereby paid him the greatest
compliment in their power, would it not be
well for Mr Parnell, in view of events which
had recently become public, to consider his
position, and now to retire gracefully, soas to
ease the situation, which, it could not be dis-
guised, was one of a grievous character and of
great peril to the Irish cause. He was
listened to throughout, with a fervent hope
in the minds of most of those present that his
appeal would be responded to. Probably his
speech would have led to some definite action

by others, had it not been that Mr Edward
Harrington. who sat at the same side of the
room as Mr Jordan, on the left of the chair

and a few seats nearer to Mr
Parnell said, in a deprecating way,
just a8 Mr Jordan resumed his seat—

“ Cannot you wait till you hear what Mr
Parnell will say,” or words to that effect.
This observation confirmed the general
belief that Mr Parnell was about to announce
his resignation, and that it would be un-
gracious to discuss a settled and painful ques-
tion. The motion then was quickly put to
the meeting by Mr Power, and was declared
carried amidst demonstrations from a portion
of the assembly, which suggested the idea of
an organised clague.

AN EXTRAORDINARY SPEECH.

Mr Parnell at once took the chair, and in a
moment rose to his feet, whereupon all was
suspense and expectation for the announce-
ment of the fateful decision which was tohave
such far-reaching effects. A death-like
silence fell on the Party. This stillness was
made the more impressive by the gathering
darkness and the gloomy aspect of the room.
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Every nerve was strung, and every ear
strained to catch the words which each one
felt would decide momentous issues. These
were anxious moments, even for men trained
in the hottest excitement of political and
Parliamentary life. Mr Parnell’s address
X was cold. No recognition of the friendship
shown him marked either words or manner.
No words of gratitude to the Party or thanks
for his re-election fell from him. In icy
_tones he said—

I feel this re-election a proof of your continued
confidence in me, and I will during the coming
session show that your trust and confidence in
me is not misplaced. The session is likely to be
an important one, and I feel it my duty to ask
my colleagues to give as constant attendance
as they can, at all events whilst any Irish mea-
sures are under consideration. They should bear
in mind that it is by their numbers in the divi-
sion lobby that they are respected and feared.
I was able with only one man by my side to stand
up and defy the House of Commons, and what
have I now to fear with eighty-five colleagues at
my back? When I came into this room it was not
my intention to make any reference to certain
recent events with which my name was con-
nected, but as allusion has been made to the sub-
jeet (referring to Mr Jordan’s speech), I will now
lift aside a corner of the curtain, and I can
assure you, my friends and colleagues, that in a
short period of time, when I am free to do so, I
will be able to put a complexion on this case very
different to that which it now bears, and I will
then be able to hold my head as kigh, aye, and
higher, than ever before. in the face of the world.
This is not the place to enter on a vindication of
myself against the vile charges that have been
made against me, and I do not intend to do so,
but I will ask my colleagues to remember that
only one side of the story has been given to the
public. I am accused of breaking up a happy
home, and of shattering a scene of domestic bliss
and felicity. If this case had been gone into, a
calculation had been made,and it wounld have
been proved that in the twenty-three years of Mr
O’Shea’s married life he spent only 400 days in
his own home. This was the happy home which
I am alleged to have destroyed. I am also
accused of betraying a friend. Mr O’Shea was
never my friend. Since I first met him in Ennis,
in 1880, he was always my enemy—my bitter,
relentless enemy. You may examine
the pages of Hansard, and you will not
find that I ever on any occasion referred to him
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as my friend.* There is the further charge
against me that I abused this man’s hospitality,
but I never partook at any time of Mr O’Shea’s
hospitality, for I never had bite or sup—i '
never had a glass of wine—at his ex-
pense. I will not dwell any more on this subject.
except to say that of the twe principal witnesses
in the case one was a drunkard and the other a
thief. Now that I have lifted a corner of the
curtain, I will enly ask you, gentlemen, to keep
your lips sealed, as mine are, on what youn have
heard until the brief period of time will have
elapsed to which I have referred, when I can vin-
dicate myself, and when you will find that your
trust in me has not been misplaced. I had rather
appear to be dishonourable than be so. We will
now proceed to the election of the officers of the
party, and to the selection of the bills which are
to be introduced during the session, and which
must be balloted for at the meeting of the House
to-morrow.t

* On one memorable occasion, at least, Mr
Parnell referred to Captain O’Shea as his hon
friend. On the 16th of May, 1882, Mr (now Sir
John) Puleston put a question te the Govern-
ment in reference to the conditions on which M1
Parnell was released from Kilmainham on May
3rd previously. Mr Parnell read to the House a
letter written by himself to Captain O’Shea,
‘dated Kilmainham, April 28th, 1882, and markea
** Private and Confidential.”” This letter pur-
ported to be a copy of the letter which was laid
before the Cabinet.. When Mr Parnell had con-
cluded the reading of the letter Mr Forster, who
had just resigned the Chief Secretaryship for
Ireland, rose and asked him whether he had read
the letter in its entirety. Mr Parnell replied—

I did not keep a copy of the letter in question.
My hon friend the member for Clare (Mr O’Shea}
has furnished me with a copy, and it may be pos-
sible that one paragraph bas been omitted, but,
speaking for myseltf, I have no objection to the
hon member, it he desires it, communicating the
whole of the letter as I wrote it to the House.

Captain O’Shea had not the letter with him.
but Mr Forster put a copy of the letter into his
hands. This copy contained.tbe following pas-
sage, which was omitted from the copy read by
Mr Parnell to the House—

The accomplishment of the programme I have
sketched out to you may in my judgment be re-
garded by the country as a practical settlement
of the land question,and would I feel sure enable
us to co-operate cordially for the future with the
Liberal Party in forwarding Liberal principles.
and I believe that the Government at the and of
the Session wounld, from the state of the country,
feel themselves thoroughly justified in dispensing
with future coercive measures.

t On the publication of this speech the follow-
ing leétter appeared—

TO THE EDITOR OF THE NATIONAL PRESS.

S1R—I am sure that if Mr Donal Sullivan re-
publishes his report of the late Mr Parnell’s
secret speech in Committee Room No 15, he will
see the propriety of noting my denial of every

-,
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MR PARNELL ESCAPES.

Amazement and dismay fell on the Party
after this speech. Still some of our
comrades believed there was ““another side to
the story,” and that in due time it would
be disclosed, when they would learn that
their faith was not misplaced. In others a
sickening feeling was produced that Mr Par-
nell’s views were, that so long as he did not
offend the social code by breaking up a happy
home, betraying a friend, or committing a
breach of hospitality, his outrage against
public morality possessed in fact some com-
pensating advantages which would enable
him to hold his head higher than ever.

Of course, neither in the course of Mr Par-
nell’s speech, nor during the prolonged pro-
ceedings of the following day (Wednesday),
nor at any period up to the issue of his
manifesto on Saturday, was there directly or
indirectly the most shadowy reference to an-
ticipated treachery on the part of Mr Glad-
stone or the Liberal party, or any suggestion
of difficulty, danger, or apprehension about
the terms of the Home Rule Bill when Mr
Gladstone came into power.

In a few minutes after Mr Parnell’s speech
the formal business was over. He appeared
anxious to leave the room, and at this moment
Mr Campbell, who sat on his left, whispered
to him as if by arrangement, and he hurriedly
left the meeting.

A DISSATISFIED PARTY.

After there-election of Mr Justin M‘Carthy
as vice-chairman, and of the secretaries and
whips of the party, and having decided what
bills should be introduced during the Session,
the meeting hroke up. The dissatisfied and
discouraged members retired to the various
rooms and lobbies where they gathered into
little groups, and with much indignation dis-
cussed Mr Parnell’s procedure. Only one
opwnion prevailed. His tactics were bitterly
resented ; but the question was—What could
be done ?

Mr ‘Arthur O’Connor, brooding over the

it.—Your obedient ser-

W.H. O'SHEA.
241 Rue Saint Honore, Paris,
28th November, 1891.

statement made in

vant,

consequences of the vote which had just
been snatched, commenced to canvass his
colleagues with a view to a fresh assembling
of the Party. He immediately drew up a
“ round rebin,” which in a short time was
signed by 19 members, and was in course of
circulation amongst the other members of
the Party now scattered either about the
House or to their lodgings. The spirit which
pervaded Mr Parnell’s henchmen, however,
may be gathered from the reference made to
this incident by Dr Fitzgerald in the Dublin
Evening Herald a year afterwards (Dec 28,
1891) :—** Arthur O’Connor thrust the docu-
ment into my hand. I handed it back, and
told him T would not sign it.” The position
was a most delicate one, but between eight and
nine o’clock the Gordian knot was cut when
whisper ran through the Irish benches that
a grave event had occurred.

FIRST RUMOUR OF MR. GLADSTONE’S LETTER.

Mr Gladstone, it was said, had written to
Mr John Morley, announcing his retirement,
as a consequence of Mr Parnell’s re-elec-
tion; and this momentous declaration had
been given to the Press. Mr Parnell
himself seemed to be quite aware of what
was impending, and was one of the first to
speak of it. Sitting by Mr Sexton’s side in
his usual place in the House, he languidly
remarked, “ I hear that Gladstone is about to
issue a manifesto,” and on Mr Sexton’s
startled inquiry as to its nature and effect,
he went on to explain that Gladstone merely
wanted to save his own position.

This rumour spread like wildfire through
the House, and the excitement amongst
the Irish members was indescribable.
Where did the information come from? Was
Mr Parnell aware before the meeting of such
a letter? Each man assured his colleague
that if “the chief” knew of its existence,
or of such an intention on Mr Glad-
stone’s part, he would not imperil the cause of
Ireland by accepting the chairmanship of the
Party. The Irish members in the House
hastily left the chamber, and mustered
in the lobby. Not one of them had seen
the text of the letter at this time. Amongst
the first to hear the momentous news was Mr
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John Barry, who with Mr W J Lane and three
or four other colleagues discussed the matter
in the members’ smoking room. All agreed
that the re-election of Mr Parnell was due to
a trap laid for the Party, and that something
remedial should be done. The first step evi-
“dently was to interview Mr Parnell himself,
and this Mr Lane undertook to do forthwith.
ME. PARNELL’S CIGAR.
Mr Parnell was in the lower smoking
room sitting in a corner conferring with his
secretary, Mr Campbell, and with Mr Tuohy,
the London correspondent of the Freeman’s
Journal. He was evidently in high good
humour, and appeared to enjoy his cigar.
Waiting till Mr Tuohy had left, Mr
Lane approached, and was received gra-
ciously with some bantering remarks as
to certain local controversies then rife.
Mr Lane replied by broaching the subject of
his errand, saying that he came deputed by
some members of the Party who had heard of
the Gladstone letter. “The Chief” at first
simply pooh-poohed such unnecessary fuss,
and undertook to assure his followers that
they had been entirely misinformed as to the
contents and effect of the Liberal leader’s
letter. Mr Lane, however, insisted that the
anxiety of the party was not to be allayed by
such assurances. “What do they want,
Lane?” said Mr Parnell, in his most non-
chalant manner, puffing his cigar. Mr Lane
replied that he and his friends thought that a
very grave situation had arisen, and that the
Party ought to be called together to consider
It. Mr Parnell replied, “ Now, Lane, I willbe
very frank with you. I will not call the Party
together; I will not discuss this matter with
any person whomsoever, and I will not recon-
sider my position.” Mr Lane pointed out that
the Party was entitled to be consulted, and
would be compelled to act themselves if no
other course was left to them. Mr Parnell
was adamant, and Mr Lane left, begging that
at any rate he would see Mr Sexton and dis-
cuss matters with him, to which Mr Parnell
curtly replied that if Mr Sexton came to him
he would have to see him, but that he did not
want to see him, and that his mind was irre-
vocably made up.

CONFERENCES AND REBUFFS.

Mr Lane returned down-hearted to his col-
leagues, who were awaiting him in the cor-
ridor,and who were there joined by Mr Justin
M<Carthy and Mr Sexton. Another earnest
discussion took place, and very reluctantly
Messrs M‘Carthy and Sexton agreed, at the
urgent request of their companions, to ap-
proach Mr Parnell and beg him to reconsider
his position. This they did. The interview
was brief, for in a few minutes they returned
with the information that Mr Parnell had not
been even civil to them, and that in fact
Mr Campbell had taken the leading part
In the conversation on his behalf. The
group in the corridor grew larger, and their
anxiety deepened at every moment. We then
learned from Mr M‘Carthy for the first time
of Mr Gladstone’s communication to himself
and Mr Parnell, prior to the meeting, and tho
feeling grew stronger that in suppressing so
important a communication Mr Parmell had
acted improperly, and that the Party had
been tricked into re-electing him. It
was felt desirable to prevent if possible the
publication of Mr. Gladstone’s letter pending
the summoning of another meeting of the
Party, and Mr M Carthy was despatched to
ascertain whether the letter had been sent to
the press. He, quickly returned with the in-
formation that Mr Gladstone had left the
House, and that the letter wasin the hands of
the newsmen.

THE PROFESSOR STUART INCIDENT.

Just then Professor Stuart, M P, passed,
but he knew nothing of the contents of the
letter, though at our request to him, as a
London editor, he undertook to geta copy of it
from the Press Association, and if possible to
prevent its publication. Meanwhile the group
in the corridor had become so large that
to avoid observation it was agreed to
adjourn to the Whips’ room. Here the
matter was discussed by a large body of
members, including such strong supporters
of Mr Parnell then and since as Messrs
O’Kelly, Ed. Harrington, Leamy, John O’Con-
nor, Mahony, Dalton, Fitzgerald, and Dr
Kenny. After some time Professor Stuart ar-
rived with a copy of the letter on Press flimsies,
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which he read to the gathering, stating that
the letter had been telegraphed to the news-
papers, and that it was impossible to pre-
vent its publication. This incident was the
origin of Mr Parnell’s subsequent hallu-
cination that his party were conspiring

" against him with Professor Stuart.

MR. GLADSTONE'S LETTER.
The letter which produced at the time so
much sensation and has since made “ English
dictation ” the Parnellite war-cry runs as fol-

lows—
1 Carlton gardens, Nov. 24, 1899.

My pEar MorLEY—Having arrived at a cer-
tain conclusion with regard to the continuance at
the present moment of Mr Parnell’s leadership of
the Irish Party, I have seen Mr M‘Carthy on my
arrival in town, and have inquired from him
whether I was likely to receive from Mr' Parnell
himself any communication on the subject. Mr
M‘Carthy replied that he was unable to give me any
communication on the subject. I mentioned te
him that in 1882, after the terrible murder in the
Phoenix Park, Mr Parnell, although totally re-
moved from any idea of responsibility, had spon-
taneously written to me and offered to take the
Chiltern Hundreds, an offer much to his honour,
but one which I thought it my duty to decline.

While clinging to the hope of a communication
from Mr Parnell to whomsoever addressed, I
thought it necessary, viewing the arrangements
for the commencement of the session to-morrow,
to acquaint Mr M‘Carthy with the conclusion at
which, after using all the means of observation
and reflection in my power, I had myself arrived.

It was that, notwithstanding the splendid ser-
vices rendered by Mr Parnell to his country, his
continuance at the present moment in the leader-
ship would be productive of comsequences disas-
trous in the highest degree to the cause of Ire-
land. I think I may be warranted in asking you
so far to explain the conclusion I have given above
as to add that the continuance which I speak of
would not only place many hearty and effective
friends of the Irish cause in a position of great
embarrassment, but would render my retention
of the leadership of the Liberal Party, based as it
has been mainly upon the prosecution of the Irish
cause, almost a nullity.

This explanation of my own view I begged Mr
M‘Carthy to regard as confidential, and not in-
tended for his colleagues generally, if he found
that Mr Parnell contemplated spontaneous ac-
tion. But I also begged that he would make
known to the Irish party at their meeting to-
morrow afternoon that sueh was my conclugion
if he should find that Mr Parnell had not in con-
templation any step of the nature indicated.

L now write to you in case Mr M‘Carthy should
be unable to communicate with Mr Parnell, as I
understand you may possibly have an opening to-
morrow, through another channel. Should you
have suchan opening I would beg you to make
known to Mr Parnell the conclusion itself, which
I have stated in the earlier part of this letter. I
have thought it best to put it in terms gimple and
direct, much as I should have desired had it been
within my power to alleviate the painful nature

of the sitnation. As respects the manner of con-
veying what my public utfr has made it an obli-
gation to say, I rely entirely on your good feel-
ing, tact, and judgment.—Believe me, sincerely
yours,
W. E. GLADSTONE.
Right Hon John Morley, M P.

' CONFERENCE IN THE WHIP’S ROOM.
* The reading of this communication fell like
a thunderbolt on the Irish members. Voices
loudly asked: Did Mr Parnell receive that
letter before the meeting of the party to-day ?
Did he know of such a letter being written ?
After various interrogatories and inter-
changes it became clear that Mr Parnell,
before the meeting was held, was placed in
full possession of Mr Gladstone’s views by
Mr Justin M‘Carthy. Men like Mr M. J.
Kenny remembered Mr Campbell’s words

before the meeting—
Morley is searching everywhere for Parnell
with a letter from Gladstone, but I will take

devilish good care he will not find the Chief,
because I will keep him out of the way.

Indignation filled men’s hearts as they

realised the malpractice to which they had

been subjected. It was plain that Mr
(ladstone had given the letter to the Press
under the idea that the Irish Party acted
after full information of his views, whereas
they had been left in total ignorance that
such a communication had been made.
At this point Mr Sexton, who had been
engaged looking after the introduction of the
Bills, came in, and was informed of the
feeling of the members present, that
immediate and definite action should be taken.
Mr Sexton suggested that, if such was the
unanimous feeling, the proper step would be
to draw up and sign a requisition to the
secretaries, calling on them to summon a
meeting of the party.
THE FATEFUL REQUISITION.

This course was warmly approved by the
meeting, and the following requisition was
then and there drafted by Mr Flynn, and
within an hour it received the 31 signatures
given below, the names of the two Parnellite
signatories being italicised :—

To the Hon Secs of the Irish Parliamentary
Party—We, the following members of the Irish
Parliamentary Party, desire a meeting of our
Party to be summoned for 2 o’clock, p m, on the
26th of November, 1890. at the House of
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Commons, and we beg the Hon. Saes. to take the

necessary steps to insure a full attendance of the

P

Slgned—.]' ustin M*Carthy, Thomas Sexton, B C

Molloy, A Commins, M M‘Cartan, M
Kenny, J C Flynn, JJ Dalton, E VKnox,
John .éarry, David Sheehy W M Murphy,
Pierce Mahony, J H M‘Cart hy, John Deasy
Peter M‘Donald, Daniel Crilly, W J
Reynold John Roche, J F X O’Brien, Jerh
Jordan, 'i:'homa.s H G Esmonde, W J Lane,
John Stack, J D Sheehan, J F Fox, Denis
Kilbride, P J O'Brien, Maurice Hea.]y, CK
D Tn.nner Thomas J Condon.

Twe of the secretaries, Messrs Arthur
0’Connor and Donal Sullivan, did not think it
proper to sign a document addressed to them-
selves, although fully approving it. Mr
O’Connor undertook to convey the requisition
immediately to Mr Parnell, but found that he
had left the House, though he, of course, well
knew what was afoot. The third secretary,
Mr Campbell, was not present at the signing
of the requisition although in the House. He
was asked to communicate its contents to Mr
Parnell, and if possible to insure his pre-
sence at the meeting.

LORD SALISBURY AND THE FIRE ESCAPE,

With such events to occupy their
minds, it need hardly be said that
the ordinary business of the House at-

tracted little of the attention of Irish mem-

bers, or, indeed, of any other section.
The Tory members did not conceal their glee,
and talked of an immediate dissolution. Lord
Salisbury’s mot about the “fire escape” in his
speech in the House of Lords on the
Address showed how the revelations
of the Divorce Court were to be used
against the Irish cause. The Liberals were
grave and silent. In the middle of the dis-
cussion in the Whips room came the news
that the debate on the Queen’s Speech had
already come to an end, and for the first time
since the Irish Party was formed, the Address
was agreed to without a division after a few
hours talk. This was & pretty beginning for
a session which, Mr-Parnell said, was to be
“one of combat from first to last!”
RECONSIDERATION IN RooM 15.

Next day the Irish members in London (64
in all) assembled at 2 p.m. in Room15. For
some time previously the Lobby had been full
of excited groups discussing the probable
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course of events, and already a canvass re-
vealed the fact that a considerable majority
of the Party was prepared to vote for Mr Par-
nell’s retirement. The leader himself d d not
come down to the House till a short time
before the time fixed for .the meet-
‘ing. Only a few minutes beforehand
Mr Arthur O’Connor was able to furnish
bim with a copy of the requisition. He
found him in the smoking-room, having evi-
dently been apprised of the ferment in the
party by Mr Henry Campbell.
‘‘ THESE YOUNG MEN.”

On being handed the document Mr Parnell
looked at it, and, taking his cigar out of his
mouth, he said—*I’ll teach these young men
that they can’teall meetingsin this way. I don’t
intend to allow myself to be dictated to by a
parcel of boys. Tell them I decline to attend
their meeting.” “Very well,” said Mr
0’Connor, “I will convey your message to the
party, but I may tell you, Mr Parnell, that
with you or without you the meeting will go
on.” Mr O’Connor then left the smoking-
room to proceed upstairs, but, being detained
for an instant on his way, he did not go
straight to the meeting, and what was his
astonishment, on reaching Room 15, to find
Mr Parnell there before him, seated in the
chair. Mr Parnell had re-advised himself.
He saw that a game for high stakes
was about to begin.

THE DRAMA OPENS.

The meeting was private. As Mr Parnell
entered he muttered between his teeth to a
f group near the door that it was useless for
them to hold any meeting, that he refused to
reconsider his position, and did not care what
the Party did. After he took the chair, the
first word spoken came from the chairman
himself. = Affecting blank ignorance of
all that had passed, he asked in haughty tones
what the meeting had been.called for. He
answered his own question however, imme-
diately afterwards by observing, with a sin-
gular smile, “ Well, of course, we all know the
reason why this meeting has been convened.”
But as a matter of order, and at Mr Parnell’s
request, Mr Arthur O’Connor read out
the requisition, with the names attached
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Mr Edward Harrington and Mr John
O’Connor rose to order, and asked was the
meeting in order. Mr Parnell, with great
dignity, ruled that on a requisition so
influentially signed it was the duty of
the secretaries to convene the meeting.

He then asked what action was intended-

to be taken upon it—would any resolution be
proposed.
“THE LEADER-KILLER.”

Amidst dead silence Mr John Barry then
rose, and commenced by addresssing Mr
Parnell in a tone which indicated an
intention of making a friendly appeal to him.
Mr Barry had taken a leading part the pre-
vious night in promoting the requisi-
tion to reconvene the Party, and now
before he had uttered more than a dozen
words he was pulled up sharply by the chair-
man, who informed him that he was not in
order and could not be heard, as there was no
motion before the meeting. Then, said Mr
Barry, I will move—

That a full meeting of the party be held on
Friday to give Mr Parnell an opportunity of re-
considering his position.

Mr Parnell, on hearing this, exclaimed, with-
out rising from his seat, My mind is made
up. Iam quite propared even mnow if you
choose to proceed.” These words were uttered
in the cold, steel-like tones usually adopted
by him when labouring under fierce but sup-
pressed exeitement. Mr Barry’s speeck was
brief, and though neither harsh or un-
kind, was complete in its directness
and force. It rang through the room.
Thirteen years before Mr Barry moved
the deposition of Isaac Buttto replace him as
President of the Home Rule Confederation of
Great Britain Ly the man whom he was ad-
dressing in the chair; this fact bsing the
explanation of Mr Parnell’s subsequent re-
ference to the “TLeader-killer.” Dr Commins,
equally grave and brief, seconded the reso-
lution, as by a strange coincidence he
had seconded Mr Barry’s motion for Mr
Butt’s deposition at Liverpool in 1877. Mr
Parnell, with his face hard set and in a
threatening voice, replied that he could not
and would not reconsider his position in view

of the fact that he was unanimously elected
by the party the day before. It was useless
to ask him. TUpon the Party, said he in tones
more menacing, should rest the responsibility
to-day by its vote.

MR. SEXTON’S GENEROUS PROPOSAL.

Mr Sexton feelingly appealed to him,
in the interest of Ireland and the altered
situation caused by Mr Gladstone’s letter,
as indicating the conviction that the
Home Rule candidates would be de-
feated at the Gemeral FElection, and the
cause of Irish Self-Government indefinitely
postponed, to reconsider his position as
chairman of the party, and to retire tem-
porarily. Some concession to public opinion,
he urged, was due, and he suggested that on
retiring the Party would agree to leave the
chairmanship vacant and have its affairs
managed by a committee ef members to be
nominated by Mr Parnell himself, until
they ~suld safely recall him.

VAIN APPEALS.

No response came, and then Mr Justin
M<Carthy rose at the right hand of the chair-
man and delivered probably one of the best
speeches he ever made, aptly citing Grattan’s
words, “ No man can afford to be generous with
his honour; no woman with her virtue ; no
| nation with its liberty.” Messrs Lane, Webb,
| Sheehy, Dickson, and Arthur O’Connor sup-
i ported this appeal. Up to this moment not a
| voice had been raised in support of Mr Parnell.
3 The tone of all the speakers was sympathetic
1 and appealing. TUndoubtedly the almost
| universal opinion was that he would give way.
| After some discussion, with profound astute-
ness discerning the tenderness of his party
Mr Parnell temporized, saying, with one of
| his blandest smiles, “ I think, gentlemen, that

we had now better adjourn for luncheon.”
| During that interval he held a conference
| with Messrs Richard Power, Leamy, John
0’Connor, Dr Kenny, and Colonel Nolan. On
re-assembling the result of this caucus was
soon made evident.
DILATORY TACTICS BEGIN.

Colonel Nolan first gave tongue in favour
of Mr Parnell’s retaining his position, and he
| was followed by Dr Kenny and Messrs Leamy,
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Blane, Conway, and John O’Connor, all of
whom insisted that Mr Parnell should not re-
tire. The discussion became heated, and ulti-
mately, Mr Richard Power moved and

this meeting be adjourned until noon on
Monday.” There was rather a prolonged
debate over this, but as many mem-
bers of the Party were absent, and the
question of the leadership was obviously one

not to be rushed, the motion for adjournment
was finally agreed to.

Just as the meeting was separating it was
proposed and carried, that & cablegram be sent
to Mr Gill, M P, in America, for the informa-
tion of the delegates (Messrs W O’Brien,
Dillon, T D Sullivan, T P O’Connor, and T
Harrington), on the situation at home.

A SELF-POSSESSED CHAIRMAN.

Mr Parnell during the delivery of the per-
sonal appeals to him at the earlier stage of
the meeting sat for the most part with his
head resting on his left hand, as if wrapt in
thought. He took a note occasionally on the
paper lying before him, and at times fixed his
uyes on the speaker as if a new thought had
struck him. When, after luncheon, speeches
were delivered in favour of his retention of
the chair, he still maintained his thoughtful
wttitude. He had himself well under con-
trol. His self-possession was remarkable.
When the mzeting adjourned, on going down
stairs to the library he caught sight from one
of the landings of the clock in the Tower, and
took out his wateh to compare the time. He
then proceeded to the post office in the lobby.
looking as in nothing had occurred.

SENDING OUT THE FIERY CROSS.

The adjournment from Wednesday to Mon-
day gave Mr Parnell’s followers a tremen-
dous advantage, which they quickly seized on.
It was planned when Mr Parnell found the ma-
jority against him, to secure delay
to rig the country against the opposing
members.

That evening the fiery cross was sent out by
the Parnellites. Dr Kenny went off to Ireland
instanter and remained in Dublin until the fol-
lowing Sunday. During that period the |
clerks in the National League office set the

| ing a personal campaign.

wires in motion, and tried to drum the
country into immediate action. The National
League of Great Britain was similarly manipu-
lated, while the majority, relying on a good
cause, and a good conscience, refused to take
any step to secure expressions of opinion
favourable to their views. Before Saturday
night Mr Parnell had captured scores of the
branches of the National League and choked
off any hostile manifestations, while his

opponents sat with their arms folded
declining to countenance any ¢ working
up ® of their countrymen, or to sanc-

‘tion any manceuvres of a discreditable kind.

Their determination was if Mr Parnell suc-
ceeded, to resign their seats, and free them-
selves of all responsibility.

WORKING “THE ROPES AND PULLEYS.”

The Parnellites, on the other hand, were
unceasingly active. A system of lying
as to the motives of the the majority
was commenced ; personal and private
appeals to the officials of the branches
were made to remember the past services of
“the chief,” and where appeals failed, re-
course was had to other means. From
each branch was demanded an imme-
diate vote of confidence in Mr Parnell as
the Irish leader for Monday’s meeting of
the party, and misled by sentiment or
ignorance of the situation, too often the
trick succeeded. Some of the branches, both
in England and Ireland, refused to be cajoled
or wire-pulled. Messages arrived at the
House, addressed to the secretaries of the
party, announcing the pressure that was
being put on the officers of the League,
and that the interval of delay was being
grossly abused for the purpose of start-
On Thursday, an
informa] gathering of some memkers of the
party was held in the Conference Room and
such attempts to forestal the judgment of
the party was condemned, while those
present on both sides agreed to ad-
dress no meeting before Monday. Wire-
pulling, however, was feverishly proceeding,
and next day it was felt that some formal step
was necessary to insure that, in Mr William

O’Brien’s expressive phrase, *‘the repre-
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|
sentatives of the Irish people should not be ' inquiries were made for Mr Parnell at

bullied.”
TRUCE PENDING THE VOTE OF THE PARTY
PROPOSED.

On Friday, 'therefore, the following
requisition, which was drawn up by Mr T M
Healy (who had just arrived from Dublin)
was signed by thirty-nine of the Irish
members, and presented to the hon secre-
taries :— :

We request that you will this day (the 28th of
November, 1890). convene the Party at 6 p m, or
such other hour as you may a.pgoint to consider
the following resolution to be proposed and
seconded by one of the signatories hereto, viz:—

“That any member of this party, who by
speech or public declaration attempts to influence
or overawe the deliberations of the Party pen-
ding its adjourned meeting on Monday next, acts
in breach of the understanding as to the special
purpose for which the adjournment was taker
(viz, to afford an opportunity for communication
with abseat colleagues), and we hereby declare
that the provocation of public controversy by

| people.

bers of this Party, pledged to act and vote | ,
St tho s Sk Tar ' when 'many of the Irish members went away,

with the majority, with reference to the subject
of the adjourned meeting, is against good policy,
and to be condemned accordingly.”

Justin M‘Carthy, David Sheehy, T M Healy,
V Reynolds, Justin H M‘Carthy, F
Harrison, M J Kenny, TJ Condon,JJ Dalton,
Thomas Sexton, F A O’Keeffe, M M*‘Cartan,
John Stack, J Jordan, J C Flynn, Maurice
Healy, John Deasy, J D Sheehan, J F Fox,
J Tuite, P J O’Brien, W J Lane, A Webb, W
M Murphy, W Abraham, J Morrogh, A
Commins, Thomas Quinn, R"Cox, P
M*Donald, T A Dickson, Wm Redmond. BV
Knox, Chas R Tanner, L P Hayden, Denis

Kilbride, Dan Crilly, J F' X O;l/Brien, and |

John Finnucane.

The four names in italics are those who
afterwards refused to abide the vote of the
majority.

MR. PARNELL STAYS AWATY.

The meeting thus convened was held in
Room 15 on Friday night, but Mr Parnell
did not attend. ~Mr Justin M‘Carthy took
the chair. Mr Arthur O’Connor, as the senior
secretary of the party, read the requisi-
tion. Colonel Nolan immediately rose,
and protested against any meetin‘g being
held until the adjourned one on Monday,
especially in Mr Parnell’s absence. Mr T M
Healy said he thought they ought to adjourn
until a later hour if they could be assured of
Mr Parnell’s presence then. He understood
efforts had been made to inform Mr Parnell
of that meeting, but, unfortunately, he could
not be found. This was so0. Personal

“step.

the Euston, Charing Cross, and Westminster
Palace Hotels, but he was not staying in any
of them. He had disappeared.
MR. JOHN REDMOND HERALDS THE MANIFESTO.
Mr John Redmond, who, like Mr Healy,
attended that evening for the first time any
of the conferences of the party on the sub-
ject of the leadership, here informed the
meeting that it was Mr Parnell’s intention to
issue a manifesto next day to the Irish race,
and that such a resolution would seem to
seek to prevent him. As the leader of the
Irish race Mr Redmond laid down that Mr
Parnell was entitled to appeal to the
Mr Leamy opposed the resolution
altogether, and after some’ discussion the
meeting adjourned until 9 p m, with a view
of securing Mr Parnell’s attendance. The
House, however, was counted out at 8 pm,

but about a score or so remained, and came
together in one of the inner rooms of the
library, as all the lights were out slsewhere ;
but of course Mr Parnell did not
arrive, and as Messrs Leamy and Red-
mond showed themselves determined to
obstruct, and the hour and place were most
inconveniént, and the attendance small, the
meeting at 10 o’clock broke up without any
attempt to force matters to a conclusion.
Colonel Nolan and his friends were in great
glee over the failure of the meeting, and they
did not conceal their satisfaction. The advan-
tage was, indeed, all in their favour.
PREPARING THE MANIFESTO,

Next morning, Saturday, Mr Parnell’s mani-
festo appeared. He first intended to give it to
the Press on Thursday night, but Mr Justin
M<Carthy, on being told its purport, restrained
him,and begged he would take no such foolish
“ By showing,” he -said, “merely a
corner of my card I will blow the Liberal Part;
to atoms.” He told Mr M‘Carthy that he in-
tended to denounce in it by name two mem-
bers of the party, Mr Sexton and Mr John
Barry, as his lifelong enemies and as men
who had been always intriguing against him!
Dismayed by this extraordinary state of
mind—amounting almost to hallucination—

_ il e i by R
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My M‘Carthy implored him at all events to |
make no personal allusion, pointing out the |
grotesque absurdity of the charge against l
two such colleagues, and at length Mr
Parnell agreed to strike out their names -
and to delay the manifesto a day. He also
authorissd Mr M<Carthy to advise Mr Glad-
stone of the charges to be levelled against him
in the manifests. On Friday Mr M‘Carthy,
by request, repaired to Dr Fitzgerald’s
house, and there found Mr Parnell
revising the historic document. It was |
read out for his edification, and again Mr
M‘Carthy implored that no such manifesto
should be allowed to go forth. He warned
Mr Parnell several times of the con-
sequences, but found him obdurate and dis-
trustful. The final paragraphs had not at
this time been added, and his assistants,
thinking it ended rather baldly, requested
their leader to round it off with a few heroic
sentences. * Oh, I can do no more,” was the
reply ; “finish it as you like.” And so Messrs
0’Kelly and Redmond finished it.

Mr M<Carthy left after hearing the mani-
festo read, his last words being “ Mind, Par-
nell, if you send that out, we can never follow
you again—never.” Mr Parnell only smiled.

PARNELLITE HISTORY OF THE MANIFESTO.

Dr Fitzgerald, M P, on Dec 28th, 1891, gave
the following account of the preparation of
the manifesto in the Dublin Evening Herald :—

I was a member of the National Liberal Club.
and on the morning of Nov 28 was speaking in
that club to a member of the Irish Party. At
that moment I heard Mr Parnell in the hall. He
and I went together to my house, 31 Eccleston
street, Chester square. where he afterwards
wrote the manifesto. The door was locked upon
him while he wrote. He remained alone in the
room. He did not commence to write the mani-
festo until twelve o’clock in the day, and it was
given to the Press twelve hours later. Mr Parnell
entered on his task in the coolest possible man-
ner, without the least flurry. He came to
luncheon and dined in the svening with Mr Henry '

|

Campbell and myself, and conversed in his usual
calm way about the nature of the statement he
was preparing. In the evening I brought to the
house Mr John Redmond and Mr William Red-
mond, Mr Leamy and Mr O’Kelly ; and later on
Mr Henry Campbell returned. 1 suggrested that
Mr Justin M'Carthy ought to be made aware of
the contents of the manifesto before its issue to |
the Press. Mr Parnell consented, and Mr Wm |
Redmond went to the house of Mr M-Carthy, who |
very xindly eame. Some of the Freeman reporters |
‘were waiting in a lower room. The original MS.

which was never parted with, and is now in my

| possession, was read to the Freeman reporter,

who took it down in shorthand. He was called
up, and read the manifesto from his notes to the
gathering, which, at that time, included Mr
M'Carthy. When the locument had been read,
Mr M‘Carthy said—*‘ I have seen Mr Gladstone,
and I may say he will contradict every word
stated there about the Hawarden interview.”
Mr Parnell merely replied in the guietest pos-
(siible manner, *“ Let him produee the memoran-
um.”’
THE MANIFESTO.

Next morning (Saturday, Novembsr 29),
the country was confronted with the follow-
ing :— 7

TO THE IRISH PEOPLE.

The integrity and independence of z section of
the Irish Parliamentary Party having been ap-
parently sapped and destroyed by the wire-pullers
of the Liberal Party, it has become nocessary for
me, as the Leader of the Irish nation, to take
counsel with you, and having given you the know
ledge which is within my possession, to ask your
judgmentupon amatter which now solely dovolves
upon you to decide.

The letter of Mr Gladstone to Mr Morley, writ-
ten for the purpose of influencing the decision of
the Irish Party in the choice of their leader, and
claiming for the Liberal Party and their leaders
the right of veto upon that choice, i» the imme-
diate cause of this address to you, to remind you
and your Parliamentary representatives that Ire-
land considers the independence of her party as
her only safeguard within the Constitution, and
above and beyond all other considerations what-
ever. The threat in that letter, repeated so inso-
lently on many English platformsand in numerous
British newspapers,that unless Ireland concedes
her right of veto to England she will indefinitely
postpone her chances of obtaining Home Rule.
compels me, while not for one moment admitting
the slightest probability of such loss, to put be-
fore vou information which, until now. so far as
my colleagues are concerned, has been solely in
my possession, and which will enable you to un-
derstand the measure of the loss with which you
are threatened, unless you consent to throw me
to the English wolves now howling for my de-
struetion.

November of last year, in response to a re-

ted and long-standing request, I visited Mr

(Gladstone at Hawarden, and received details of

the intended proposals of himself and his col-

leagues of the late Liberal Cabinet with regard

to Home Rule in the event of the next General
Election favouring the Liberal Party.

It is unnecessary for me to direct your atten-
tion to certain points of these details, which will
be generally recognised as embracing elements
vital for your information and the formatien of
your judgment. These vital points of difficulty
may be suitably arranged and comsidered under
the following heads :—

1. The retention of the Irish members in the
Imperial Parliament.

2. The settlement of the land or agrurian
difficulty in Ireland.

3. The control of the Irish Constabulary.

4. The appointment of the Judiciary (including
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indges of the Supreme Court, county conrtjudges,
and resident magistrates).

Upon the subject of the retention of the Irish
members in the. Imperial Parliament Mr Glad-
stone told me that the opinion, and the unani-
mous opinion, of his colleagues and himself,
recently arrived at after most mature considera-
tion of altermative proposals, was that, in order
to conciliate English public opinion, it would be
necessary to reduce the Irish representationfrom
103 to 32.

Upon the settlement of the land question it was
held that this was one of the questions which
must be regarded as questions reserved from the |
<ontrol of the Irish Legislature; buf at the same
time Mr Gladstone intimated that, while he |
would renew his attempt to settle the matter by
Imperial legislation on the lines of the Land
FPurchase Bill of 1886, he would not undertake to |
pnt any pressure upon his own side, or insist upon
their adopting his views—in other and shorter
words, that the Irish Legislature was not to b-
given the power of solving the agrarian difficulty,
and that the Imperial Parliament wonld not.

With regard to the control of the Irish Con-
stabulary, it was stated by Mr Gladstone that,
having regard to the necessity for conciliating
English public opinion, he and his colleagues felt
that it would be necessary to leave this force, and
the appointment of its officers, under the control
of the Imperial authority for an indefinite period,
while the funds for its maintenance payment.
and equipment would be compulsarily provided
out of Irifh resources.

The period of ten or twelve yeawny was suggested |
as the limit of time during which tha appoint- |
ment of judges, resident magistrates, &c, should |
be retained in the hands of the Imperial autho- |
rity

I have now given a short account of what I
gathered of Mr Gladstone’s views and those of
his colleagues during the two hours’ conversation
at Hawarden, a'conversation which, T am beund
to admit, was mainly monopolized by Mr Glad-
stone, and pass to my own expression of opinion
upon these communications, which represent my |
views then and now. And, firstly, with regard |
to the retention of the Irish members, the position
I have always adopted and then represented is
that, with the concession of full powers to the
Irish Legislature equivalent to these enjoyed by
a State of the American Union, the number and
vosition of the members so retained would
become a question of Imperial concern, and not
of pressing or immediate importance for the
interests of Ireland. But that with the im-
portant and all-engrossine subjects of agrarian
reform, constabulary control. and judiciary
appointment left either under Imperial control or
totally unprovided for, it would be the height of
madness for any Irish leader to imitate Grattan’s
example and consent to disband the army which
had cleared the way to victory.

I further undertook to use every legitimate
influence to reconvile Irish public opinion
to a gradual coming into force of the
new privileges. and to the postponements
necesssary for English opinion with regard to
constabulary control and the judicial appoint-
ments. but I strongly dissented from the proposed
reduetion of members during the interval of pro-
bation, and I pointed to the absence of any suit-
able prospect of land settlement by either.
Parliament as constituting an overwhelming drag

upon the prospeci of permanenti peace and pros-
perity in Ireland.

At the comnclusion of the interview I was
formed that Mr Gladstone and all his colleagues
were entirely agreed that, pending the general
election, silence should be absolutely preserved
vith regard to any points of difference on the

| question of the retention of the Irish members.

I have dwelt at some length upon these subjects,
but not, I think, dispropertionately to their im-
pertance. Let me say, in addition, that if and
when full powers are conceded to Ireland over her
own domestic affairs the integrity, number, and
independence of the Irish party will be -
matter of no importance ; but until this ideal is
venched it is your duty and mine to hold fast
very safeguard. 1mneed not say thatthe question
—the vital and important guestion—of the reten-
tion of the Irish members on the one hand. and
the indefinite delay of full powers to the Irish
Legislature on'the ether, gave me wreat concern.
The absence of any provision for the settlemen*
of the agrarian question, of any policy on the par!
of the Likeral leaders, filled me with concern and
apprehension.

On the intreduction of the Land Purchase Bill
by the Government at the commencement of last
session Mr Morley communicated with me as to
the course to be adopted. Having regard to the
avowed absence of any policy on the part of the
Liberal leaders and party with regard to the
matter of the land, I strongly advised Mr Morley
against any direct challenge of the principle of
State-aided land purchase, and, finding that the
fears and alarms of the English taxpayer to
State aid by the hypothecation of grants for
local purposes in Ireland, as a counter-guarantee,
had been assuaged, that a hopeless struggle
against the principle of the measure should nofi
be maintained, and that we should direct our sole
efforts on the second reading of the bill to the asser-
tion of the principle of local centrol. In thisI
am bound to say Mr Morley entirely agreed with
mae ; but he was at the same time much hampered.
and expressed his sense of his position in tha’.
direction by the attitude of the extreme section
of his party. led by Mr Labouchere; and in a
subsequent interview he impressed me with the
necessity of meeting the second reading of the
bill with a direct negative, and asked me te
undertake the metion. T agreed to this, but only
on the condition that I was not to attack the
principle of the measure, but te confine myself
to a criticism of its details. I think his was
false strategy, but it was a strategy adopted out
of regard to English prejudices and Radieal
peculiarities. I did the best that was possible
under the circumstances, and the several days’
debate on the second reading contrasts favourably
with Mr Labouchere’s recent and abortiv.
attempt to interpose a direct negative to the first
reading of a similar bill yesterday. Time went
on ; the Government allowed their attention to
be distracted from the question of land purchase
by the bill for compensating English publicans,
and the agrarian difficulty in Ireland was
again relegated to the future of another session.

Just before the commencement of this session
I was again favoured with another interview with
Mr Morley. I impressed upon him the policy of
the eblique method of procedure in reference to
land purchase, and the necessity and importance
»f providing for the question of local control and
of » limitation in the application of the fund..
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He agreed with me, and I offered to move on the
first ruading of the bill an amendment in favour
of this local control advising that if this were re-
jected it might be left to the Radicals on the
gecond reading to oppose the principle of the
measure. This appeared to be a proper course,
and I left Mr Morley under the impressior that
his would fall to my duty. But, in addition, he
madc me a remarkable proposal referring to the
probable approaching vietory of the Liberal
Party at the polls. He suggested some considera-
tion ws to the future of the Irish Party. He
asked me whether I would be willing to assume
the office of Chief Secretary to the Lord Lieutenant
oi Izeland, or to allow another member of my party
vo take ithe position. He also put before me
the desirability of filling one of the law offices of
the Crown in Ireland by a legal member of my
party. I told him, amazed as I was at the pro-
posal, that I could not agree to forfeit in any way
the independence of the party or any of its mem-
bers ; that the Irish people had trusted me to this
moment because they believed that the declara-
tion I had made to them in Cork in 1880 was a
true one, and represented my convictions, and
that I would «n no account depart from it. I can
only speak of what I know. T considered that
after the declarations we have repeatedly made
that the proposal of Mr Morley that we should
allow ourselves to be absorbed into English poli-
tics was one based upon an entire misconception
of our position with regard to the Irish constitu-
encies, and the pledges which we had given.

In conclusion, he directed my attention to th.
Plan of Campaign estates. He said that it would
be impossible for the Liberal Party, when thes
attained power, to do anything for these evictea
tenants by direct action : that it would be im-
possible for the Irish Parliament by powers con-

terred to do anything for them, and. flinging up |
his hands with a gesture of despair, he exclaimed. |

‘“Having been at Tipperary, I didnot know what to
propose in regard to the matter.” I told him that
this question was a limited  one, and
that I did mnot see that he need allow
himself to be hampered by its future considera-
tion ; that, being limited, funds would be awvail-
able from America and elsewhere for the support
of those tenants as long as might be necessary -
that, of course, I understood that it was a diffi-
culty, but that it was a limited ene, and should
not be allowed to interfere with the general in-
terests of the country. I allude to this matter
only because, within the last few days, a strong
argument in many minds for my expulsion has

been that, unless the Liberals ecome into power |
at the next General Election,the Plan of Cam- |

paign tenants will suffer. As I have shown, the
Liberals propose to do nothing for the Plan of
Campaign tenants by direct action when they do
come into power; but I am entitled to ask that
the existence of these tenants, whom I have sup-

ported in every way im the past, and whom I will |
continue to support in the future, shall not con- |

stitute a reason for my expulsion from Irish
polities.

I have repeatedly pledged myself to stand |

Ly these evicted tenants, and that they shall not
be allowed to suffer, and I believe that the Irish
people throughout the world will support me in
this policy. Sixteen years ago I conceived the
idea of an Irish Parliamentary Party, indepen-
dent of all English parties. Ten years ago I was
«elected the Leaderof anindependent Irish Parlia-

I X
| mentary Party. Duringthese ten yearsthat party
! has remained independent, and, because of its in-
i dependencg, it has forced upon the English people
| the necessity of granting Home Rule to Ireland.
1 believe that party will obtain Home Rule only
provided it remains independent of any English
party. I do not believe that any action of the
Irish people in supporting me will endanger the
Home Rule cause or postpone the establishment
of an Irish Parliament; but even if the danger
with which we are threatened by the Liberal
Party of to-day were to be realized I believe that
the Irish peeple thronghout the world would
agree with me that a postponement would be
preferable to a compromise of our National rights
by the aceeptance of a measure which would not
realize the aspirations «f our race.—I have the
honour to remain, your faithful servant,
CHARLES STEWART PARNELL.

“@0 TO YOUR CONSTITUENTS.”

Needless to say, Mr Gladstone and Mr
Morley immediately and specifically contra-
dicted every statement affecting themselves
or their party in this Manifesto. The morn-
ing it appeared Mr Parnell was early in
the library of the House of Commons col-
lecting opinion. The two first members
he met there were Dr Commins and Mr
Donal Sullivan. *“ Well, gentlemen,” said he,
“what do you think of my manifesto; what
do you think of Mr Gladstone now ?” 'L'he
Doctor replied : “I think very little of your
manifesto, and it has not changed my opinion of
Mr Gladstone.” **Gotoyour constituentsnow,”
said Mr Parnell, “ and see how they will re-
ceive you.” “1am quite ready,” answered the
other, “togoto my constituents wheneverthey
require me, and to resign my seat when they
ask me.”

“7 4E GREATEST POLITICAL COUP OF THE
CENTURY.”

At this moment Mr Jacob Bright (one
of the Radicals who had publicly sup-
ported Mr Parnell after the divorce decree)
entered, and Mr Parnell went into another
room with him. He remained in the Library,
| attended by his secretary, until late in the
afternoon, appearing to be greatly excited.
He pronounced his manifesto to several
who spoke to him about it as being the
“ greatest political coup of the century.”

*“ REASONABLE MEN.”

Mr John Deasy was wired to by him to

' come to the Library, where Mr Parnell asked
him (as one of-the Whips of the party)
to get certain of the members to meet
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him at the Westminster Palace Hotel that
night at 9 pm, to talk over the situation,
adding that he had wired to others to be
there.

He handed Mr Deasy a list of thos>
whom he specially wished to attend, and re-
quested him to make out a list of “reasonable
men” to invite. Mr Deasy sat with him and
wrote out 21 names, but Mr Parnell demurred
to 14 of them, saying: “None of these are
reasonable men,”
Dbasy’s list were, therefore, invited. He said
to Mr Deasy, who declared he should vote
wgainst him, that he knew he and all the
other members of the Party were acting
“honestly and conscientiously, except three
men,” who, he said, were actuated by ill-
feeling—viz., Messrs Sexton, Barry, and
Chance. He repeated this en a subsequent
day to Mr Deasy and to Mr Condon.

Several of the * reasonable men ” who re-
ceived invitations decided, without knowing
anything about the revision of the list, not
to oo

AT MR PARNELL’S HOTEL.

T'hose of the present Irish Party who re-
sponded to the invitation were—Messrs Justin
M‘Carthy, Condon, Abraham, and Deasy, and
when they entered Mr Parnell’s room they
found him surrounded by about twenty
of his followers. Mr Parnell addressed
them, describing Mr Gladstone as a
“champion liar,” and finished by inviting
““all his friends ” to put any questions they
pleased, which he promised * frankly to
answer.” Mr Condon at once proceeded to
put questions about the evicted tenants. Mr
Parnell replied, he saw that much of the op-
position to his leadership was due to fears
about those tenants. He suggested that the
difficulty could be got over by an arrangement
with Mr Balfour to allow the Land Pwrchase Bill
to pass unopposed, provided the Chief Secretary
would pledge himself to introduce a Bill
later on, having for its object the reinstating
of the evicted on terms which were left un-
specified. The four members of the Irish
Party present strongly dissented.

and only seven of Mr |

! MR O’KELLY PROPOSES A SURRENDER OF THE
TENANTS.
| MrO’Kelly, with Mr Parnell’sapproval, then
| proposed that the whole of these tenants
should go to their landlords, promise to pay
| the rent for the non-payment of which
i they were evicted, and that the party
should send delegates all over the
| world to collect money to pay the
| evicting landlords the difference between the
| original rent and what the tenants originally
offered. For instance, if the tenants on an -
estate asked a reduction of 35 per cent,
and the landlord would only grant the
tenants 20 per cent, Mr O’Kelly’s plan was
that the Irish Party should beg the world
for funds to pay the difference. The im-
practicability of this scheme was quickly
pointed out by Mr M‘Carthy and Mr Condon.
ME CLANCY SAYS HOME RULE IS BEATEN.

A desultory conversation followed, in which
Mr Clancy said that he knew from the day after
the verdict in the Divorce Court was given,
that the British electors would have nothing
to do with Home Rule under Mr Parnell, be-
cause from that day until the present the
work of the Irish Press Agency, which he
conducted, was stopped. He added that the
engagements of Irish M P’s on English,
Scotch, and Welsh platforms -had to be
cancelled, and that there was no longer any
demand for their literature. In fact, he said:
“It is plain that the general election is lost,and
we may as well fight with Mr Parnell as not,
because the Tories have got a new lease of
power and Home Rule is beaten.” Mr John
Redmond endorsed all that Mr Clancy stated.
Finally, Mr Parnell requested Mr M‘Carthy to
see Mr Gladstone with a view of getting guaran-
tees about Home Rule, and Mr M‘Carthy re-
luctantly agreed, telling Mr Parnell that
the tone of his manifesto and his account of
the Hawarden interview rendered his visit
fruitless in advance.

AN ANXIOUS INTERVAL.

Up to the evening of Saturday there
' had been no word from the American
| delegates, as Mr Parnell cabled them
' to reserve their judgment until they
" had his manifesto. Late on Saturday night
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their reply arrived, pronouncing strongly
for Mr Parnell’s retirement. On Sunday =
conference of the members opposed to Mr
Parnell (excipt Mr T M Healy, who was too ill
to attend) was held at Mr Arthur O’Connor’s
chambers, at which next day’s procedure was
discussed, and it was arranged that Mr Wm
Abraham should move a resolution declaring
Mr Parnell’s tenure of the chairmanship
terminated. Omn the same day (Sunday,
November 30) well-attended meetings of
several branches of the National League
were held, at which strong emphatic votes of
confidence in Mr Parnell’s leadership of the
Irish nation were passed, and equally strong
denunciations of the members opposed to Mr
Parnell were uttered.
MR PARNELL LOSES HIS HEAD.

On Monday, 1st December, the Irish Party
re-assembled, in Room 15, with Mr Parnell in
the chair. The meeting was summoned
for 12 noon, and a short time previously
Mr M-Carthy, with his son, Mr Huntly
M-Carthy, called at the Westminster
Palace Hotel to inform Mr Parnell that
he had complied with his request that
he should visit Mr Gladstone. A scene
ensued. Mr Parnell was found completely
off his balance. His self-control was gone,
and he was rude to the old comrade whom he
had despatched against his will on so unplea-
sant an errand. Mr M‘Carthy, whois one of
the most urbane gentlemen alive, protested,

saying—* Well, Parnell, I think you might
“I am more
was the

be a little more courteous.”
a gentleman than you, sir,
reply. Father and son then left, and, in a
few minutes after, Mr Parnell took the chair
in Room 15, looking determined and excited.
Seventy-three gentlemen were present.
The absentees were—Messrs Dillon, Wm
O’Brien, Gill, T D Sullivan, T P 0°Con-
nor, and T Harrington in America; Messrs
Carew, Lalor, Leahy, Gilhooly, and The
O’Gorman Mahon, ill; Mr Pat O’Brien in
prison ; one seat vacant, County Kilkenny, by
the death of M» Marum.
THE DEBATES BEGIN.

The Chairman first called upon his secretary

to read every resolution, vote, or message

2

received in response to the wire-pulling
since Wednesday. No one opposed this,
although of course, noone was entitled, ex-
cept the members of the party, to any voice
in the selection of its sessional chairman.
Every one felt that to raise an objection
would have led to the waste of more
time than the reading could consume, as
the confederates would have wrangled
and debated the point for a day.

On the chairman’s direction, therefore, Mr
Henry Campbell produced a sheaf of tele-
grams and a huge bundle of letters, nearly
all strongly in favour of “the only possible
leader.” = These contained the resolutions
passed in obedience to the calls made upon
them, and in many cases the very words o:
the resolutions sent out, cut and dry, from the
League headquarters for adoption by the
obedient branch. Considerable time was
wasted in this way. Judging by the de-
fiant smile that played around Mr Parnell’s
features as his secretary intonmed resolu-
tion after resolution, he evidently felt greatly
elated at the unbounded expression of confi-
dence they purported to convey, and probably
they may have then misled him as to the feel-
ing of the country, though they certainly
did not deceive his opponents.

DELUSIVE TELEGRAMS.

He would look from Mr Justin M'Carthyto
Mr Healy, and from Mr Healy to Mr Sexton, as
Mr Campbell’s monotonous litany proceeded, to
*“ watch the effect.” Many of the personal tele-
gramsreceived provoked a good deal of laughter,
especially when the sender spoke on behalf of
ALL Ireland or of a province or a county. One
of the very earliest of those personal wires
was from a late worthy alderman of Dublin.
He advised Mr Parnell to ‘ Be firm.
The Irish mnation is with yeu.” A
gentleman from Cahirconlish declared that
“ All Munster is solid for its illustrious
leader.” Some one in Dunleer wired—
“ Every man in Louth and out of itis for
the Chief.” From Portadown came a2 mes-
sage—“All the North is for Mr Parnell.
We stand by our glorious general.” Away in
Mayo came a wire from Ballinrobe announc-

| ing that “The West is awake, and WQ—’H
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have no king but Charlie.” From a Cork
solicitor, came the imperative com-
- mand—*“Instantly remove any illusory and
mischievous idea regarding the Cork clergy:
Parnell’s very warmestsupporters are amongst
the priests in Cork. The rebel city is
staunch and troe to our fearless and our
peerless chief. I have the fullest faith and
confidence 1n the honour and ability, genius
and talent, of my great and illustrious chief. |
A letter follows.” Sure enough, next day |
arrived from him a most romantic letter. The |
great leader read it, and, handing it to Mr
Campbell, said: “I don’t think we’ll publish
thatletter.” A MrCoyne wired—* Stand firm,
intellectual Ireland 18 with you.” Mr T P Gill
cabled from New York to Mr Justin M‘Carthy
that, having signed the American manifesto,
he wished to add, “the
of grief I personally feel at the
action my conscience forces me to take
tewards a leader whom I love, and whom I
would give my life to defend. I would fol-
fow him te death. I cannot follow him in
what seems to me dishonour. Pleags read
him this.”
ADMITTING THE ‘“ FREEMAN” REPORTERS.
‘When the dreary reading of the letters and
the telegrams was over, Mr Parnell said that it
would be well to have an authentic record of
their proceedings in view of their importance,
for although private meetings of the party
were the rule, yet when he himself was first
elected in 1880 the Press was present, and as
this meeting concerned the tenure of the chair
he moved, “That the reporters of the
Freeman’s Journal be admitted to take a re-
port of their proceedings.” Mr T M Healy
seconded thig, and it was unanimously agreed
to. The reporters of the Fresman were then
admitted, having, on Mr Parnell’s instruc-
tions, been waiting .at the door. Seme one
asked that the message of the American dele-
gabes be read, but Mr Parnell refused, on the
ground that “it was only a newspaper para-
graph, and he had not the original copy be-
fore him!”
OBSTRUCTION BEGINS.

Mr William Abraham then rose to move—
That, acting npon the imperative sense of our

- F'riday next.

expression |

| the original motion.

duty to our counf;r{I ,We, the members of the Irish
Party, do declare that Mr a.rnell’s tenure of the
chairmanship of this Party is hereby terminated.

Mr Parnell at once ruled this out of
order! He said the question before the
Party was Mr Barry’s motion of the pre-
vious Wednesday, viz.:—*“That a full meet-
ing of the members be called for Friday
to enable Mr Parnell to reconsider
' his position.” Teo this it was naturally
| objected that Mr Barry referred to
| the previous Friday, and that a motion
 to adjourn over till Monday had been

.cﬂ.rrled and this was Monday, and that

Friday last of the resolution could not be
Mr Parnell, however, de-
clared that he would rule everything
strietly on Parliamentary procedure, and
that Mr Barry’s resolution must be dealt
with before any other business could come on.

Looking back after along interval it is easy
to eriticise the resolution Mr Barry moved.
but nobody dreamt then of obstruction of the
willof the Party, and besides Mr Barry and
‘his comrades were not prepared to move a blunt
draftsman’s motion with its apparently callous
and cutting phraseology. Ofall this the chair-
man took the fullest advantage.

““STRATEGIC” RULINGUS.

He knew the consideration with which his
opponents desired to treat him, and he played
to the full every card which his unique
position as judge at his own trial gave
te a master of strategy. Mr Abraham’s

motion was, therefore, ruled out on
the ground that there being another
motion (Mr Barry’s) before the chair

any fresh proposal must be made by way of
amendment thereto, and that Mr Abraham’s
proposition was not relevant as an amend-
ment. Only a few moments before Mr Parnell
had himself moved a motion that the Press be
admitted; yet he now held that Mr Barry’s
obsolete resolution prevented any proposition
being put by him unless that was got out of
the way. The practice of Parliament, of
course, is, even if Mr Parnell were right as to
Mr Barry’s motion, directly opposed to the
trick of allowing repeated amendments to be
proposed and debated without putting
The form in which Mr
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Speaker puts motions and amendments is—
“The question is that the words proposed
to be left out stand part of the question.”
And if Mr Parnell had followed * strict Parlia-
mentary ruling,” the defeat of any one of the
amendments would necessarily have carried
the antecedent motion. Having ruled out Mr
Abraham, Colonel Nolan announced that he
had an amendment to move to Mr Barry’s
motion, and proposed :—

That the question touching the ohairmanship
of the Irish Parliamentary Party be postponed
until members have had an opportunity of perso-

nally ascertaining the views of their constituents,
and until the Party can meet in Dublin.

'his had, of course, been concerted between
the mover and the chairman; and Mr Par-
nell’s oppouents then began to realise that he
would never cousent to put from the chair a
motion for his own deposition. The majority
had no alternative but to play out the game
which the whole world was now eagerly watch-
ing on the lines fixed by their opponents. Sir
Soseph M<Kenna seconded the amendment,
and upon it for two days the real question at
issue was debated.

MR. SEXTON’S SPEECH.

Mr Sexton, in one of his greatest and most
brilliant speeches, opened the case for the ma-
jority, amidst a burst of cheering from his
friends. He said :—

I deeply regret that I find it impossible to vote
for Colonel Nolan’s amendment. I am extremely
anxious to treat this grave case with every con-
sideration, and to allow any time that may be
judged necessary for arriving at a just deecision;
but according to my judgment the case is urgent,
and it admits of no delay. I felt on Wednesday
last that in adjourning until Monday we were in-
curring a serious risk, and I submit to this meet-
ing that from the reports which we receive from
day to day of the refusal of Liberal members, of
English Liberal members. to meet their consti-
tuents, and the determination of Liberal candi-
dates to retire from the field, and the reports
from Liberal agents, as a result of my investiga-
tions in all parts of the country, that if we post-
pone this question till the end of the present
session, or for a month, or even for a week, we
may substantially be guilty of one of the most
criminal acts that were ever committed by a body
of public men in the course of the history of the
world, and that act would be the breaking up of
an alliance in which you have led the people to
hope—the breaking up of an alliance in which
they have fondly hoped for the last four years, of
an alliance built up by the unimaginable labour
and pains of the past eleven years,an alliance
between 1ihe geople of Ireland and the only
friends from whom we have any reasonable hop«
—I mean the Liberal democracy of Great Britain

—an alliance, firm, affectionate, progressive. and
destined, tried no matter by what test, to suc-
ceed and endure.

INTERRUPTIONS FROM MR. PARNELL.

Mr Parnell frequently interrupted, al-
though as chairman he should have been the
most scrupulous preserver of order. Bug
the member for West Belfast, although at
times greatly provoked, calmly continued the
speech. Mr Sexton finished with a burst of
eloguence, which even his adversaries had
to admire—

I olaim (gaid he), in the face of the world,
and I claim in the presence of the Most High, that
the integrity of the Irish Party is unstained, and
that its independence 1s absolute. The question
—the urgent question—is between the leader
whoiwn we have loved, whom we can never forget,
and whose useful tenure of his position circum-
stances have made impossible—the question is
Letween him and the cause to which our fealty is
due. If the leader is retained, in my judgment,
the cause is lost. If the cause is to be won, it is
essential that the leader should retire. I am
acting, I- solemnly declare, against my naturai
will, and against the wbole strong current of my
disposition. Be my time in politics long or shors
—and I shall be happy to be relieved of the obli-
gation of public life—but, be my time in polities
long or short, I assure you, Mr Parnell, and I beg
you will give me credit for sincerity in this decla-
ration, I can assure you I never can have a leader
whom I can love and regard as I have loved and
regarded you. I am obliged to do violence to m:-
own desire. I am obliged to overcome my natur:l
ineclination, acting upon the stern compulsion of
duty ; and if it were the last act of my life—the
act by which I would ask my friends to remember
me and the country to judge me—I am obliged to
vote that the retirement of our leader, for w
period at least, is urgent, and that to acceps
Colonel Nolan’s motion would be to create w
public danger.

MR. JOHN REDMOND REPLIES AND TAKES A
PLEDGE.

Mr John Redmond rose to reply. Mr Par-
nell welcomed h.s rising, calling him by
name, and loudly thumping the table. Mr Red-
mond deplored the situation, and the parting of
old friends. He implored his colleagues “ not
to sell their noble leader at the bidding of
English clamour and English dictation. And
then bursting into a solemn appeal, he hopec.
“that the God of their fathers would direct
their hearts to a just, a fair and true deci-
sion.” Inthis matter said Mr Redmond—

I intend to vote and to use every exertionin my
power for the leadership of this Party and the
Irish people by Mr Parnell ; but at the same time
I recognise the duty I owe to this Party, and I
recognise the obligation and the pledge which I
took when in 1885 I was elec..d a member of this
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Carty; and if this Party comes to a decision

ostile to my view, then before taking any steps

70 support Mr Parnell if he chooses to go further,
I will deem it my duty to resign.

This pledge, seeing what has since hap-
pened, is the more remarkable, as in the view
of every man present they were all bound to
resign if they could not act with the Party.
Each member, prior to election, signed the
following document :—

I pledge myself that in the event of my election
to Parliament I will sit, act, and vote with the
Irish Parliamentary Pa,rty and if at a meeting
of the Party, convened upon due notice, especially
to consider the question, it be determined by a
resolution supported by a majority of the entire
Parliamentary Party, that I have not fulfilled the
above pledge, I hereby undertake to resign my
seat.

Mr Redmond, however, for ¢ further assur-
ance,” added, in a solemn and affecting
manner, the pledge just mentioned.

MR. T. M. HEALY'S SPEECH.

Mr T M Healy followed Mr Redmond, and
grappled with the terms of Colonel Nolan’s
amendment. He ridiculed the idea of an ad-
journment to Dublin. “We are,” said he “as
much in possession to-day of Mr Parnell’s
views through his manifesto as we shall be
were we to meet in Dublin. Dublin has
been passed over in the meetings of*this party

in the past. It is a novel proposition to make

just now.” Then he turned to the charge that
they “were yielding to English dictation.
“ Our demand” replied Mr Healy, “from the
English people, is for such a measureof Home
Rule as we can honourably accept for our

country.” Referring to Mr Parnell’s account of |
hisinterview with Mr Gladstone at Hawarden, |
“the member for Cork,” said he, “quitted } his manifesto was false.”

Hawarden, and the same day made his way
vo a public meeting at Liverpool, and a sug-
gestion has been put forward in the mani-
festo that for nine months he retained the
terrible secrets entrusted to him at Hawar-
den, kept his colleagues in ignorance, allowed

some of them to go to Australia, others to i sition in which the Irish people were left was

| the position at Liverpool on the day of the

America, and all to spend their time’ and
their intellects on English platforms, while
he was persuaded at that interview, to use
his expression, that ‘ we were at the mercy of
the mnrivalled coercionist of the Irish race.’”
The Chairman : “It was an expression that I

used at Wexford three days before I was
arrested.” Mr Healy: “ Why did Mr Parnell
not say that three days after he left
Hawarden?” The Chairman: “I told youw
why I did not say it.” Mr Healy: “ You will
have the difficulty of summing up to this
jury, you being at the same time the judge
and the defendant. Here are the expressions
used at Liverpool after the Hawarden inter-
view. That was on the 19th December, 1889.
OUR GRAND OLD LEADER.

On that very day Mr Parnell was speaking

at Liverpool as follows :—

* We trust that not only in Liverpool, but in
the great county of Lancashire, we shall be able
materially to assist in increasing the forces of
Liberalism, which will rally at the next General
Election to the assistance of OUR GRAND OLD
LEADER!’

“ Subsequently on the same day Mr Parnell
said—

¢ The great Liberal Party has come to the help
and the rescue of Ireland. My countrymen re-
cognise and join with me in recognising that we
are on the safe path to our legitimate freedom
and future prosperity. They will accompany me
and econtinue both until you have helped your
great leader to win this contest, which I trust we
are on the eve of entering upon.’

“Was that misleading the Irish people ? Was
that misleading the English people ? Has there
been any subsequentinterview in which—and,
if so, why was it not stated in the manifesto in
which Mr Gladstone abandoned the position
that he toek up in the Home Rule Bill of
18867 And why, if the Hawarden interview
'be the capital matter on which Mr Parnell
bases himself in his manifesto, why, I say,
were these false words uttered at Liverpool ?
Either Mr Parnell at Liverpool was false, or
The Chairman :
“I will mnot stand an accusation of
falsehood from Timothy Healy, and I call
upon him to withdraw his expressions.” Mr
Healy: “Out of respect to the chair I
will withdraw the accusation. I say this,
that, so far as public utterances went, the po- °

Hawarden interview. Which is likely to be
the more correct kind—that deliverance fresh
and straight with no suggestion of personal
motive or personal opposition that could be
levelled, or the position assumed on the occa-
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sion of this manifesto ? Is the Irish Party so

t

bankrupt in the confidence of Mr Parnell
that there was not one single member

of his eolleagues to whom he conld
have entrusted these vital secrets?”
““I SAY TO ME. PARNELL THAT HiS POWER IS

GONE.”
Mr Healy then dealt with Mr Parnell’s

action in keeping locked in his bosom for

over nine months the purport of this
interview with Mr Gladstone
warden, and Mr Parnell only giving his
distorted account of it after the exposure in
the Divorce Court. Then directly addressing
the chairman, Mr Healy said :—

I say to Mr Parnell his power is gone. He
derived that power from the people. We are the
representatives of the people. Place an iron bar
in a coil and electrize that-coil, and the iron bar

becomes magnetic. This party was that electric
action. There (pointing to Mr Parnell) stood the

- iron bar. The electricity is gone, and the mag-

netism with it, when our support has passed away.

I then say and declare that my vote shall be for |

the deposition of the chairman of this party. I
will not give that vote without regret. We are
not all cold and passionless. Igive itunder what
I conceive to be the solemnest obligations of
duty and patriotism. If we could have main-
tained Mr Parnell in that position we would have
done so. Did we leave one stone unturned or
effort unmade, one meeting unaddressed or un-
appealed to, to maintain him where he was? I
ezamine my conscience in regard to my duty
towards Mr Parnell in this erisis. I find therein

gard to the distraetions to our country if he
remains and the knowledge I possess of the pa-
triotism of my colleagues who support him, and
the patriotism and sense of unity of the Irish race,
that as all men are ephemeral, and as nothing is
eternal, save a cause like the Irish eause, founded
upon a basis of right and justice, I know that
those who support him to-day will, once the vote
of the majority is recorded, rally round the posi-
tion which
become the heart and centre of Irish authority
and patriotism. Men pass away and causes re-
main, and the Irish cause will march through
these dissensions and these distractions purified
and eternal. I tell Mr Parnell that if he has a
sacrifice to make npon the altar of his country
there is yet time. He can still hand down to his
conntrymen 2 name upon which no fleck from
even the bitterest malice ean be passedif hetakes
counsel with those who are as patriotic, as him-
self, who are as simple minded and as simple-pur-
posed as himself, buf who are resolved here,
defying every consideration except the consider-
wsion of country, determined here to cast their
votes for that country, and to cast their votes for
it against him, believing that they are doing an
act which will yet hew a pathway to freedom.

MR, PARNELL'S PERSONAL ATTACKS.

=

Ao

he now occupies, which will then |

at Ha- |

&&{ Healy sat down, Mr Parnell sprang )

to his feet. With tumultuous applause his
henchmen greeted his rising. The men whom
any leader might be proud to call friends and
colleagues had parted from him and a gulf
never to be bridged over separated them.
They had left him never to return. He com-
menced by a personal attack on Mr Sexton,
Mr Barry,and Mr Healy. Having exhausted
his powers of invective on these gentle-
men he turned to Mr Justin M‘Carthy, and
rained on that loyal comrade’s head what
scorn and bitterness he had left. Loss of
self-possession = unnerved him, but he threw
some feeling into his closing words, in
which movingly, he appealed to his ecol-

leagues not to desert him, to permit him
- tc enter the Promised Land with them.

MR. M‘CARTHY ON MR. PARNELL'S TREATMENT
OF MR. GLADSTONE.

Mr M‘Carthy succeeded Mr Parnell. He
simply gave an account of the errand
to Mr Gladstone, which bhe reluctantly
undertook at Mr Parnell’s prayer. His re-
ward was to be frequently interrupted from
the chair with challenging statements. There
was not another man in the room who doubted
Mr M‘Carthy’s word, and who was not con-
vinced that his report of what had occurred

Gl : d hi 1f -
no prick of reproach. 1 say then that, having re- | N Silndstong, an et e

rate. Having finished his statement of the
interview, Mr M‘Carthy then said—

I do think that Mr Parnell has made too little
of the error committed by keeping private till
now the conversation between him and Mr Glad-
stone at Hawarden.

Mr Parnell—I am perfectly willing to admit
that I was to blame in that, but I am glad I hawve
told it all now before the mischief was done.

Mr M‘Carthy—I only give my view now as to
what I think our Irish leader should have done.
You possessed a secret almost vital to the cause
of your country. Supposing it were so, were you
to go about the world with this secret at your
heart and to see your party and your country
sliding down to this precipice, and because you
had taken a pledge of privacy to say you could
not diselose it ? That is a pledge I could not have
accepted on any consideration whatever. But
suppose I had accepted it, and was bound in tha#

| terrible silence, I was not bound to go on the

platform and commend Mr Gladstone. I was not
bound to allow my countrymen here and in Sco-
land and in Ireland, as well as in America and
Australia, to go about glorifying Mr Gladstone.
while I knew in my heart of hearts that
Mr Gladstone’s purpose was, if he could,
to betray the Irish cause and Irish people.
But supposing I had felt that terrible bond of
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silence, that seal as tigid as the seal of the con-
fessiona! itself, pressing on me, would I have
broken the seal of confession for the sake of pub-
lishing a manifesto under any conceivable condi-
tion of public affairs? that agreement was
ever to be known the time of making it known
was when it might have lieen of fgrea.t service by
warning Irishmen against false friends, and not
at a moment when, after concealing it so long
from the party, a manifesto was sprung upon the
party and country. Speaking for myself, the
whole transaction seems to me to have betrayed
from the beginning a vital error of judgment.

Mr Parnell—“ Hear, hear.”

Mr M‘Carthy—Many of the remarks about
small inconsistencies are not worth serious and
solemn consideration; but I think that was
an inconsistency which, in my mind, imperilled,

and must always imperil, your leadership and |

work. I think some of us should have known
something about it. That secret, borne about so
long, and revealed at the wrong time, does so
wealren one’s confidence in the judgment of our
leader that I cannot see any hope, if the present
arrangement of the party should last, that the
cause of the country is to be served and saved.

Mr John O’Connor was called on when Mr
M ‘Carthy finished, and proclaimed—

That to depose Mr Parnell would be to step
down from the proud position of anancient nation
and become the mere tail of an English party, to
be wagged by the will of its head.

Then came Mr O’Hanlon, in a speech lasting
some twenty minutes, enriched by such gems
of eloquence as, “ Were we going to throw over
ourleader to be eaten up by English worms !”

ANOTHER REDMOND PLEDGE.

Mr William Redmond followed, and imitated
his brother by adding solemnly a supplemen-
tary pledge. He said—

Though I intend to vote for Mr Parnell’s
leadership, I consider, as I believe every member
of the Party considers, that he is bound by his
p.edge to vote and act with the majority of the
Irish Party. That pledge, so far as I am con-
cerned, shall be kept, and if I find I am not able
at any time to act in accordance with the ex-
pressed wish of the majority of my comrades and
colleagues, I shall place my resignation in-

stantly in the hands of the new leader, whoever
he may be.

DR. KENNY'S EXCITEMENT.
Dr Kenny was the next speaker. He
began by announcing that the room was

fall of voices orying out—“ Give me the .

 Sip? | Messrs Flynn, Leamy, Webb, and Justio

said he, addressing Mr Parnell, “the whole |

dagger, I will do the deed.”
cuestion is hunger for your blood.” * No,”
troke in Mr - Edward Harrington, “ they
want to eut his throat.” = This was strongly
resented by the majority of the party,

and a point of order was raised over

it. But Mr Parnell declined to notice it.
Mr David Sheehy then rose, and in a very
able speech he appealed to Mr Parnell
to retire from the chair, for even during
the present session, and not imperil and
destroy the hopes of the evicted tenants. Mr
Conway followed, and was coarse and offensive
to his colleagues.

MR. ENOX'S SPEECH.

Late in the evening Mr Knox rose, and
there was much curiosity to hear him, as he
had not been heard in the House by many of
his friends. The new member fully justified
the expectations formed of him. He said:—

I feel bound to say, as one who does not pro-
fess the same religion as the majority of the
Irish race, that I think the way the purest of
existing nations in domestic' relations have been
treated in this matter gives them just cause
for well-grounded complaint. I think that, if
there were no other argument against your
continued leadership of the party, the fact that
you have ventured to charge Mr Sexton, Mr
Healy, and Mr Arthur O’Connor with a want of
integrity and independence is sufficient reason
for passing the resolution, Do you go further?
Is John Dillon a traitor to Ireland? Is William
O’Brien a traitor to Ireland ?

Mr Parnell (In a passionate voice)—I don’t
recognize your right to ask me any question.

Mr Knox—We have for the present to address
the chair. o

Mr Parnell—You are not entifled to ask a
question of the chair except on a point of order.

Mr Knozx—Well, I will change the form of my
speech. I ask those who are opposed to the
views I have tried calmly to express: Are
John Dillon and William O’Brien traitors to the
cause of Ireland ? .

Mr Parnell—If your predecessor in the repre-
sentation of Cavan, Mr Biggar, was in your
place, I would venture to answer that question ;
but I won’t answer you.

Mr Knox—Mr Parnell, the voice of the dead
cannot be heard here, but if he were here, I
feel confident he would stand by those who are
trying to get you to serve Ireland in what may
be her supremest hour of trial.

The discussion was carried on by Dr
Fitzgerald (the gentleman at whose house
manifesto was composed), who said: “ With
regret he had to announce that he only
shook hands with Mr Parnell six times”

Huntly M‘Carthy spoke without any incidents
occurring.
MR. HENRY CAMPBELL § INSOLENCE.
Mr Chance then rose, and said that,
Mr Parnell in his manifesto had stated that
the independence of a section of the Irish
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Party had been sapped and destroyed by the
wire-pullers of the Liberal Party. It, there-
fore, appeared to him that under Mr Par-
nell’s leadership, the party could not include
in its ranks such men as William O’Brien,
John Dillon, Thomas Sexton, Justin M‘Carthy,
Arthur O’Connor, and so many other men.
Here there were loud cries of “Chance,
Chance,” from My E Harrington and Dr
Fitzgerald. “No,” said Mr Chance, “I am
not a prominent man, nor one of the debaters.”
“You are,” said Mr Henry Campbell, in a
most insulting tone, “a dishonest member !’
There were angry cries of “Oh, oh!” and
« withdraw, withdraw,” at this, whilst Mr
Parnell’s followers boisterously applauded.
Mr Healy rose and, addressing Mr Parnell,
said—

I rige to apoint of order. The chair has heard

from a gentleman next it the statement that a
member is dishonest.

1
|

Mr Campbell—I know he is a dishonest man— |

for this reason, he has, sir, been intriguing and
wirepulling against your leadership in Kilkenny
for the past few days. (‘°Oh, oh!”)

Mr Parnell—I think, Mr Campbell, you should
withdraw the expression. (Hear, hear).

Mr Campbell—I will not withdraw.

Mr Chance—If you will allow me [ will pass
over that ohservation.

Several 1 shouts of *‘ withdraw.”

Mr Campbell—Inobedience to the general views
of my friends, and out of respect to the great
leader of this party, I shall withdraw it, but
only on this ground.

THE ADJOURNMENT MOVED AT MIDNIGHT.

The meeting had now lasted for nearly
eleven hours. It was just approaching mid-

night, and there was not the slightest pros- |

pect that a division on Colonel Nolan’s amend-
ment would be taken that night. Obstruction
was the watchword of the Parnellites. Time,
they boasted, was on their side, and they
would, if necessary, sit there for a month be-
fore they would allow a hostile vote against
M7z Parnell to be carried. Just at midnight
an adjournment of the debate was moved.

My Parnell (rising)—The question is that this
debate be now adjourned. As many as are of
opinion say ‘“ Aye”’ (cries of ‘“ Aye’”). I declare
the ** Ayes’ have it.

Mr T Healy and others—The ‘“ Noes’’ have it.
You did not put it to the *“ Noes.”

Mr Parnell here rose as if about to leave the
chair, and moved away a few feet from it towards
the door.

Mz T. Healy—I move that Mr M‘Carthy do take
the chair (loud cheers and counter cheers).

Mr Parnell (hotly and moving to the table)—1
have not left it yet.

Mr Healy—Then put the question.

Mr Parnell—I have put the question.

Mr Healy—You have not.

Mr Parnell (excitedly)—I am not going to hava
mi[ruling challenged by Mr Timothy Healy.

r Condon and Mr Harrington stated that Mr
Parnell had not called for the voices of the
*“ Noes,”” and

Mz Parnell then putit to the meeting. and there
being a majority in favour of continuing the de-
bate, he so declared it.

\

THE REPORT BUREKED BY THE “ FREEMAN.”

This was a very exciting and interesting
incident; but the report of it, which would
have shown Mr Parnell’s *“management.”
was burked by the Freeman into the condensed
form given above. The chairman’s object in
refusing to put the “Noes™ was to prevent a
division which would have tested his strength
on the first day, and this he specially wished
to avoid, having hopes that he could still cap-

ture some opponents who, if allowed
o vote in a division which would
inevitably have followed the line of

cleavage in the Party, would consider theme
selves committed to a particular side,
A contradiction from ome of his own sup-
porters (Mr E. Harrington) obliged him to
resume the chair, and re-put the question,
when he was driven to ask his followers,
in order to prevent a division, not to chal-
lenge his ruling that the ‘ Noes™ had it.
So the motion to adjourn which he de-
clared the “ Ayes” had, a moment before, he
was now obliged to rule was unanimously ne-
gatived ! This incident—though practically
suppressed in the Freeman—had a most im-
portant effect on the tone of Mr Parnell’s ope
ponents thenceforward. They now regarded
him as ready to go almost te any length te
save his position. Judged from a Parliamen-
tary standpoint (especially considering his
promise to rule everything strictly on House
of Commons lines) action of this kind, by =
chairman, was unprecedented; and here,
where the chairmanship itself was under
discussion, the bitterness of the situation was
greatly increased. Filled with reflections on
this incident and the probabilities it pointed
to, the majority soon afterwards consented to
a second motion of adjournment.
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So ended the first day of the public
proceedings in Room 15.

THE SECOND DAY.

The second day’s debate opened at moon
on Tuesday. Mr Parnell was the first
member to enter the room, and immediately
500k the chair. Those who had mastered the
report of the proceedings in the morning
sapers (for the Freeman had farmed out at a
huge sum its exclusive privilege of supplying
a report to the Press Association), saw that
the reports were being “ doctored.” It was
noticed during the previous day that Mr
Parnell had been supplied with the draft of
his speech as soon as it was written out, and
he was observed while minor speakers were
talking, to be carefully going over and * cor-
recting ” it page by page.

DOCTORING THE REPORTS.

He had for instance called Mr Glad-

stone “a garrulous old man,” and this

phrase, with many others equally offen-
struck out |

sive and significant, he
of the manuscript. They never appeared
in the press. This, coupled with the writings
of the Freeman, showed his opponents the ter-
rible struggle that lay before them at home
with a once-trusted leader, abetted by the
chief National daily paper in Ireland, in full
assault against the unity of the Party.
At the opening of the second day’s proceed-
ings, hours were consumed in_the reading of
the “machined” resolutions, and Mr William
Field, of Blackrock, figured as the eaptain of

several stage armies all “solid for the chief.” |

THE AMERICAN DELEGATES MANIFESTO.

A long discussion arose over the manifesto
from the Irish delegates in America. Ulti-
mately. Mr Parnell was obliged to ask Mr
Henry Campbell to read their pronouncement.
In the middle of it the chairman, on
the alert for every chance to create a diver
sion, called attention to a passage where the
delegates said :—

_ 8o painfully alive were we to all that might be
involved in the lossof such a leader that we
eagerly co-operated with our colleagues in every
effort to retain his influence in our councils.’”

On this he asked :—
I wish to know whether that refers to communi-

cations made to them since the issue of Mr Glad-
stone’s demand for my resignation or before it.

!

| There have been statements made that communi-

| cations have been made to Mr Dillon—communi-
cations independently of those sanctioned by the

. meoting of the Party,and I think we ought to

| have all these communications before us.

| THE MESSAGES TO AMERICA.

This, of course, led to the wished-for con-
troversy, which, had the majority declined en-
| tering into, would have been still more misre-
. presented in Ireland than it was. At the
- meeting on Wednesday, November 26, it was

decided that the whips,in conjunction with
| Mr Barry and Dr Commins, as the mover and
| seconder of the resolution of that day, should
i send a message to America. Mr Power, the
|

late senior whip, delayed doing doing so, and,
being reminded by Mr Barry, Mr Power then
drafted the following telegram :—

Meeting adjourned till Monday. ‘Sexton,
M‘Carthy, Arthur O’Connor, Barry, Commins,
Sheehy, Iiickson,Webb, Flynn spoke in favour of
Parnell’s reconsidering position. Colonel Nolan,

| Blane, Conway, W. Macdonald, Huntly M‘Carthy,
and Dr Kenny supported Parnell.

Mr John Barry explained that Mr Richard
Power handed him the message in the lobby
and left him. Mr Barry then, with Dr
Commins, after waiting over an hour
for his return, sent the above cablegram
to Mr Gill, Fifth Avenue tel, New
York. This appeared a very simple explana-
tion of the matter, but in the middle of the
dispute Mr Campbell jumped up by Mr Paz-
nell’s side and, in a loud voice, said, ad-
dressing Mr Barry (who sat at the end of
the room, and was just then speaking to Dr
Commins and Mr Chance)

I rise to strongly support the argument put for-
ward against these infamous proceedings on the
part of the caucus in the corner (cheers, and cries
SE*1Oh 1)

Mr Barry—I rise to order.

The Chairman—What is your point of order ?

Mr Barry—Mr Campbell pointed his hand to
this part of the house, and spoke of the infamous
caucus in the corner. I respectfully submit that
is not in order

Mr Parnell —Fhe country will have to decide as
to your proceedings (cheers). I shall confirm Mr
Campbell’s words if necessary (cheers).

~ Mxr Barry—More shame for you.

AN EXCITED OUTBURST FROM MR CAMPBELL.
The secretary, being thus encouraged, went
on to declare in defiant tones—

Ilook upon it as the most infamous thing that .
has ever happened befors the Irish people that
your colleagues, who ought te have supported you
| and stood by you, and shewn . ou fair play in a
| fair fight. that they shounld have some behind your

.
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back and wire-pulled. telegraphed, done every-
thing chat was infamous to mislead our colleagues
in Ameriea as to the position which you still hold
in this Party. If I had known, for one, that that
‘telegram was about to be despatched, I should
have insisted upon rising at this board to tell the
people whom I represent, and to tell the Irish
people the world over, that I was with you, so
that my colleagues in America, humble though I
might be, should know that I had not deserted
the man who had never deserted the Irish cause.
I brand as infamous the action of colleagues who
would thus go behind their backs and try to cut
your throat before the Irish people.

This extraordinary outburst about the
simple terms of a despatch which it was un-
animously agreed should be sent, and which
contained a colourless statement of facts
drawn by the hand of Mr R Power, a
leading supporter of the Chairman, was
taken to show the state of Mr Parnell’s mind,
filtered through the secretary. The debate
became heated, and charges and counter-
charges as to reports of private meetings being
called by individuals and as to the messages
sent to the delegates in America were made.

COMING BACK TO THE POINT.

After an hour’s wrangling Mr Healy at-
tempted to bring the discussion back to the
main issue. He said:—

I rise to apoint of order. I askif the chair
will be good enough to inform me what is the
question before the meeting ?

Mr Edward Harrington : No, no.

Mr Parnell : A d's:cssion has been opened by
Mr Barry on the question of communications with
the delegates’'in America, and the discussion will
have to proceed to its end.

Mr T M Healy : Another piece of pure obstrue-
tion (cheers).

Mr Parnell (vehemently): I think that is a
most insolent and impertinent observation—

cries of “* Oh, oh! ")

Mr Barry: I rise.

Mr Parnell : Sit down, Mr Barry, please.
. Mr Barry : Allow me.

My Parneli : I will not allow you, sir.

Mr Healy appealed to his friends not to con-
tinue the discussion. It is evident (he said) and
patent to every man who will apply his mind to
this question, and not allow himself to be in-
fluenced by this kindof red herring which has
been drawn across our path, that Mr Parnell
asked the delegates tosuspend their judgment

ﬁending the issue of his manifesto, and that then |

aving that manifesto before them they state
they ecame to their comclusion upon that mani-
festo, and upon the merits of the case put for-

ward therein by Mr Parnell.
Mr Healy’s appeal proved unsuccessful, and
is onthe sending of telegrams to
iea was again resumed. This being ex-

hausted, Mr Par._ .l called on Mr Campbell
to go on with the reading of letters and tele-
grams. This occupied considerable time, and
at length the debate was resumed and Mr
James O’Kelly was called upon.

MR O’KELLY MAKES A PLEDGE.

He delivered a panegyric onthe leadership of
Mr Parnell, during which he was asked—
“What about the party pledge 7 « As for the
party pledge,” said Mr O’Kelly, “if I am
beaten, I shall resign my seat. I will do
nothing in this party which is not strictly
honourable.” Like the Redmonds, however, the
member for North Roscommon has not
membered these words.

MR. ARTHUR O'CONNOR ON THE RE-ELECTION
OF MR. PARNELL.

| Mr Arthur O’Connor succeeded Mr O’Kelly,

| and delivered one of the most telling spesches

| In the course of it he said—

re-

Gentlemen, on that blackand dismal day within
the last three weeks when the result of the pro-

| geedings in the Divorce Court were made known
| I felt that for me at least, and, 1 believe, for Ire-
land, the continuation of Mr Parnell as chair-
~man of this party was impossible. I speak for
myself, and I say that from that moment Mr

; Parnell is an impossible leader; and I believed

|

| tion, without a compromise or qualification, tint

then, and I believe now that Mr Parnell is ap
impossible leader for the people of my race.

en on Tuesday, entering this room, I found
a resolution in course of proposition I

was, I admit, ashamed, overwhelmed,
and confused. (Hear, hear, and *Oh!?)
I arrived at the conclusion that it -must

have been through some understanding or
another. I considered myself in the position of
one of the Old Guard of Napoleon giving a part-
ing salute.

Mr E Harrington—You won’t vide off with that

(eounter cheering)—a most insolent and imperti- | plea here.

nent observation (renewed cheering, and loud |

. Mr A O'Connor—After that meeting, when !
found myself in consultation with ofber viem-
bers of the party, I did declare, witheat hesita-

I considered that the vote of that aiternoen
should be reconsidered, and hefore

knew of Mr Gladstone’s letter, beiore, I helieve,
any member of this party knew of Mr Glad-
stone’s letter I had alresdy wurged upen
some of my colleagues the necessity of taking
immediate action, so that the character zad
dignity of this party might be preserved. and
that we might not be infinenced by the opinion of
any English statesman or party Many questions
have been raised in the course of tms dabate
which are beside the real point. ‘L'he re2l iszue
before us is simple. We all undersisnd it.
There is no shirking. I appeal to the moating to
come to a clear and definite decision on tha real
issue. In the meantime, whatever motion is pat
from the chair, T shall so vote as to show, in my
opinion. at least, that the chairmanship of M=
Parnell should be determined. When the deci-
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sion of the party is ascerfained, if it is found to
be adverse to what I conceive to be called for by
the painful situation which we are in, I shall at
once surrender to my constituents the trust they
have committed to me, and I shall surrender it
uncompromised.

Mr W J Corbet then read out a speech from a
written manuscript, in which he declared that
the movement against Mr Parnell was a plot
hatched by the .enemies of Ireland. Sir
Thomas Esmonde expressed his concurrence
in Mr Arthur O’Connor’s sentiments, and his
opinion that Mr Parnell’s leadership would no
longer be serviceable to Ireland.

MR. POWER SUPPORTS THE ADMINISTRATION.

Then came the late Mr Richard Power,
who in effect said that he had sup-
ported Mr Butt against Mr Parnell,
and after his death had supported Mr Shaw,
and voted against Mr Parnell at his original
election; that he had mnever opposed any
leader, and would support the present one.

Mr Crilly then made a short but affecting
and effective speech against Mr Parnell, which
concluded as follows :—

1t is a'most breaking my heart’s strings to give
the vote I am going to give. I came into this
Party animated by the one holy, burning,ambition
to serve the cause of Ireland. I will serve her
until I die. And although I am voting against
you to-night I am voting for the liberty of Ire-
land.

MR. M. 5. KENNY’S SPEECH.

Mr M J Kenny followed, and was regarded
as having made one of the very best speeches
of the whole debate. Addressing the chair-
man, he said :(—

Mr Parnell, 1 believe your manifesto has ren-
dered it perfectly impossible for Mr Gladstone,
Sir William Harcourt, or Mr Morley on any
future day to enter into cordial relations with
you. Ishould like to know if any members of
this Party contemplate a future alliance with the
Tory Party (hear, hear) ?

Mr E Harrington—If it serves our purposes,

yes.

Mr M J Kenny—For my part I decline to throw
Ireland back for ten or twenty years in order that
an alliance might be formed with the Tory Party,
which might break down at a oritical moment, as
it is sought to break down our alliance now.

SPEECH OF A VETERAN HILLSIDER.

Mr J F X O’Brien, who made one of the
most outspoken speeches in the debate, then
sald— ;

Mr O’Kelly told us that we have nothing to
hope from the Liberal Party. Then what was the

meaning of our alliance with the Liberal Party
for the past five years? Wasitasham? Mr

{
T O’Kelly also said we gave ourselves away some

years ago to the Tory Party. Under whose leader-
ship did we do that? It was also said that we
gave ourselves away to the Liberals. Under
whose leaderszhip did we do that? Mr O’Kelly
also referred to the waning influence of the Irish
in America. Mr Eugene Kelly, of New York,
said that commenced after the proceedings in the
Divorce Court.

Mr Parnell—He said nothing of the sort.

Mr J F X O’Brien—Then, if he didn’t, it wounld
have been a very becoming thing tor him to say
(cheers). :

Mr Parnell—Why didn’t you say it on Tuesday,
gir(cheers)?

Mr O’Brien—On the question of leadership I
wish to say that we have had very little leader-
ship of any kind from Mr Parnell during the past
five years (hear, hear). _As for me, after the
Divorce Court ezpose, came to the con-
clusion that your continued leadership was in-
tolerable and a disgrace. In re-electing you last
Tuesday we were only paying you a compliment,
for we thought you intended to resign. Astothe
Hawarden meeting, I don’t think that the people
of Ireland will be satisfied with your explanation.
You say you knew that Mr Gladstone had become
false to us.

Mr Parnell (loudly)—I did not say he had be-
come false to you.

Mr O’Brien—I will allow the people of Ireland
t0 think about that for themselves, Mr Parnell.
You kept silence on that treachery, and left your
colleagues under the impression that all was safe
to go about the country praising Mr Gladstone.
Ileave you, Mr Parnell, to convince the people of
Ireland of the honesty of your part in that grave
matter. For myself, this is the most anxious
moment of my political life of over forty years.
Twenty-three years ago I stood face to face with
Judge Keogh in the dock at Cork. I can tell you
that on that occassion my pulse was not stirred
in the slightest. I felt as calm as if I was sleep-
ing in my bed at that moment. I cannot say that
now. This is the most wretched moment of my
life, for I see shattered by you, who brought us
to a splendid position, all the hopes of Ireland.
It now depends on you whether the people of
Ireland shall continue to remember the name of
¢ Parnell” with love and gratitude.

MR. DALTON ON AUSTRALIA.

Then followed Mr James Dalton, who, until
Mr John Redmond arrived from Ireland, had
been strongly against Mr Parnell, and signed
some of the requisitions. He claimed to re-
present Irish-Australian opinion, and speaking
in its name, he said he declined to give his
vote for the selling of the Irish leader to an
English party for any price whatever. Follow-
ing him came Mr Harrison. He had also
signed one of the requisitions agamst Mr
Parnell. He described himself as *the
youngest and most obscure member of the
party,” and then told his colleagues
that they would be insane and stupid, and
guilty of egregious folly to abandon the best
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a1d greatest leader the Irish people ever had

for vain and illusory pledges from Mr Glad-

stone. Since this, Mr Harrison is reported to

have made a epeech in Chicago in which he

said, “the men who oppose Mr Parnell in Ire-

land to-day are traitors, boors, and cowards.”
CLOSING SPEECHES.

Following Mr Harrison came Mr James Tuite,
who spoke under. great emotion. He directly
addressed himself to the chairman, and ina
firm, unfaltering voice said that although it
was with great pain that he came to a deci-
sion to vote against Mr Parnell’s leadership,
yet, in the interests of Ireland, he felt bound
to do so. Messrs P J O’Brien, Condon, Jordan,
and Kilbride, ther made emphatic protests
against Mr Parnell continuing in the
chair, and Mr Hayden and Mr Blane
were heard contra, the latter expounding
certain theological, doctrinal, and moral
views on the law of divorce. This was the

end.
BEFORE THE DIVISION.

All who could speak on Mr Parnell’s
side had spoken, and, no one else rising,
the division on Colonel Nolan’s amendment
was taken about midnight. It was now
pretty well known how the voting would
be. Mr Parnell stood up. He was cool and
collected, having, as the time wonre on, gra-
dually mastered himself and regained his
self-control. He realised that the majority
desired to be moderate in action and would
not lend themselves to any violence or trick
of “which at first he seemed apprehen-
sive. The debate at the end dragged
very wearily—the Parnellites all exhausting
themselves according to instructions. One of
the last speakers, however, was Mr Jordan,
who had or the Tuesday of his re-election
stoutly raised his voice against Mr Parnell
retaining the chair.

MR PARNELL’S GRIM JOKE.

When Mr Jordan rose, Mr Parnell
yawningly bent over to Mr Sexton and mur-
mured with audacious humour, “I say, Sex-
ton, are you fellows going to keep this thing
up all night!” Mr Sexton whispered the
grim pleasantry to Mr Healy, who sat next
him, and the dry joke passed round the long

s B

horse-shoe table as the dregs of the
debate were being poured out.
HOW THE QUESTION WAS PUT,

The majority were extremely anxious lest
the speaking should be dropped suddenly,
so as to enable a division to be snatched
while their members (who were passing in
and out on various duties during the two days)
might be absent from the room. On the
whip, Mr Richard Power, being communi-
cated with, however, he stated that Mr Par-
nell “ would give 10 minutes’ law” to bring up
absentees, as he, too,.- feared that some
of his own friends might be belated. A
brief interval, therefore, elapsed after the
speaking had concluded until it was known to
the managers on both sides that “all the men
were in.” The division was taken after mid-
night. The large room was lighted, not by
gas, but by lamps and candles placed on the
tables, not for the general illuminating of the
room, but for the purpose of reading and
writing. Those at the end of the room could
scarcely see Mr Parnell’s features as he rose
to put the question, for all except the tables
was in shadow. Mr Parnell took a printed list
of the Party in his hand, and without betray-
ing the slightest excitement, said, in a firm
voice : “I shall now put the amendment,”and
having read it out, cried. “All who are in
favour of it will say * Aye.”” There was a tre-
mendous ringing “ Aye” from his friends. It
seemed as if the twenty-nine responses were the
voices of as many hundreds. “Those on the
contrary,” said Mr Parnell, “will say ‘No.’*
The “ No!” rolled back loud and long,
starfling in its fierceness and de-
fiance. The parting of the ways had
come. Old friends and trusty colleagues
who fought together during many a trying
hour and for many a long year, now glared
across the table at each other.

““STRICT PARLIAMENTARY FORM.”

“Ithink the ayes have it,” said Mr Pa_mell,
| ruling to the last in his own favour, though

well knowing the inevitable division would
denial to this last
piece of “ chairmanship.” It was all in
“satrict Parliamentary form.” A thundering
| shout hurled back, “the noes have it.”

| immediately give
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“Well,” said he, “I will call out the names
alphabetically, and each gentleman will
answer aye orno as his name is called.” So he
called each name on the roll, stooping over
the desk to get the light on his list, while eager
partisans on both sides ticked the names off and
numbered them. When the Chairman sang
out his own name, *“ Parnell,” and responded,
“ Aye,” his henchmen loudly cheered. But
this was the only manifestation, a natural one
enough, during or after the division. Of
course, according to “strict Parliamentary
form,” the Chairman or Speaker never votes,
except ‘n case of a tie.
The following was the result :—
For THE AMENDMENT—29.

Blane Harrison O’Connor, John
Byrne Kenny, Dr O’Hanlon
Conway Leamy O’Kelly
Corbet Macdonald, WA Parnell
Clancy M‘Carthy,J H Power, R
Campbell M‘Kenna, SirJ Quinn
Dalton Mahony Redmond, J
Fitzgerald Maguire Redmond, W
Harrington. i1 Nolan, Colonel Sheil, E
Hayden Nolan, Joseph

AGAINST—44.
Abraham Healy, M O’Keeffe
Barry Jordan O’Brien, J F
Chance Kilbride Pinkerton
Crilly Kenny, M J Power, P J
Condon Knox Reynolds
Cox Lane Roche
Commins MacNeill Sexton
Deasy M‘Donald, P Sullivan, D
Dickson M‘Cartan Sheehan
Hsmonde M‘Carthy. Justin Stack
foley Murphy, W H Sheehy
Hinucane Morrogh Tanner
Flynn Molloy Tuite
Fox O’Connor, A ‘Webb
Healy, T M O’Brien, PJ

A PAINFUL SILENCE.

Mz Parnell then totted up the numbers,
and said, coldly, “I find that the noes
are 44 and the ayes 29, so [ declare

. the noes have it by a- majority of 15.” The
annoucement of the numbers was received
with almost a painful silence. Not a whisper
was heard in the room. The chairman was
the first to break the stillness by suggesting
(it was then very late) that it would be well
to adjourn until next day. This was promptly
agreed to, and the meeting broke up.

AFTER THE DIVISION.

The lobby of the House was boiling over
with excitement, waiting the result of the divi-
sion, for all interest had fled from the business

l
. of Parliament proper, and Liberals and Tories

' alike talked and thought of nothing but the
debate in Room 15. Said Mr Goschen, the
Chancellor of the Exchequer, to Mr John
! Morley—“It was the most perfect debate
I ever read.”

It was in accordance with Mr Parnell’s cha-
racter that he should affect to think lightly

- of the fact that a great majority of his col-

- leagues had voted against his leadership. On
,‘ leaving Committee Room No 15 that evening
| he expressed himself to some Pressmen as
| “more than satisfied with the result of the

division.” = He clearly considered it was only
| the beginning of the struggle. After the

division he canvassed members who had voted

against him to consider the question still
_ further and to vote for him the next time. He
| used to say to his supporters, “ We have only
to get back eight men to have a majority,”
and all his energies were now strained to this
end and to start an issue to decompose the
majority against him,

THE CLANCY COMPROMISE.

The next day (Wednesday) Mr Parnell’s
friends sprung a fresh amendment. It
became afterwards known as “the Clancy
compromise.”

For some days Mr Clancy had been in an
awkward position, and having voted for
Colonel Nolan’s amendment, owing to pri-
vate pressure, he felt that he had done

enough. But Mr Parnell with ‘great
dexterity, suiting the motion to the
man, fathered on him what Mr Sexton

| afterwards described as ““a trap-door amend-
i ment.” The proceedings commenced with Mr
| Henry Campbell reading the usual supply of
. telegrams in favour of Mr Parnell, to which
no one now paid the smallest dttention. Then
the chairman called Mr Clancy, who said—
‘I hope I have found the way out of the terrible
difficulty in which we are placed—and at all
events I hope for a calm and impartial considera-
tion of the proposal which I have to make., I
must confess that I was staggered by Mr Glad-
stone’s letter. I was staggered also by its re-
sults. Ifeel that a great deal of harm has been
done, and that possibly the Home Rule cause

may be injured by Mr Parnell’s retention of the
leadership.

But having admitted so much, he de-
clared that his “unapproachable leader was
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the most perfect embodiment since the timeof
Hugh O’Neill, of the immortal spirit of Irish

Nationality!” and the following then moved l

amendment—

That, in view of the difference of opinion that |

has arisen between Mr Gladstone and Mr Parnell
as to the aceuracy of Mr Parnell’s recollection of
the suggestions offered at Hawarden in reference
to suggested changes in and departures from the
Home Rule Bill of 1886 on the subject of the con-
trol of the Constabulary and the settlement of the
Land Question, the Whips of the Party be in-
structed to obtain from Mr Gladstone, Mr John
Morley, and Sir William Harcourtfor the informa-
tion of the Party, before any further considera-
tion of the question, what their views are with re-
gard to these two vital points.

IN THE CLOUDS.

The cleverness of this consisted 1n the fact
that it had nothing to say to the question of
the chairmanship, but having been devised by
the chairman, it would, of course, be ruled by
him to be strictly relevant. It put Mr
Parnell’s opponents. if they rejected it, in
the position of having it said of them that
they rejected a plan to take “assurances”
from the Liberals, and flung themselves
blindly into their arms, while if they accepted
the motion, it left open the question how the
satisfactoriness of these assurances was to be
determined, supposing them to be given, and
involved, while they were being sought for,
a long delay and adjournment, and a further
wrangle on their character afterwards
if they were given, or over their refusal
if they were not. Meantime the “leadership”
guestion which the party had met to settle
was hung up away in the clouds.

PERTINENT QUESTIONS.

Mr Parnell was out when Mr Clancy concluded
and Mr Healy started the point as to who was
to judge the satisfactoriness of the Liberal
assurances if they were aecorded. Mr Sexton
asked would Mr Parnell resign if the party
declared them satisfactory. Mr Redmond
said he would. Mr Claney said Mr Parnell
should be sent for, as the matter had now as-
sumed great gravity. Mr Parnell then en-
tered, and resumed the chair (which in his
temporary abstence used to be filled by either
Mr Justin M<Carthy or Mr R. Power). Mr
Healy proposed that this portion of the pro-
ceedings, involving the futurs of Home Rule,
chould mot be given to the Press at present,

| but merely noted by the reporters, who might
' remain. This was agreed to. There seemed
great hope that an amicable termination of
the conflict could be arranged, and in view
of the desperate struggle which mustresult—
the risks to the evicted, the destruction of the
American mission, the locking up of the Paris
Funds—a breathless anxiety prevailed at this
juncture, when Mr Sexton rose to deal with the
proposal.
MR SEXTON ON THE CLANCY PROPOSAL.
He said :—

As its language now stands it does not bear im-
mediately or obviously on our proceedings at the
conferences during the week, but Mr Clancy and
Mr Redmond stated that if such communications
were authorised by this party and a reply were
made, and that the reply were found to be satis-
factory, Mr Parnell would voluntarily retire. I
heard that statement with unfeigned gratifica-
tion. It is the first moment I have had during
these terrible days when I seemed to see some
hope, however faint. It enabled me to hope that

| Mr Parnell would put it out of the power of any

one to say that in this crisis he preferred his per-
sonal interests to the interests of his country.
The questions whichI think you might absolutely
determine, and which would enable us to proceed
toan adjournmentuntil twelve o’clock to-morrow,
would be these—firstly, in the event of such
authority being given to communicate, and a
reply being received, who would be the judge of
the satisfactory character of the reply? And as
the communication would be made on the part of
this party, would you, Mr Parnell, be content to
allow the majority of this party, upon their re-
sponsibility to the neople, to determine on ques-
tions upon which our ideas are pretty identical—
to determine whether or not the reply was satis-
factory? And, in the second place. if the reply
were received and the majority of the party de-
termined the reply to be satisfactory, would you
then voluntarily retire from the leadership of the
party ?

Mr Parnell replied amidst intense excite-
ment :—

Mr Sexton asks me a practical questions as to
whether my retirement from the leadershivo of
the party and from public life—(cries of ‘*Not
from public life’’)—would be governed by the
decision of the party, or my own view_ as
to the satisfactory natures of the . replies
of those statesmen to these questions and those
two vital points, as to the control of the Irish
Constabularly and the future powers of the Irish
Parliament. With regard to the land question
I have every belief, and I feel every confidence,
with such an issue as that before the Irish party,
the question as to securing in the future those
two important provisions for an Irish Parliament,
there could be no difference of opinion whatever
between myself and the party as to whether these
further declarations, if given, were satisfactory
or not. That is my belief. Mr Sexton will sec
that heis asking me a very sudden question on a

| very important matter, and that it would be fair

L]
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to give me twenty-four hours, between now and
our meeting at twelve o’clock to-morrow, for the |
consideration of the subject, before giving a
tuller reply.

On the motion of Mr Sexton, the meeting
then stood adjourned until twelve vclock |
next day.

A VISIT TO BRIGHTON.

That night was an anxious one with the
majority of the party. They discussed in
aroups together, and for many hours, the
prospects of peace and reunion. What |
counsel Mr Parnell took before the next
day’s meeting, I am not ina position to state,
but the tradition in the party is that the
source of his returning obstinacy after he
appeared in a yielding mood was due to the
visit he made to Brighton.

A SUBTERFUGE FOUND.

There was a punctual attendance of every
member next day. Mr Parnell was one of tho
earliest to arrive. Anxiety was wvisibly felt
in every quarter. There was no roading of
the bogus resolutions and got-up telegrams
that morning. Both sides expected an imme-
diate declaration from Mr Parnell, and he did
not indeed leave them very long in doubt.
He said with an air of nonchalance—

Well, gentlemen. the consideration which *
have been able to give this most important mat-
ter has been assisted by a consultation with my
friends, and I may say, in the first place that Mx
Sexton will be the first to admit that he asks us
to some extent to enlarge the scope of the amend-
ment as it was put before the meeting by Mr
Clancy. He asks me to state that, in the event
of the information to be obtained from Mr Glad-
stone, Mr Morley, and Sir William Harcourt;
being satisfactory to the party, that Ishould con-
sider then that the question of the chairmanship
had been determined. I wish to show him in
what way that question enlarges the resolution
or the amendment. The amendment requires
that we are to ascertain before any further con-
sideration of this question, that is, of the chair-
manship, the views of Mr. Morley, and Sir Wm
Harcourt for the information of the party.
With regird to these two vital points Mr Sexton
asks me,before we have obtained this information,
to bind myself practically to accept, without any
further consideration of the question.the definite
judgmentof the party upon the matter. Now I
wish to say with regard to that proposal at once
that I, having placed myself in the hands of my
friends in regard to this matter at the commence-
ment, I could not agree to surrender my responr-
sibility, or any part of my responsibility.

A MERF, RED HERRING.
We were, therefore, told that the Clancy

amendment was a mere red herring, for

assurances or no assurances itlwould leave
us as regards the chairmanship exactly where
we were. In the coolest way Mr Parnell
said :—

Now, gentlemen, in order to facilitate your
coming to a conclusion, I have drafted a resolu-
tion, which, if you wish and think proper, I will
move—

““That, in the opinion of the Irish Parliamen-
tary Party, no Home Rule Bill will be satisfac-
tory or acceptable to the Irish people which will
not confer the immediate control of the Irish
police by the Executive responsible to the Irish
Parliament ; and, secondly,whichdoes not confer

| upon the Irish Parliament full power to decl with
| the Land question.”

He then, in a burst of concentrated passion.
denounced Mr Gladstone as ‘an unrivalled
sophist,” a ¢ garrulous old man.” His party
wildly cheered this, and from the other side
came loud cries of “ Shame!” and “No, a0 !”
“Jf,” said the chairman, * this resolution 13
adopted, I would then further propose the fol-
lowing one :—

““That a sub-committee be appointed by ths
party. consisting of the whips and of five mem-
bers from those who were in a majority. and of
five members from those who were in a minority
on Colonel Nolan’s amendment ; and that to those

-people be entrusted the duty of selecting from

among themselves three delegates from each sido
to seek an interview with Mr Gladstone, Sir Wm.
Harcourt, and Mr Morley, for the purpose of as-
certaining whether their views are in accordance
with the views of the party on those points as
above expressed, and whether they will agree to
embody those views in their Home Rule Bill and
make them vital to the measure.””’

There was a momentary conference between
Messrs Justin M‘Carthy, Sexton, and Healy
when Mr Parnell resumed his seat. It was
felt that he supposed he could trifle with the
Party. “ You get up!” whispeired Mr Sexton,
whereupon Mr Healy rose and delivered one
of the boldest and most eloquent speeches he
ever made.

IR, PARNELL INTERRUPTS FORTY-FOUR
TIMES. )

Many heated scenes and offensive interruj:-
tions occurred during its delivery, but they
only seemed to nerve the member for North
Longford into fresh exertions. The Freema.
report shows that Mr Parnell alone inter-
rupted him no less than 44 times!
That a chairman charged with the duty of
preserving order and conducting debate im-

| partially should continually interrupt, owing
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to his own position being involved, showed the
inconvenience of the conditions under which

the discussion had to be conducted. Mr Healy"
‘ opened by saying— g

I have heard with considerable amazement the
extraordinary speech which has just been deli-
vered. Last night, as I understand, a proposition
was agreed to by acelamation to adjourn this
meeting until to-day, in order that it mightbe de-
termined whether the proposal put forward by Mr
Clancy wasareally bona fide one.

what value we were getting for the acceptance of

such an amendment, and of the time that would:

be consumed in its discussion. We wanted to
know, before we allowed ourselves to enter upon
a prolonged discussion for three or four days
more, or as long as the resistance of my friends
conducting it may endure, what are the exactcon-
ditions under which we are debating the matter
in reference to which Mr Sexton put the very
natural and pregnant question whether if we ac-
cepted the conditions assumed, latent though not
patent, in Mr Clancy’s amendment, that then a
wolden bridge would be found out of this difficulty.
‘What, then, did Mr Sexton propose? And now 1
ask the meeting to observe this. First and fore-
most we were prepared to accept the principle of
Mr Clancy’s amendment, and we were prepared
to stand or fall— s

Mr Parnell—Excuse me, Mr Healy. There
must be something betore the chair.

Mr Healy—There is your speech, and I will |

answer it.

Mr Parnell—I think Mr Clancy’s amendment
should be seconded first.

Mr Campbell—There is mnothing before the
meeting.

Mr Healy—I am before the meeting.

Mr Campbell—I repeat there is nothing before

the meeting. (** Chair.”)

Mr Healy—I am before the chair, and then
continuing, he said—I would invite our friends
on the opposite side, even Mr Campbell,
to show some little sense of discretion.
I was saying when I was inferrupted that
the position we take up was this. Yes, we
are prepared to accept the principle of Mr Clancy’s
amendment—namely, to obtain from the Liberal
party satisfactory assurances—(hear, hear)—on
the two points alleged by Mr. Parnell to be in
question. Assuming, then, that we are willing to
accept the amendment in prineciple, what will
follow? When our whips come back from the
Liberal leaders we wanted to know who was to
determine whether the interview was satis-
factory or not. We put the plain question to
Mr Parnell,and he asked,and it wasa very natural
request, that he should be allowed twenty-four
hours to determine it.

Mr Parnell—I only took twelve hours.

Mr Healy—I am sure we would bevery glad
to have granted you . twenty-four dsys. Mr
Parnell has refused——

Mr Parnell—I have mnot. That is an entire
misrepresentation of my position.

Mr Healy—I am putting the view as your
speech struck me, an I am endeavouring to do so
against a flood of interrupiion.

Mr Parnell —If Mr Healy 15 going to complain
«©f the tone of my speech——

1Ir Healy—T am not going to make any com-

”,.»

Naturally wede- |
sired to know, to use the words of Mr Chairman, |

plaint. I am about to address myself to the

political ingredients of the speech, and not its

tone. Mr Parnell has refused to submit this
| matter to the judgment of his Party.
| Mr Parnell—Not at all. Nothing of the sort.

Mr Healy—And he has proposednew conditions,
We adjourned last night gladly and joyfully in
the hope of peace, on a distinct offer made by us
to.know was Mr Parnell in this matter going to
rely on the judgment of his Party not by 44 votes
to 29, but on the judgment of men including Mr
Richard Power, Dr Kenny, Mr Leamy, Mr Con-
way, and of leading friends on the other side.

Mr Parnell—Certainly, they are all entitled to
judge it just as well as I am.

Mr Healy—I will not notice the interruption
further. Mr Parnell was asked, would he in this
matter accept the judgment of his Party, and i
he will not do so what is the value to us in dis-
cussing Mr Claney's amendment? (Hear, hear).
Are we fools? Are we to spend our time here,
first in elaborating the amendment which on
being accepted is to have no value? And
when we. send our deputies to the Liberals,
and spend weeks, forsooth, deliberating whether
the answer is satisfactory or not, Mr Parnell will,
last as well as first, refuse to retire. *‘ Invainis
the net spread in the sight of any bird.” The
position is this.  There are eighty-six members
of this party ; there are here, I think, seventy-
three, and according to Mr Parnell’s views il
there were seventy-two to one, and that one waz
| Henry Campbell, he would refuse to submit him-
| self to the judgment of his party. Why (said Mr
Healy, does Mr Parnell now wunt Mr Clancy s
smendment withdrawn? Why does he want new
proposals substituted ? .

Mr Parnell—Because you made an additional
proposal yourself in Mr Sexton’s speech not in-
cluded in Mr Clancy’s amendment.

Mr Healy—Precisely, because we wanted to
iknow what we were discussing Mr Clancy’s
amendment for. We wanted to know if we gave
up our opportunities and time in discussing the
amendment, where we were to be when it was
carried. And where are we to be? I will tell
you. First and foremost we are to engage iu a
contention, a necessary contention, as to the
form, verbiage, and substance of the amendment,
having hammered it into some shape upon which
there can be substantial or general agreement.
Then two gentlemen or some authority is to be
appointed to confer with the Liberal leaders.
They are to be the Whips. Mr Power is a sirong
friend of the view held on the other side, and ho
is to be one of the deputation. We are to be
honoured by being allowed to join a representa-
tive. Very well. Then they come back, and this
party has adjourned until to-morrow. and may be
they cannot meet the Liberal statesman, and they
do not come back, say, till Monday. :

Mr Parnell—Hear, hear.

Mr Healy—That falls in entirely with Mr Par-
nell’s view. He cheers it.

Mr Parnell—It falls in with yours, when yon
spoke of twenty-four hours not being sufficient to
settle it (hear,hear). s

Mr Healy—And then when they come pack,
this party is to be re-assembled, and we arc to
re-discuss the entire matter. The judgment of
| these two gentlemen, approaching the question
| from wholly opposite views, is to be debated
| hours and hours, days and days,and we in the
! and are to be exactly wlie.o we were.

Assuming

e AR -
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that Mr Power—and I think it was Mr Deasy who
was suggested from us—agreed, Mr Parnell will
say. '‘ Yes, gentlemen, you are all of opinion
that the assurances of the Liberal Party are
satisfactory, but I have my responsibility.”

Mr Parnell—My declarations on that point waz
distinet and absolute.

straight conduct or straight amswers since last
night? No, sir, Mr Clancy’s amendment is

. before the meeting. On tha! amendment we have

| asked a question, and to that question we

S have
not received that straight answer which it is Mr»

! Parnell’ boast in public life he has always been

i enabled to give.

Mr Healy—*“And I decline to submil to tho

majority.”’ ’
Mr Chairman, continued Mr Healy, either Mr

Parnell is willing to place himself on the basis of |

Mr Clancy’s amendment, in the hands of his
party, or he is not (hear, hear).
has been unable, in the course of eight years’
acquaintance with Mr Gladstone, to get a straight
answer from him, and that his (Mr Parnell’s)
answers are always straight.

Mr Parnell—So they are.

Mr Healy—I will ask him for = straigh’
answer. It is one capable of an affirmative or a
negative. If we agree to send and ask, as Mr
Clancy requests, the Liberal leaders for am
answer on the two questions, will you then sub-
mit to the determination of the majority of the
party as to whether they are satisfactory or not
and if they pronounce them to be satisfactory
will you retire from your position ?

But Mr Parnell was too clever to be en-
srapped, and would go no further than %o
say—

[ have told you that this resolution does no¥
free me from the responsibility, and that I
decline to do anything unless the party assumes
the responsibility which I am willing to yield.

“Do YOU THINKE WE ARE CHILDREN?
Then, answered Mr Healy, amidst tre-
mendous cheering from his friends—-

The majority of the party is willing at once to
assume that vesponsibility, and if you will only
allow Mr Barry’s resolution to be withdrawn,
and allow our resolution—which you refused to
allow to be put on Monday last—to be put now
the party will at once proceed in its executive
responsibility (cheers), What Mr Parnell wants
is that Mr Clancy’s amendment be withdrawn,
and necessarily Mr Barry’s resolution also with-
drawn, because his own resolution eannot come
on until the road is cleared in that way. The
technique of this business is one that we are not
unskilled in. We were taught a lesson in it on
Monday. We were told that Friday next in Mz
Barry’s resolution was Friday last. I don’tknow
what it will be to-morrow, perhaps Friday month.
But I say, in order to enable Mr Parnell’s resolu-
tion to be put forward, there would be no ques-
tion of leadership before the party. Mr Clancy’s
a'nendment and Mr Barry’s resolution are to be
withdrawn, and then, or the question of the chair-
manship being withdrawn, this party would b
engaged in discussing, not the present leadership,
but the prospects of a Home Rule Bill. Do you
think we are children ? No, sir. we are not chil-
dren. And, therefore, I thought it right to stig-
~ matise,  at the opening of these proceed-

ings, as extraordinary the speech to which
we have just listened from the chair.
Qur chairman says Mr (Gladstone is wunable
to give a straight answer. I would like to
know, if this party were allowed to give expres-
sion to it, whether they think we have had

He says that he |

No, we are to be trapped into
the withdrawal of Mr Claney’s amendment, and
necessarily Mr Barry’s proposal, because when
T asked Mr Parnell whether his proposal was to
go as an amendment or & resolution he said &

! resolution.

| porter

Mr Parnell—That is indifferent to me, whether
we have it as an amendment or a resolution.
It simply contains my views on the question
Mr Sexton put to me. I regret you don’t con-
gider it a straight answer butitis my answer, and
upon that answer I will stand or fall before the
country. ‘

Mr Healy—Then you will fall, Mr Parnel! {louc
cheers). And now that both sides have made up
their minds, what is the use of further debatc?
(Cheers and inferruption.) .

Mr Clancy (violently)—Away with him. Away
with him.

Mr John O’Connor—Crucify him. Crucify him
(cries of ** Shame,” and ‘* Oh, oh™).

Mr Condon—I think that is an expression
that should not be made wuse of (hear,
hear). Some of us who have taken part in
this discussion against you, Mr Parnell, have
conducted that discussion in a fair and honour-
able spirit, and, I think, you and the members of
your party should try to induce these gentlemen
to restrain themselves (cheers).

Mr Parnell took no notice, but Mr O’Con-
nor afterwards denied that the Freeman re-
was accurate in attributing the
expression to him, and it is believed that it
was Mr W J Corbett used the words “ Crucify
him.”

MR HEALY QUOTES THE PARTY PLEDGE.
Resuming his speech, Mr Healy proceeded :—

_Iask, then, what is the advantage to us of con-
tinuing this debate? I see none. Itissuggested
that we are going to closure our friends. No, sir; I
propose that we allow them to talk themselves out.
We shall sit here, or a sufficient number of us
shall sit here, and when you have your speeches
delivered we will return and we will vote your de-
position, be it to-day, or to-morrow, or Saturday,
or Sunday—aye, the better the day the better the
deed. We have heard of the uselessness of get-
ting pledges from Mr Gladstone except they are
in writing. Our pledges are all in writing, and
we have bound ourselves by a solemn obligation
—including our chairman—to sit, act, and vote
with the majority of this party—(cheers)—and
now the hillside men are to be appealed to. T
tell our chairman that we entertained the view
that we were engagedinthose debatesonthe basis
that we were dealing with comrades and friends
—with men bound by the solemn pledge to submit
to the judgment of this party.

Mr Parnell—Hear, hear. Undoubtedly.

Mr Healy—And we have now ascertained, £s
plainly as words can speak them, that our debates
areamere consumption of time, because when they
are terminated thereis to be no respect paid to our

'i
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decision (hear.hear). We will come to a deci-
sion sooner or later, and when it is come to, you,
sir, declare in advance that you will defy it.
What are we debating? Why are we debating ?
We entered into this room with you as colleagues
encaged in addressing our intellects to reasons,
and you tell us now in advance that when it is all
concluded, when the decree of this party has
been solemnly registered, that then, for you, the
result is not submission to the National will but
insurrection against it (prolonged cheers). Itell
Mr Parnell he is no greater man than the ma-
jority of this party (loud cheers). Itell him that,
Judged by every constitutional principle, this
party is the register of the authority of the Irish
nation (renewed gheering). When we began this
discussion on Monday last we knew we were
dealing with men every man of whom had put in
writing a solemn vow made—if it were necessary
to makeit more solemn—in the face of National
conventions, that he would submit to the autho-
rity of this party.
Mr W Redmond—Or resign his seat (cheers).

Mr Healy—What is the pledge ? I had much to
do with the drawing of it. The termsin substance
are—"‘ That I will sit, act, and vote with the
Irish Party, «nd that, if it should appear by a ma-
jority of two-thirds of the party that I have failed
to do so, I will resign my seat.”” Butthe pledge to
act with the party and respect its decisions to be
bound by the majority is absolute (hear, hear).
I say, let us know here, and now, whether other
resolutions are to be brought forward like that of
Mr Clancy, who will not tell us the time he com-
municated with Mr Parnell? Are there a series
of resolutions in the pockets of other gentlemen,
like the chambers of a revolver. each one to be
grafted on to the resolution of Mr Barry?—and
then, having expended our time, our intellects—
ay, and our health—in these discussions, are we
to be told, in the end, by you, sir: “I have mo
regird for your decision. I have been talking
here simdply against time. I deride your autho-
rity, and I appeal against it.”” A door must be
either open-or shut. We must know where we
stand ;: and I have no fear, on my part, knowing
what I do of the keenness of my countrymen, that
any man with an intellect superior to the intel-
lect of a sparrow will be misled by the sophistries
of that deliverance.

MR PARNELL ON MR GLADSTONE: BITS FROM
HIS SPEECHES.

Then amidst very trying interruptions

from Mr Parnell, Colonel

Fitzgerald, Mr Healy referred to the ac-

. ceptance of Mr Gladstone’s Home Rule Bill

now derided, and turned to Mr Parnell’s
praise of Mr Gladstone.

Mr Parnell (said Mr Healy) only six months
ﬁo was entertained by his colleagues at the

estminster Palace Hotel. On that oceasion he
said he *‘ undertook tohold aloof from all English
Ertles until an ¥nglish party would concede to

eland the ]lust rights of the Irish people.”

Mr Parnell—Hear, hear.

Mr Healy—Will he cheer whot follows ?

Mg Parnell—Every word of it. Read it.

Mr Healy—BEvery precious wo ‘d.

Nolan, and Dr |

(Reading) : !

‘* That time has since come.”” Where is the cheer
| for that?

|  Mr Parnell (mildly)—Hear, hear.

| Mr Healy—I have axtracted it at last, rather
| feebly, I suggest. (Reading):

BAELL 'I'gmt time has since come about when an Eng-
| lish Party—a great English Party, under the
| distinguished leadership of Mr Gladstone, has
| conceded to Ireland those rights, and has enabled
us to enter into an honourable alliance, honour-
able and hopeful for our country.”

Mr Healy—With ‘‘ a garrulous old man.”

Mr Parnell—That is interpolation.

Mr Healy (reading) :—

‘‘ Honourable for that great English Party, an
alliance which I venture to believe will last.”
What broke it off ? (Loud applause.)

Mr Parnell, Colonel Nolan, and Dr Fitzgerald
each replied, ‘ Gladstone’s letter.”

Mr Healy—It perished in the stench of the
Divorce Court. (Reading):—

‘““ An alliance which I venture to believe will
last and will yield permanent fruit, and will re-
sult in a knitting together of Great Britain and
Ireland in a true and real union, and in a consoli-
dation which will defy time. The great Imperial
interest we do not desire to limit, and which
Englishmen are right in insisting should be pre-
served above all others. We are happy, and Ire-
land is happy, that this time has come when wo
can shake the hands of Englishmen with the con-
seiousness that in doing so we sacrifice no prin-
ciple or hope for the future of our country.”
On the 30th June last Mr Parnell was satisfied
with the Liberal alliance, satisfied that in that
alliance he sacrificed no hope or principle
for the future of his country. And now
Mr Parnell deseribes Mr Gladstone as
this *“ garrulous old man,” this ‘‘ unrivalled so-
phist,” who never gave a straight answer, and
yet we are to go hat in hand to this ‘‘ garrulous
. old man”’ who has given the latter years of his

life to our ca.use—-(a,;Lplause)*a,nd having tram-
| pled upon his grey hairs and bespattered them
with mud, then you are to ask him for terms at
the instance of the man who has maligned and
insulted him. That is the position taken up by
Mr Parnell. If Mr Gladstone had no dignity he
might give an answer, but I think he mighté
be spared insults beforehand. He might say
*“I am insulted by the chairman of your party,
and if he cannot refrain even among yourselves
from terms of abuse and anger towards me, how .
can I give an answer which, I may be told, is to
lead to his political destruction ?”’ That is the
suggestion put forward, and that is the matter
which we intelligent men are asked to debate
this afternoon. I continue my reading—‘‘ The
only man of distinguished genins before the
public as his great final and crowning work, the
task of finding the sure method in which might be
entrusted to Ireland her own destinies, while sha
also is privileged to take a share in the eater
interests of the empire. I am confident that Mz
Gladstone’s genius will be equal to the task, that
| he will be poweriul enough to reconcile and
| assuage the prejudices which still unhappily pra-
| vail to some extent.” ;
| Mr Parnell—Hear, hear.
|  Mr Healy—I wonder he never succeeded in as-
suaging Mr Parnell’s prejudice.

Mr Parnell—He never has, and never will

L[> Jea'. —Then he never assuaged your prejus
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dice and you hoped he would assuage those of
yotur count en. :

Mr Parnell—Hear, hear. [

Mr Healy—*‘ Physician, heal thyself.”” You re- |
commend the Gladstone preseription to the Irish |
nation, and you declare in advance that their pre- |
judioes may safely be allayed, and they may safely
aocept the aid of Mr Gladstone’s genius, but he |
cannotb allay your prejudices. I retain my hillside |
opinion of the entire transaction. I will conclude l
the reading.—‘‘ That he will be able to show his
countrymen how the true interests of the nation |
and of Imperial safety may be reconciled to the
self-government of Ireland by her people, and that
a great measure of Home Rule for our country
will be the result—a measure which will be practi-
cally accepted by the great majority of the English
people as a settlement of the Irish question.”’
I say to Mr Parnell, in conclusion, that nothing
has ocourred since the 30th of June, and nothing
has oocurred since the 19th of November, to
change my opinion of Mr (Hladstone. Nothing
has ocourred since these dates to turn me back
into that course of hatred towards the English |
people out of which you led me. I shall maintain
my position. I shall invite my countrymen to do
the same; and I declare my belief is, that though
vou, a Frankenstein, who, having created this
party, are able and determined to destroy it, I say
vou will discover that there is sufficient civie vir-
tue and public courage among the men who are
vour comrades to prevent, for their country, any
such hopeless and hapless consummation. We
will go imbo this fight armed, as we believe, by
every feeling of patriotism. We will go into it,
founding ourselves, not nupon the opinion of an in-
dividual, but upon the opinion of the elected re-
presentatives of the Irish race, chosen and se-
lected by the sovereign authority—by the Irish
people—guided, sir, under your guidance. We
will go into it, put}bing forward the claim that in
this matter we are on the side of prudenece, of |
gastice, and of right; and whatever be the insults

urled at me by any section of my
eountrymen, whatever taunts may be ad-
dressed to me in the course of this feund,
I will endure them as we have endured ten
years of slavery in this House, ten years of labour,
ten years of self-suppression, ten years of sacri-
fice : yet we will go to our people and we will tell
them what are the real issues in this matter, for |
though hitherto some of them have been covered |
ap and enclosed, we shall not shirk, and T shall |
not shirk, stating them broadly and openly to the
people, and with the people be the verdict. If
vou, sir, should go down, you are only one man
gone. Heads of greater leaders have been
stricken on the block before now for Ireland—
and the Irish cause remained. The Irish people
ean put us down, but the Irish cause will remain
always. For the future I have no fear. Instead
of being dmt_reqsed, Iam confident and buoyant;
instead of wishing myself dead. as I have heard
some men do, T am glad to be alive for Ireland—
. L am glad in this hour of her sorrowful destiny—

to‘beable to stand with her ; and stand with her
we shall, be the issue what it may.

As Mr Healy resumed his seat, his col-
feagues burst into prolonged cheering, which
was again and again renewed.

MR REDMOND'S SPEECH.
Parnell at once called on Mr John

Vn

Redmond, who described Mr-Hea,ly’s speech
as “hysterical.” He said:—

Mr Parnell’s position is clear. He says, “If I
find the views of the party are sound views, then
absolutely and without reservation I place the
leadership of this party in the hands of the ma-
jority of the party. Aye, a majority which I know
at this moment to be hostile to me and my
future.”” When Mr Parnell has made it abso-

| lutely certain that the Home Rule Bill will be a

reality and not a sham, then he will place his

| future in the hands of a majority which he knows

is hostile to him at this moment. They are men
who are willing to accept the vague and inde-
finite assurances of Mr Gladstone as to the
future of Home Rule; who are willing to
gacrifice you without thought or heed of what
the sacrifice wounld entail upon him; they are,
without knowing fully, why ghey are so doing,
going to sacrifice the one man who is capable
of saving the nation. Who is the man who, when
the Home Rule Bill comes to be settled, can dis-
cusg its provisions on an equal footing with the
leaders of English parties? There is no such

man.

Mr Healy—Suppose Mr Parnell died.

Mr Parnell—I don’t intend to die (loud cheers).
Suppose Mr Gladstone died ?

r Healy—If we hadn’t any longer Mr Parnell

a,mong]fst us, what would happen ?

Mr Redmond—I will answer that. I say that
Mr Parnell being among us, why should we
drive him out? I assert my belief that the de-
thronement of Mr Parnell will be the signal of
kindling the fires of dissension in every land
where the Irish race has found a home. Let no

! man accuse me of wishing to kindle those fires,

buat they will be lighted if this act is done, and in
them will be burned to ashes the last hopes of
the Irish people in this generation for the free-
dom of their country.

MR SEXTON’S SPEECH.

My Sexton followed in a speech of rare elo-
quence. His opening words were delivered

. with great [eeling and visible emotion.

Mr Parnell (he said), I have listened to your
speech, T need scarcely say, with profound atten-
tion. I am sorry I haveno option but to addthat
I have heard it with the deepest disappointment,
and with the most piercing regret. My sorrow is
deeper—it will certainly be more permanent than
any anger could be, and I shall endeavour in the
golemn words which I now address to this party
to secure that my language shall contain no incite-
ment to passion. It has been made a cause of re-
proach against some of my hon friends that they
stood by Mr Parnell as long as they possibly could.
‘What would have been zaid of Mr Healy and other
friends of mine if they had mot, in the first in-
stance, endeavoured to maintain Mr Parnell in his
position ? Then. indeed, it would have been said
that we had yielded to English clamour. Were we
indifferent ? 'We stood by Mr Parnell so long as
we thought it within the range of human possibility
that the continued leadership of Mr Parmnell
in this party was compatible with any re-
maining rational hope of the freedom of our
country. But at a certain stage it ceased to be a.
question of clamour, and it became a ques*ion oL
political force. Fer what were we elected ? Wa
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are Parliamentary men. We were elected by the

people of Ireland to conduct the Parliamentary |

cause. Our duty is to guard at every hazard and
contingency the Parliamentary fortress. Assoon
as it became apparent to us that the result of Mr
Parnell’s retention of his leadership would be in-
fallibly to draw away from the Liberal camp a
sufficient proportion of the electors of this coun-
try to render victory impossible, then it was our
duty to preserve that hope and to maintain that
position, on which Mr Parnell himself, in lan-
squage of burning eloquence, had led and encou-
raged the lrish people to set their hearts and
their hopes. So long as the interest of the nation
left it within our moral competence we stood by
Mr Parnell for the sake of gratitude, and
for the sake of the unity of the party. But so
soon as the supreme interests of Ireland be-
came visibly and undeniably concerned, our

duty was when the cause presented itself |

as between a mnation and a man to call
upon the man to retire and to stand indomitably
by the nation. There have been humiliating
episodes in the course of this discussion. There
have been expressions used that I hope will be
forgiven, but never can be forgotton. But of all
that has happened to pain me there has been no-
thing to exeite in me those feelings more potently
than the argument employed by some of my hon.
friends that the cause of Ireland without Mr
Parnell becomes a hopeless cause (hear, hear).
Our race is distingunished for political genius. I
say that no man is necessary. And I ask you this
qguestion, If the leadership of Mr Parnell be ne-
cessary towin Home Rule, how is Ireland to keep
it? Must not Ireland in this and in every emer-
geney cevend upon the collective ability and the
collective patriotism of her sons? Itis cleaxrly
suggested that Mr Parnell’s lead is indispensable.
There have been sneers at the idea of vesting the
leadership in commission. I say that it is per-
fectly possible for this party to elect a man—and T
am not now speaking of any one whose election
would excite hostility—to electa man with great
knowledge of the world, with remarkable culture,
with a long experience of affairs, and with an
intellectual ability which would enable him to
cope in any emergency with even the most
sophistical statesman. I say it would be possible
, to surround the chairman with an efficient
~ Cabinet: and, as I have come to this point, let
me now say in public what I have already said in
private. Every man knows that after my recent
illness, which has reduced my strength and nerve.
I have found that even the limited obligations of
Parliamentary life have become a great and
almost intolerable burthemn, and that my desire
would be to be relieved of my public obligations.
I say that there is no personal ambition in this
party; I affirm it in the face of the country that
there is no personal ambitionin this party, which
need stand in the way of an ample and efficient
leadership. Let any man say what he will, this
- partyis bound together by links of steel, which no

man and no question of leadership caninjuriously

afect ; and if you are to change your iea,der it

will be possible for you to surround him with a

Cabinet ; and in this connection I may say that I

told Mr Parnell himself that on his retirement

he could mominate the committee—conclusive

proof that at any rate in the future government

of th 1 thought there should be
no t of hostility to him or any irfluence
which could operate detrimentally fo Ir-land.
‘tl} v

The *‘ Freeman’s Journal,” said Mr Sexton, has
had the fatuity to speak of me as Mr Gladstone’s
wan. I am net Mr Gladstone’s man. T adopt
the phrase of Mr Healy, and I say I am no mar's
man. Isay, in all humility, that I am Ireland's
man—if Ireland cares to have me—and I have to
add to that, upon my responsibility, that I am no
prepared to allow any man to become Ireland’s
master. May a retribution fall upon me, may it
fall upon me now and hereafter, if I have ever in
the course of our tribulations and victories, if I
have ever at a time when we had hopes from the
‘Lory Party, or in the course of our alliance witn
the Liberal Party, if I have ever allowed affection
or consideration for any party, or for any man, to
adulterate the puriby for one instant of my love
and my regard for the sacred cause of Ireland.
Now, will my friends opposite believe me when 1

| say that I felt that the introduction yesterday of

Mr Claney’s amendment created a hopeful
change ? I rejoiced yesterday because I
thought I saw an indication on the pari
of Mr Parnell that personal feeling mo longer
predominated, and that he was willing frankiy,
and upon a reasonable footing, to make it plain
that he was willing to make his voluntary retire-
ment the occasion of doing a service to his
country. I asked him before we adjourned yes-
terday, upon view of Mr Clancy’s resolution, what
authority would determine, in the event of au
reply from the Liberal leaders upon the proposed
negotiations, what authority would determine
whether the reply was satisfactory or not ? Well,
I assure my colleagues that under ordinary cir-
cumstances I should not have thought such an
inquiry needful. It was only because of the ex-
traordinary acumen which Mr Parnell has dis-
played in the course of the debates, it is only
because of the fact that the amendment by which
it was proposed to meet the only real question was
ruled out of order four days ago, it was only be-
zause after four days’ debate attended with the
moxt miserable results, attended, with the excite-
ment of passion and rancour in. Ireland, and by
the absolute failure of the American mission—
it was only because I saw at the end of four days
we had not been allowed to approach to a deci-
sion on the only real question at issue—that 1
felt it necessary to address that question to Mr
Parnell. His reply was in these words : ** I have
every belief, and I feel every confidence, that on
such issue as that placed before the Irish Party—
the question as to securing any future important
provisions as to the power of the Irish Parlia-
ment—there will be no difference of opinion be-
tween me and the party as to whether these
future declarations are satisfactory or not.”
Why, then (Mr Sexton continued). is the position
so much changed between yesterAsy and to-day.
Mr Parnell—It is not changed. :There is not
an atom of change so far as you ave’concerned.
Mr Sexton—I exerted myself assiduously last
evening, by conference with some of my friends
to secure an honourable and amicable settlement,
and I may say their hopes were such as do not
now appear to me to correspond with the result.
It was hoped our proceedings to-day would be ex-
tremely brief, and would raise no matter thai
could possibly excite discussion. I accepted Mx
Clancy’s amendment in good faith ; at least I was
disposed to receive it in good faith. At half-pas*
one yesterday. half an hour before the meeting, I
asked Mr Clancy *» allow me to see the terms of
the resolution. me informed me he could not
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exhibit the terms of the amendment except by
consultation.
was he.to consult? With whom but Mr Parnell?
He did not, I am sure, upon a question involving
the leadership of Mr Parnell, accept any other
authority. e came into this room without hav-
ing seen the terms of the resolution. We asked
Mr Claney to read it at the opening of his speech,
and even that he declined to do. hy was
the opportunity denied us of an examina-
tion of its terms? I have to give an an-
swer, and, Mr Parnell, I hope you will
understand that in giving the answer 1 say
nothing whatever about the purpose of those
who drew up the resolution : but I cannot express
my meaning without saying that it is in effect a
trap-door resolution. Let me remind you that
until Mr Clancy was challenged he never estab-
lished any connection between the amend-
ment and the tenure of the chair. Mr
Clancy’s amendment might have been moved
at any time within the last five years, and
might have been presented as a matter of
general politice to the leaders of the Liberal
Party. T asked him if he was entitled to make
further communication. Mr. Clancy hesitated,
but Mr John Redmond rose and informed us
that upon & satisfaotory issue resulting from
the acceptance of this amendment Mr. Parnell
would voluntarily retire.

Mr. Redmond—I presume Mr. Sexton has no
desire to misrepresent me. What I intended to
say, and what I did say, is that if satisfactory
assurances on these two vital points were given
by Mr. Gladstone, as suggested in that amend-
ment, Mr. Parnell would resign.

Mr. Sexton—And that is the phrase which I
must describe as covering the trap-door,

Mr. Clancy—The reason I hesitated to
answer to your question was that I
understand it.

Mr. Healy (ironically)—Did you understand
mine ?

Mr. Clanoy—I gave an answer as soon as I
understood the question.

Mr. Sexton—I appreciate your position, Mr.
Clancy, and I shall not press you further.

Mr Redmond—You won’t eall him a liar by
implication. ]

Mr Sexton—Certainly not. I will not use threats
nor innuendoes, nor will 1 impute falsehood to
other men. Mr Redmond now declared that his
statement was that if satisfactory assurances
were given Mr Parnell would retire.

- Mr Parnell—Is not that what you recollect me
to have said?

Mr Sexton—I don’t believe it. Mr Redmond
Yust have known that the party would only con-
clude that satisfactory assurances would be as-
surances satisfactory tothe majority of the party.
Now, however, closer questioning and keener
scrutiny have discovered the fact that if we were
to assent to Mr Clanoy’s amendment we might
meet here weeks hence, or months for all we
know, and find ourselves in a position in which
all our efforts would be of no avail.

Mr Parnell—No.

Mr Sexton—Yes, and in which Mr Parnell him-

ive an
id not

self wonld be as abgolutely dictator of the situa- '

tion as he isat present.
MR PARNELL CHANGES FRONT.
Ultimately, under the fire of this and Mr

What am I to infer? With whom .

Healy’s speech, Mr Parnell saw that his posi
tion was untenable, and suddenly in th¢
middle of Mr Sexton’s speech interrupted him
to say that he agreed to retire if, as
the result of Mr Clancy’s amendment, the
Liberals gave assurances which the party
voted to be satisfactory. So unexpeoted au
change of front whether premeditated or not
obviously took the majority at a disadvantage.
A hurried conference ensued as to the wording
of the resolution and the best means of carry-
ing it into effect, “A delegation,” said
Mr Sexton, * under it will wait immediately
upon the heads of the Liberal Party, or, I

would suggest, still better, upon Mr Gladstone
himself.”

Mr Parnell—I should insist strongly upon the
three leaders, Mr Gladstone, Sir Wm Harcourt,
and Mr Morley, being present, for reasons which
I can give if necessary.

Mr Sexton—Mr Clancy’s resolution will form
the bagis of compromise. Mr Parnell recognises
that the situation through which our nation is
now passing, in which it is likeliving in the crater
of a live volecano, is not to be prolonged. There-
fore there is absolute necessity for expedition.
We shall continue from day to day to deal with
this subject without intermission. Having laid
these proposals before Mr Gladstone, if the ma-
jority of the party decide by vote that the reply
of the Liberal leaders is satisfactory, we are to
understand that Mr Parnell will resign. Does
Mr Parnell accept the offer?

Mr Parnell—Certainly. You might have had
that at the beginning of the meeting if you had
not had Mr Healy’s speech.

Mr Healy—No, sir, if we had not ﬁour speech.

Mr Sexton (after consultation with some of his
supporters)—Mr Parnell, upon a question of de-
tail I suppose there will be no objection to appoint
with the Whips one or two representatives of
each section of the party as members of the dele-
gation ?

Mr Parnell—You will find that very machinery
in one of my resolutions. If you like, four orfive
of us can be formed into a committee and retire
to consider that subject.

Mr Clancy’s amendment was then passed
without a division, Messrs Chance and Barry
strongly dissenting. A committee was . then
formed consisting of the Chairman, Mr John
Barry, Mr Leamy, Mr Sexton, Mr T M Healy,
Mr Justin M‘Carthy, and the two Whips, to
| arrange the terms of the negotiations with
| the leaders of the Liberal party.* = Mr Barry.
[ however, refused to act.

{ . * Here, grobably, it msy be useful to recall &
speech made nine months afterwards at Listowel
by Mr Parnell, in which he said it was his oppo-

| ments (who met only to depoge him and mnot te
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The meeting then adjourned, and, except 1

the members who were entrusted to wait on
the English Liberal leaders, all the party
retired from Room 15. Both sides cheerfully
fraternised on leaving the room. Each felt,
or appeared to feel, that an honourable way
out of the impasse had been reached, and hoped
that the unity of the party would be pre- |
served.

LETTER TO MR. GLADSTONE.
The committee nominated in the re-
solution selected from their number Messrs |
Sexton, T M Healy, John Redmond, and
Leam % as a deputation to seek interviews
with My Fladstone, Sir William Harcourt, and
Mr John M xley. The whips of the party
addressed the following letter to Mr Glad-
stone :—

House of Commons, Dec 4, 1890. |
SIR—We are directed to inform you that at a |
meeting of the Irish Parliamentary party the fol- |
lowing gentlemen have been appointed to seek
an interview with you—namely, Messrs Leamy, [
John Redmond, Sexton, and T M Healy, to in- |
quire for the information of the party as to the |
manner in which the Liberal leaders would be
prepared to treat certain subjects in the event of
their being in a position in a future Parliament
to deal legislatively with them. The subjeets in
question are the settlement of the agrarian diffi-
culty in Ireland and the control of the Irish
police. A similar request has been addressed to |
Sir William Harcourt and Mr John Morley.—We |
luwgs the honour to remain, your obedient ser-
vants,

Facmagn PowE. | Wiips.
The Right Hon W E Gladstone. -
REPLIES OF THE LIBERAL LEADERS, |
To this letter the following replies were re-
ceived the same night :—

1 Carlton-gardens, S W, Dec 4, 1890.
GENTLEMEN—So far as I comprehend the tenor
of the letter I have just had the honour to receive,

discuss ‘‘ guarantees’’) who insisted on going
to Mr Gladstone— '

*“1 did notinduce the p in Committee Room
15 to obtain pledges from Gladstone. I did
my best, my utmost, to persnade them fromgoing
to him. 1 showed them that he would not give
pledges in the first place, and, in the second place,
that if he should, that they would be incompre-
hensible and that they wonld not be kept
(bear, hear), and in return I was told that
I was heaping abuse mpon Mr. (ladstone in
trying to enlighten these statesmen as to his
cleverness of mind and character and prevent
them from ing him for pledges. Mr Dillon
said it was a most ridicnlous thing to go to Mr
Gladstone and ask for pledges. I agree with him
but I could not help them. ey insisted on
going, and the result was they got nothing |
(laughter).”—* Freeman,” 14 Sept, 1891.

I understand that it is proposed by you to com-
stitute a body consisting of Sir William Har-
court, Mr John Morley, and myself, which body
is to deliver to you assurances as to the course
which the Liberal Party, if in power, would take
in a future Parliament with regard to two of the
many important partioulars connected with the
plan of Home Rule, I would on no account at-
tempt to fetter in any way your liberty of com-
munication in any quarter to which you may
think proper to address yourselves. But I regret
to be unable to enter upon the point of considera-
tion of any matter submitted fo mein consideration
with a selection of my friends and former col-

| leagpes which has been made neither by me nor
| by the Liberal Party of this country. I leave it

to you to consider how far this leaves it open to

| you. to prosecute further your request, and I

think it best at the present moment to abstain
from touching on any point except the one I have

| just raised.—Yours faithfully,

W. E. GLADSTONE.

House of Commons, Dec. 4, ’90,
GENTLEMEN—I have the honour to acknow-
ledge the receipt of yours of this day. Whilst

| expressing my sense of the honour you have done

me in desiring to learn from me ‘* the manner in

. which the Liberal leaders would be prepared to

treat certain subjects in the event of their being
in a position in a future Parliament to deal legis-
latively with them,” you must permit me to point
out that I have no authority to determine such
matters, and that Mr Gladstone alone, as leader
of the Liberal Party, can speak in its name.

You will understand, therefore, that it is from
no want of courtesy that I find myself precluded
from accepting an invitation to an interview
such as you have been good enough to propose to
me.—1I have the honour to remain, your obedient
servant, :
W. V. HARCOURT.

House of Commons, Dec 4, 1890.
GENTLEMEN—I am extremely sensible of the
honour of your invitation, but it isstrictly within
the duty of Mr Gladstone as leader of the Liberal

| Party to determine the time and manner of stat-

ing the plan of dealing with the subject mentioned
in your .letter, which he would be prepared to
recommend to his party and to Parliament. I
must therefore respectfully beg you to excuse me
from intervening in the way that you propose.--
Believe me, yours very faithfully,

JOHN MORLEY.

Thereupon the sub-committee met in the
Smoke Room about 11 p m, with Mr Parnell,
who agreed that the objections taken were
reasonable, and the following second letter~
was accordingly despatched to Mr Glad-

stone :—

House of Commons, Dec 4, 189C.

S1rR—We have to acknowledge the receipt of
your courteous reply to our inquiry. The names
of Sir W. Harcourt and Mr John Morley were sug-
ested with a view to greater convenience and
gaoih’ty of consultation. We are now instructed
to say that we shall regard an interview with
yourself, either alone or with any of your political
friends whom you may be pleased to select for the

| purpose, as enabling us substantially to discharge
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the commission with which we have been en-
trusted.—We have the honour to remain, your
obedient servants,

RicHARD POWER.

JorN Duisy.
The Right Hon. W. E. Gladstone.

The same night Mr Gladstone replied that
he would receive the deputation.
DEPUTATION TO MR. GLADSTONE.
At half-past twelve o’clock the next day

(Friday) Messrs Sexton, Healy, John Red- |

mond, and Leamy—drove up together in a
four-wheel cab, and had an interview with
Mr Gladstone in Mr Stuart Rendel’s house.
The conference lasted for an hour. The fol-
lowing were the questions submitted by Mr
Sexton, at Mr Parnell’s request, on behalf of
the Irish Party:—

Clause 21 of the Home Rule Bill of 1886.

(1) T'oask that Sub-section (A) of the clause be
applied to the Royal Irish Constabularly as well
4s to the Dublin Metropolitan Police, and that
3ub-section (B) of the clause be omitted.

(2) To ask that Mr Gladstone shall state
whether the Liberal leaders intend to deal with
the Land Question themselves in the Imperial
Parliament, either by purchase or on the lines
of the measure introduced by the Irish Party and
supported by the Liberal Party, or by remitting
the question to an Irish Legislature.

(3 To agk that any proposals of the Liberal
Party in pursuance of the foregoing articles shall
ne treated as vital.

MR. GLADSTONE READS HIS REPLY.
After hearing the deputation, Mr Gladstone

spoke from a written memorandum as fol-
lows—

Dec. 5, 1890.

I have never been indisposed to converse freely
with Irish members on Irish policy, and
there is mothing which I have heard from
Mr Sexton in the statement he has just
made which tends in any degree to produce such
an indisposition. I have no opinion or intention
of any kind to conceal. But since writing my
letter i last evening I have read in the papers of
to-day the report of the proceedings of the Irish
Party at their last meeting. I find there mno
appointment of adeputation, but as farasI
understand you have been delegated by a com-
mittee which () is eomposed of certain persons,
) is appointed dispose of a question
of difference of recollection as to the pur-
port of the interview at Hawarden. I
fear that there is here a prelimary
bar to any communication on the i.atters
you desire to open. I acknowledge mno such
difference of recollection. I can say or do noth-
ing which ghould imply that the general purport
of that interview is matter of doubt. Besides
my own recollections and written notes, and the
recollection of my former colleagues founded
thereon, I rely on the recollections of the
other party to the interview, conveyed in com-
wmunications with one or more individuals and in

public speeches both immediately after the
visit and again when several months had elapsed.
Viewing, as @ whole, the language used by me in

my letter to Mr. Morley, and in my published
letter of last Saturday, I cannot, apart
from any other difficulbty, enter into .

discussion having for its objeet to dispose
of a difference of recollection which I do not a.:-
knowledge to exist. Further, I may say that the
question raised by my letter to Mr Morle{ was a
question of leadership representing what I found
to be the views of the Liberal Party of Great Bri-
tain, and having no eonnection with Home Rule
or its conditions. But what is now requested of
me makes the questien a question of Home Rule,
and I am a.ske?i to open a mnew discussion on a
separate ground. The British Liberal Party is
enthusiastic for Home Rule, but the trust which
it has committed to me does not authorise me to
open to such a discussion in connection with the
question of leadership, on which they entertain
a separate and decided opinion.

MR. CLANCY'S AMENDMENT RESCINDED.

The deputation then withdrew, its four
members walking back together to the
House of Commons, where the sub-com-
mittee re-assembled at 2 pm in the Irish

| Whips’ Room, and unanimously decided, in

consultation with Mr Parnell, to recommend
the party to rescind Mr Clancy’s amendment,
and to adopt another resolution. The terms
of this substituted resolution were framed by
Mr Parnell as follows :—

That the following members of the party, namely
—Mr Leamy, Mr John Redmond, Mr T Healy, and
Mr Sexton. are hereby authorised torequest acon-
ference with Mr Gladstone for the purpose of re-
presenting the views of this Party, and of request.
ing an intimation of the intentions of himself and
hig colleagnes with respect to certain details
connected with the following subjeots : First, the
settlement of the Irigsh land question; second,
the control of the Irish Constabulary force in the
event of the establishment of an Irish Legisla:
ture.

FURTHER LETTER FROM MR. GLADSTONE.

A private meeting of the Irish Party was
held at 4 p m at which this resolution was, at
the request of the committee,adopted without
discussion or explanation; and the Whips
then wrote to Mr Gladstone at once, en-
closing him a copy of the resolution and
asking him again to see the deputation. '
Thereupon, the Liberal leaders who had been
members of the Cabinet in 1886 were con-
vened, and decided that while the questicn of
guarantees was entangled with the issue of
the Irish leadership it should not be
considered a genuine document. At 10
pm that night, Mr Gladstone sent the
following reply, which was brought by Mr R
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' Power tothe Westminster Palace Hotel, where

Mr Parnell, Mr Justin M‘Carthy, Mr Sexton,
Mr Healy, Mr J Redmond, and Mr Leamy
met at 11 p m.

1 Carlton-gardens, Dee 5, 1890.
GENTLEMEN—I have the honour to acknow-
ledge receipt of your letter, transmitting to me
two resolutions of the Irish Parliamentary Party.

By the first of these resolutions the subject of |

our correspondence is entirely detached from
connection with the conversation at Hawarden.
In the second I am requested to receive & depu-
tation which, besides stating the views of the
Party, is (o request an intimation of my inten-
tions and those of my colleagues as to certain

details connected with the subject of the settle- -

ment of the Irish land question and with the
control of the Iaish Constabulary force in
the event of the establishment of an Irish
Legislature. As your letter reached me dur-

ing the early hours of the sitting of the House, |

I have had the opportunity of learning the
views of my colleagues in regard to such a decla-
ration of intention on two out of the many points
which may be regarded as vital to the construe-
tion of a good measure of Home Rule. I may be
permitted to remind you, as I mentioned to the
deputation this morning, that the question raised
by the publication of my letter to Mr Morley was
a question of leadership, and that it is separate
from and has no f)roper connection with the sub-
ject of Home Rule. We have arrived at the con-
clusion that I cannot undertake to make any
statement of our joint intentions on them or any
other provisions of a Home Rule Bill in connec-
tion with the question of the leadership of the
Irish Party. When the Irish Party shall have
disposed of this question, which belongs entirely
to their own competence, in such a manner as will
enable me to renew the former relations, it will be
my desire to enter without prejudice into confidens
tial communication such as has heretofore taken
place. as ocecasion may serve, upon all amendment
of particulars and suggestion of mmprovements in
any plan for a measure of Home Rule.

1 may venture to assure you that no change has
taken place in my desire to press forward
on the first favourable opportunity a just
and effective measure of Home Rule.
recognise and earnestly seek to uphold the inde-
pendence of the Irish Parliamentary Party noless
than that of the Liberal Party. I acknowledge
with satisfaction the harmony which, since 1886,
has prevailed between them, and when the pre-
sent difficulty is removed, I am aware of no
reason to anticipate 1ts interruption. From what
has taken place on both sides of the Channel in
the last four years, I ook forward with confi-
dence, as do my colleagues, to the formation and

' prosecution of a measure which,in meeting all

the just claims of Ireland, will likewise obtain
the approval of the people of Great Britain. I
shall at all suitable times prize the privilege of
free communication with the Irish National
Party, and I will finally remind you of my decla-
ration this morning that, apart from personal
confidence. there is but one guarantee which can
be of real value to Ireland. It is that recently

ointed at by Sir William Harcourt in his letter

ecemgler-mlcll, w]:ien hel (fm.lledh attention to “dthe
unquestio e political fact that no party and no
lea%: cm ever propose or hope to carry any

scheme of Home Rule which had not the cordial
concurrence and support of the Irish mnation. as
declared by their representativesin Parliament.”’
| After this statement of my views and those of m 7
| colleagues I anticipate that you will coneur wit 1
| me in the opinion that there would be no adva:-
tage ina further personal interview,—I have tho
honour to be, gentlemen, yours faithfully,

W. E. GLADSTONE.

Mr Parnell asked the four delegates to Mr
Gladstone to draw up and sign a minute of their
interview with the Liberal leader, which they
did. Messrs Sexton and Healy urged Mr
Parnell once more to bow to the inevitable.
He said he would take the night to eonsider
the matter, and requested that they would
return and see him at 11 o’clock next morning.
They promised to doso, and left shortly before
2 am, when they conveyed the news to a
number of their colleagues who were awaiting
them elsewhere. Next morning, at 11, Messrs
Sexton and Healy again visited Mr Parnell,
and he informed them that his “responsi-
bility ¥ would not allow him to retire. Mr
Healy then told Mr Parnell that the majority
would not sit longer in Room 15 than that
day, but would retire if obstructed further.
| They then left, Mr Parnell saying, “ Let us
! shake hands, if it is to be the last time.” All

! ghook hands then and left for the House of
[ Commons.

THE LAST DAY.

The last day’s sitting of the party together
lin Room 15 had then come. It was
Saturday, 6th December, 1890. Every
member except Mr O’Hanlon was in his
| place. = Mr Parnell was sharply punctual
in taking the chair at noon. A few
| minutes previously the members of the ma-
| jority were got together in the Conferencc
Room and told the result of the efforts
of Messrs Sexton and Healy and the
effect of the reply of Mr Gladstone. The
‘ House of Commons does not sit on Saturdays,
| but by the favour of the Sergeant-at-Arms,
' the Irish Party got the use of the Committee
Room until six p m, and the majority then
determined that longer than that hour they
would mnot be further delayed.

COLLAPSE OF THE SESSION.

A secret reason also existed for this in the fact

! that the House was to prorogue for Christmas
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on the following Tuesday, for instead of ;
, the “combat from first to last” against the |
Government which Mr Parnell had fore-
shadowed, the winter session, owing to the |
Irish crisis, collapsed in a fortnight. The
Purchase Bill passed its second reading after
a faw hours’ debate, and Mr Parnell and his
followers went into the lobby in support of it,
although he had moved the rejection a few
months before of the same bill in a better |

form. The Parnellites were doing their ‘
best with the Tory Whips to secure
the adjournment en Monday, so that
Parliament might be “up” before the

final proceedings in Room 15 came to a close,
when members naturally would disperse from
London, and the party would have to go tc
a hotel for a meeting place, or postpone the
conclusion of the business indefinitely. When
therefore, the Irish members found them-
selves round the familiar horse-shoe table of
Room 15 once more under Mr Parnell’s
presidency, each side knew that it was

for the last time. A feeling of
unreality and “foregoneness” therefore
spread over the proceedings. Mr Parnell

at once started a “hare” over the embassy to
Mr Gladstone, and insisted that the sub-
committee should bring up a report. A pro-
tracted discussion arose over this. The

chairman although repeatedly appealed to to |

bring the obstruction to an end, declined to do
so. Finally, Mr Sexton, summing up, said—

I have to remind the party that we have now
approached the twelfth day since these proceed-
ings opened, and we have been engaged in six
successive days’ debate. I was under some appre-
hension that T would not be able to come down
this morning, and I think every man has felt the
strain in mind and heart and health to be almost,
intolerable. The country it now in an
agongy of suspense, and we find ourselves led on
during the last two or three days from one issue
to another, led entirely away from the main issue
which we ultimately have to decide. Now, I do
not think it would be proper for me at this stage
to withhold the observation that the majority of
the party have made up their minds that these
intolerably protracted proceedings must be
brought to a close to-day. If they cannot be
brought to a close by a motion from the chair,
they must be defermined in some other way. If
we were in a minority we would gladly retire,
but the fact that we are in a majority places a
deep obl.gation upon us. We have a certain
power placed in our hands that vests us with a
responsibility, and in the exercise of it we must
use that power, if it be necessary, in the last

| been put upon themselves.
| one day longer, and, therefore, before our
| proceedings come to a close to-day, it will be

resort. I would again respectfully say that the
majority of the members here have determined
that the proceedings shall not be continued be-
yond to-day, the majority of the party feel that
they cannot undertake the prolongation of the
suspense of the country, nor the strain which has
I could not endure it

necessary for the majority of the party to appeal
to you, Mr Parnell,to put from the chair a
motion to determine the final question, or to take
such other measure as may be open to them.

THE ULTIMATUM.
This ultimatum on behalf of the ma-
jority of the party was received by them
with approving cheers. The chairman
coldly suggested that it was time for lunch.
It was about three p.m., and on their return
the report of the sub-committee might be
read. At luncheon a hasty conference
amongst the leaders of the majority was held,
when they resolved to insist on the chairman
receiving Mr Abraham’s resolution, and take
an immediate division on it. If Mr Parnell
refused to take Mr Abraham’s amendment,
the majority, after a protest from Mr Justin
M<Carthy as to the chairman’s conduect, should
then quietly leave and proceed to the Con-
ference Room. Those directions being con-
veyed to each member of the majority, the
party re-assembled in Room 15. Mr John
Redmond having read the report of the dele-
gates, Mr Abraham rose. '
NEARING THE END.
A few seconds later Mr John O’Connor also
rose. Mr Parnell at once, and in a very loud
tone, called on Mr O’Connor. There were fierce
criesof “Abraham,Abraham,” from his friends.
Undoubtedly he had risen first, but
not by many = séconds. An  inde-
scribable scene followed. Both gentlemen re-
mained standing, the chairman also standing.
He loudly shouted, and thumped the desk,
“Q’Connor, Mr John O’Connor”—his party
also wildly calling on Mr O’Connor. Mr
Abraham’s friends were as busily calling on
him. Amidst this din the three gentlemen
remained standing, Mr Parnell shouting, at
the top of his voice, “O’Connor, John O’Con-
nor. I distinetly called on Mr O’Connor.”
Mr John Barry’s voice made itself heard:
“I say Mr O’Connor had not risen when you
called upon him.” This statement provoked
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loud cheers and counter-cheers; Mr Parnell
again thumping the desk and crying, Order,
order,” at the top of his voice. “Isay,” he
shouted, “ Mr John O’Connor is in possession.”
“ No, no,” the majority fiercely retorted.

AN EXCITING SCENE.

For the first time in an exciting debate ex-
tending over a week, the disorder approached
that of a scene in the House of Commons itself.
A disciplined band of politicians had broken in
revolt against the authority of the chair, an
authority which every instinctof their training
taught them to respect, as the performers in
an orchestra to avoid discord obey the baton of
the conductor. Mr Abraham who had occu-
pied a place about eight seats below Mr Par-

nell on his right, advanced and approached |

the chairman. He stood behind Mr Sexton’s
chair, the third from Mr Parnell, and then
addressing the chairman as loudly as he could,
he said, “this is my resolution,” and he com-
menced to read it. Mr Parnell was still stand-
ing. Mr John O’Connor had sat down. No-
one could hear the resolution in the uproar.
The chairman repeatedly called on Mr Abra-
ham to sit down, but the latter persisted and
finished reading his resolution. He then
handed it to Mr Justin M‘Carthy to pass it to
the chairman. By this time Mr Parnell had
completely lost his self-control and coolness.
 Mr M‘Carthy rose, as all thought, to hand on
the resolution to the chair, when Mr Parnell,
with great violence, toreit out of Mr M‘Carthy’s
hand, passionately saying, “1 will not re-
ceive it.” He crumpled the paper up, and
motioned as if he were about to tear and
throw it from him, but in a second after he
placed it in his trousers pocket. Mr M‘Carthy
justly indignant at this, rose tohis feet,and the
cries and counter cries grew deafening. Mr
Conway, Edward Harrington, and Dr Fitz-
gerald left their seats and ranged themselves
atthe backof Mr Parnell’s chair, threateningly.
Mr Parnell, with features distorted, and flash-
ing eyes, shouted, ““ until the party deposes
we from the chair, I am your chairman.” This
was received with frantic shouts of applause
from his supporters, and a burst of ironical
cheering from the majority. “ You are not,”
lnng back Mr Barry, “our chairman, nor will

you ever be again.”

Mr M<Carthy, in a lull
that followed this storm, tried to explain to
Mr Parnell that he only rose for the purpose
of handing him Mr Abraham’s resolution.
But Mr Parnell offensively replied, “ You at-
tempted to move a resolution surreptitiously.”
Angry cries of “ No, no,” from Mr M-Carthy’s
friends, and  Yes, yes,” from the Parnellites
followed. “Give us back, our document,”
thundered Mr Healy. But the only notice
the chairman took of this new demand was
again to call on Mr John O’Connor.

MR. PARNBLL’S VIOLENCE.

The clamour renewed, and Mr Lane rose
to a point of order, but Mr Parnell
roared him down. The insult to Mr Lane
was very marked. The uproar broke out
wildly once more, Mr Parnell excitedly
calling “Order for the chair. Respeet
the chair.” “Yes,” said Mr David
Sheehy, “we will respect the chair if the
shair respects the party; but as the chair
does not respect the party, we cannot respect
the chair.”

Mr Arthur O’Connor—I would appeal to my -
friends to manifest to the chairman, our lake
leader, every pessible respect (cries of “ Abra-
}l.am,)” and ‘‘Order, order,”” from the Parnel-
ites).

Mr Healy said that the chairman had called on
Mr O’Connor, although that gentleman had not
risen to address the chair, whilst at that time Mr
Abraham was on his feet for that purpose.

Mr Corbet—Healy, you will have to answer for
this (cheers and counter-cheers).

Mr Healy—So will you, too.

Mr Parnell again called on Mr John O’Connor.

Mr Healy—“ Abraham. Abraham > (cries of
“ Order”).

Mr Parnell—I am your chairman until you de-
pose me (loud cheers and counter-cheers).

Mr Healy—Allow us to depose you (cheers and
counter-cheers).

Mr Parnell again called on Mr John O’Connor ;
but Mr Q’Connor was not allowed to proceed,
there being loud ecries of ‘‘ Abraham ’ and
**Order.””

Mr Sexton—My memory is that when you
called on Mr John O’Connor he was seated
(cheers, and cries of “ He was not,” and *‘ He
was.”’)

Mr Justin M‘Carthy said—I rose merely to a
point of strictly Parliamentary order, which no
man in this room who knows the House of Com-
mons can say was not absolutely in order. Well,
as I was about to express that point of order
some one handed me a letter of some kind---I
don’t know what it was—and the chairman
struck it out of my hand (cheers).

Mr Parnell—I took it out of your hands.

Mr M‘Carthy—I don’t know at this momens
what the letter contained, or whom it came from.
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It seemed a short note in pencil. I will now state
my point of order. When a difference of opinion
arises between the Speaker and anybody in the
House as to who has first caught the Speaker’s eye,
it is in the power of any man and in his right to
move that the member be first heard, and not the
other member. Mr Parnell shakes his head. He
does not know the House of Commens as long as
I do (cheers). I say it was moved by Mr Joe
Cowan, of Newcastle-on-Tyne,and carried against
the Speaker (cheers). A

Mr Parnell —There was no such thing. .

Mr M‘Carthy—That point of order I was going
to raise when the chairman struck the letter out
of my hand and refused to hear me.

Mr Parnell—Your friends refused to hear you.

Mr M‘Carthy—You struck the letter out of my
hand (cheers).

Mr Parnell—You were about to put some reso-
lution, thereby usurping my functions.

Mr M‘Carthy—You might have asked me what
I was going to do. I might have expected that
courtesy from your hands (loud cheers). .

Mr Parnell again called upon Mr John O’Con-
nor.

My Healy—I move that Mr Abraham be heard
(loud cheers).

Mr Parnell-That motion is entirely out of
order.

Mr Healy—Put the motion.

Mr Parnell—I refuse to put it.

MR. JOHN O’CONNOR POUNDS AWAY.

After scenes of this kind lasting over half
an hour a truce was entered into that after
Mr John O’Connor moved his vesolution Mz
Abraham would be entitled to move his
amendment. Mr O’Connor, then pounded
away for a long time without anyone heeding
him. At last, assuming a more violent tone,
he secured some attention and said—

Sir, you are leader of the Irish people, and
when I say to some of my friends that they are
acting wrongly in trying to depose you from that
leadersh_zp._ they say, * We will have no one-man
power—it is Mr Parnell against the country.”
And still every act of theirs goes to show that
while rejecting you as their chief—while reject-
ing the Irish chief they place themselves unre-
servedly under the leadership of Mr Gladstone
(cries of *‘Certainly not?”). They say ““No;”
but read Sir Wm Harecourt’s letter; he says,
*“ Treat with Mr Gladstone.”

Mr A O’Connor—He is not a member of the
party.

Mr J Redmond (offensively)—He is the master
of the party (cheers and counter cheers).

Mr Healy“Who« is to be mistress of the
party ?

The effect of this was indescribable. The
chairman half rose from his seat once or twice,
and some members of the party believed with
the intention of striking Mr Healy, and
friends moved rapidly up to Mr Healy’s chair.

Mr A O’Connor—I appeal to my friend the
chairman.

Mr Parnell -Better appeal to your own friends.
Better appeal to that cowardly little scoundrel
there (noise), that in an assembly of Irishmen
dﬁ.res t)o insult & woman (loud cheers and counter
cheers).

Mr Healy took no notice of this outbreak,
and when Mr John O’Connor had finished Mr
O0’Kelly seconded his resolution.

MR. ABRAHAM’S RESOLUTION.

Then Mr Abraham’s time at last came. He did
not detainthe meeting long. The time for argu-
ment he knew was past. He commenced by
saying—

We have debated this most important question
for now close on twelve days. I joined most
heartily with the majority of my colleagues in

his party in endeavouring to see if we could not
find a _golden bridge in which you might have
retired from the leadership of this party, having
at the same time obtained substantial benefits
for Ireland. That hope has been dissipated, and
I feel now, after the emphatic statement we have
had from Mr Gladstone as to negotiating with
the party, that there is but one duty left to us to
perform—a duty from which, I regret to say, we
have been turned aside by side issues in the
earlier part of these proceedings (hear, hear).
My decision in regard to this matter has been
made purely on the political ground. Ireland
looks to us, the men chosen to represent them, to
give a decision on the question of the leadership,
and I think we should be wanting in respeoct to
ourselves were we now to continue a discussion
which must terminate, and which would be
renewed again and again by desultory resolutions,
which come in so fruitful crop from our friends
on the other side. I think we as a party, having
expressed our opinion on the question, and I have
endeavoured to bring it to an issue by a_resolu-
tion which would have settled this question, and
having that resolution ignominiously treated by
the chairman and torn to pieces in his hand
(cheers).

Mr. Parnell—That is distinetly untrue. (*“Oh,
oh”). You had the resolution in your own poses-
sion, and you can produce it.

Mr. Abraham—TI handed it to you. ‘

Mr. Parnell—You handed it to Mr. Justin
M‘Carthy. Mr. M‘Carthy was about to put it to
the meeting when I took it out of his hand. (loud
cries of “ No, no.” and ““That is not so.””)

Mr. Abrahan concluded by moving :—

That we, the members of the Irish Parliamen-
tary Party, declare that Mr. Parnell’s tenure of
the chairmanship of this party is hereby ter-
minated.

Colonel Nolan—Is that resolufion a resolution
pertaining to that of Mr. O’Connor ?

Mr. T Healy—You have a capital chairman
for the purpose.

Mr. Parnell—If members wish to address me
to a point of order I shall be glad to hear them.

r. M. Healy—You declared Mr. Claney’s
amendment, which had no possible connection
with the resolution—you declared 1t an amend-
ment to the resolution.

Mr. T Healy—But circumstances alter cases.

Mr. Parnell—I have now had the opportunity

| of examining the original resolution proposec bz
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Mz. John O’Connor, and the resolution suggested |
by Mr. Abraham as an amendment to the original
resolution is mo amendment whatever to the
original resolution.

Mr. Healy—Bravo, bravo.

Mr. Parnell (excitedly)—Mr. Healy, I will not |
stand very much more from you.

Mr Arthur O’Connor at this point inter-
vened, saying—

We have been very moderate in this matter,
and there is danger of our moderation being mis-
construed. We are in danger of appearing to the
country as if shirking our duty. I think further
words only a waste of time and a loss of dignity,
and, therefore, 1 invite my colleagues to make an
end of the business (cheers). The time has now
come, not to talk, but to act (loud cheering). We

}

to make an end of what is rapidly becoming a dis-
graceful farce. I ask the overwhelming majority
of this party to decide now, and at once to record
their decision, if not here, then elsewhere (re-
newed cheering), and that decision is, that now
the chairmanship of Mr Parnell is determined.

Mr Parnell—Mr Arthur O’Connor knows per-
fectly well that that is not an amendment.

Mr Arthur O’Connor—Very well, if it cannot be |
put here.— ‘

Mr Healy—Wait awhile, Arthur.

Mr Leamy—If it were right to level the charge
of obstruction against us.

My Healy—Is this in order?

Mr Parnell—It is perfectly in order.

Mr Healy—I thought you ruled Mr Arthur
O Connor out of order.

Mr Parnell—He chose to make a speech, and it
will have to be answered.

MR. JUSTIN MCARTHY SUGGESTS WITHDRAWAL.

Mr Leamy then addressed himself to a de-
fence of Mr Parnell, after which came Mr
Justin M‘Carthy. His rising was greeted wi' h
a significant burst of cheering from his col- |
leagucs The end was now near. The tension
was very great,as both sides strained in silence
to cateh eve-y word. In his gravest tones he
said—

The time has quite come when we ought to
bring this debate to a close. I had hoped up to
last night that our chairman wonld still help us
out of this terrible, this national erisis. I may
say to him that I am personally disappointed that
he has not lent us more assistance out of this
terrible dilemma into which we have been
brought, but I feel that we did waste our time,
and the time of our opponents, in further contro-
versy where it has been made clear that the door
is to be barred against any definite settlement of
the controversy in this room within any reason-
able limit. I therefore feel that the longer we
debate, the more we may possibly grow in passion,
the more we may become unkindly, the more
bitter things we may say. I see mo further use
carrying on a diseussion which must be barren of
all bu# reproach, ill-temper, controversy, and in-
dignity, and T will therefore suggest that all who
think with me at this grave crisis should with-

draw with me from this room (loud cheers).

Mr Huntly M‘Carthy here interposed for a
moment to say that as a member of a constbi-
tutional party he would go with the majority,
although he hitherto had supported Mr Par-
nell.

THE SPLIT.

Then Mr M‘Carthy moved from the table
to leave the room. There was no demonstra-
tion nor cheering. His forty-four colleagues
quietly stood up, and, headed by their new
leader, they followed him out in silence. Nob
a word was uttered on either side. Blank
amazement was visible in the faces of some
of those who were left behind.  Some of the
departing members shook hands with those
whom they were parting from. The story
about a scene of disorder as the Party severed,
which was circulated by a London News
Agency, was an absolute falsehood. The
last man to leave was Mr Condon,
and as he disappeared a mocking
laugh was raised by Mr Alexander Blane, and
some jeers followed from Mr Conway and Dr
Fitzgerald. That was all.

MEETING IN THE CONFERENCE ROOM.
The members who left the room with
Mr M‘Carthy proceeded down stairs to
the Conference Room. They instantly
proceeded to business. As Whip of the

| party, Mr John Deasy was moved to the

chair. Then the following resolution was pro-
posed by Mr Arthur O’Connor, seconded by
Mr James F X O’Brien, and carried with accla-
mation—

That, acting under an imperative sense of duty
to our country, we, the undersigned, being an
absolute majority of the whole number of the
Trish Parliamentary Party, declare that Mr Par-
nell’s term of chairmanship of this party is hereby
terminated.

MR M'CARTHY'S ELECTION.

Mr Healy then moved and Mr Sexton se-
conded the election of Mr Justin M‘Carthy as
« Sessional Chairman”of the party. This was
unanimously ecarried. Mr M‘Carthy then
took the chair amidst loud cheering, every
man in the room standing and offering bhim
their heartiest congratulations. It was
next resolved, on the proposition of Mr
Chance, seconded by Mr Bernard Molloy—

That a committee is hereby constituted to
exercise, jointly with the chairman, the powers

'L
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and discharge the functions hitherto attached to

the chairmanship of the party, and that this com-
mittee do consist of eight members of the party
to be chosen by ballot on Monday next at
two p m.

DECLARATION OF INDEPENDENCE.

On the proposition of Mr Abraham, seconded
by Mr D Sheehy, the following declaration
was agreed to :—

‘We hereby solemnly renew our adhesion to the
principle in devotion to which we have mnever
wavered—viz, that the Irish Parliamentary Party
is and always must remain independent of all
other parties ; and we further declare that we
will never entertain any proposal for the settle-
ment of the Home Rule question except such as
satisfies the aspirations of the Irish people.

This was signed—

JusTiN M‘CARTHY, Derry City, Chair-
man.

Wu ABRAHAM, West Limerick.

J BARRY, South Wexford.

P A CuANCE, South Kilkenny.

A CoMMINS, South Roscommon.

T J ConDON, Tipperary.

J R Cox, East Clare.

DaNIEL CRILLY, North Mayo.

J Dmasy, South Mayo. .

T A DicksoN, Stephen’s green, Dublin.

T H GrATTAN EsMONDE, South County
Dublin.

JouN FINUCANE, East Limerick.

J C FLYNN, North Cork.

P J FoLeYy, Connemara.

J B Fox; King’s County.

MAaAvuriceE HEaLY, Cork City.

‘T M HeaLy, North Longford.

J JoRDAN, West Clare.

M J KenNyY, Mid Tyrone.

Denis KiuBripe, South Kerry.

E F Knox, West Cavan.

W J Lang, East Cork.

M M‘CARTAN, South Down.

JusTIN H M‘CARTHY, Newry.

P M‘DonArLD, North Sligo.

J G Swrrr M'NE1Ly, South Donegal.

Brrnarp C Mowurnoy, Birr Division, |

King’s Co.

JoEN MorroaH, South-East Cork.

‘W M Murepa?Y, St Patrick’s Division,
Dublin.

P J O’BrieN, North Tipperary.

J F X O’BrieN, East Mayo.

A O’CoNnNOR, East Donegal.

F A O’KrrrFrE, Limerick City.

J PINKERTON, Galway City.

P J Pownr, East Waterford.

W J ReY~NoLDs, Bast Tyrone.

JoBuN RocuE, East Galway.

T SexToN, West Belfast.

J D SEEREAN, East Kerry.

D SerErY, South Galway.

J 8taok, North Kerry.

DoNAL SULLIVAN, South Westmeath.

O K Tanner, Mid Cork.

J TurTe, North Westmeath.

A Wree, West Waterford.

As Mr Webb finished his signature another
burst of cheering broke out. HEach man felt
he had signed his Declaration of National

Independence. The meeting, which scarcely
lasted a quarter of an hear, at 6 p m, broke up
with the understanding that they were to
meet next day (Sumday) at 2 p.m. at Mr
Arthur O’Connor’s chambers in the Temple.

“HOME RULE IS SAVED.”

Naturally enough the deposition of Mr Par-
nell caused immense excitement in political
circles in London. The Tories were greatly
distressed over Mr Parnell’s defeat. On tho
other hand, Mr Gladstone, on hearing the
result, exclaimed, “TmANK Gop! Home
RuLE 18 savep.”

After the majority left Room 15, Mr Par-
nell went through the farce of putting Mr
J O’Connor’s resolution, and declared it car-
ried unanimously. He declared that, in spite
of every effort, he “still held the chair.”

MEETING IN MR A O'CONNOR’S OHAMBERS.

Punctually next day (Sunday) every one of
the forty-five members metin Mr Arthur O’Con-
nor’s chambers. The meeting was a brisk and a
businesslike one. Mr Justin M‘Carthy wasin
the chair. Mr Condon atonce moved, seconded
by Mr Sheehy, and unanimously carried, that
a manifesto from the Irish Party embodying
their views on the present crisis be issued.

THE PARIS FUNDS.
Another resolution was promptly carried,

that Messrs Arthur O’Connor and James F X
O’Brien at once proceed to Paris with a letter
from Mr Justin M‘Carthy, addressed to
Messrs Munroe, bankers there, requesting

| them to retain the funds and securities
| in their possession standing in the names

of Mr Charles Stewart Parnell, Mr Justin
M‘Carthy, and Mr J G Biggar, pending further
proceedings, and that Messrs O’Connor and
O’Brien be authorised to institute such legal
proceedings as they might consider necessary.
Mr Arthur O’Connor and Mr O’Brien left at
eight o’clock that evening for Paris, and on the
bank opening its doors the next morning
the two gentlemen served a cautionary notice
on the bank. They were not a moment too
soon, for a letter reached Messrs Munroe
that morning from Mr Parnell, requesting a
remittance.
THE WRIT FOR KILEENNY.

Another resolution carried at Sunday’s meet-



THE STORY OF ROOM 15,

45

ing authorised the chairman to communi-
cate with Sir John Pope Hennessy, who had
ten days previously been selected as the can-

. didate for North Kilkenny, asking if he was

Cary ,"d-': EnRe.- 3

e

prepared to sit, act, and vote with the party,
and, further, that the writ for North Kilkenny
should be moved next day (Monday, Dec 8th,
1890). It was also determined to call a formal
meeting of the entire Nationalist members
next day in Room 15 to ratify the decisions
already come to, and to summon the
Parnellites thereto by postal notice.

STARTING THE “ NATIONAL PRESs ”
Mr Thomas Sexton then moved :—

That Messrs Justin M‘Carthy, Thomas Dick-
son, W Murphy, John Barry, John Morrogh, T M
Healy, and Thomas Sexton, be constituted a com-
mittee, with power to draw up a prospectus for
the formation of a limited liability company to
fstizblfish and conduct a daily national journal in

reiand.

There was not a man in the room who did
not seem eager to have the pleasure of second-
ing this resolution, which in due time took
practical shape in ‘the birth of the National
Press. A score of voices cried, “I beg to
second that.” Subsequently a subscription list
was opened to meet pressing urgent calls
and the members of the party present
within ten minutes subscribed £1,020.
The meeting then  broke wup. An
army of Pressmen were waiting outside the
Temple to learn what business was transacted
at the meeting.

THE “ FREEMAN ” CORRESPONDENT LAUGHS.
Amongst them was the London corres-
pondent of the “Freeman.” On this
gentleman being informed that a resolu-
tion was passed by the party, authorising
a committee to be formed for the purpose
of establishing a daily paper in Ireland,
he shrieked with laughter. Calling some
acquaintances to him, he said: “They have
passed a resolution to start a morning paper
in Dublin.” The joke appeared so huge
that once more he broke ou: into roars of

laughter.
ROOM 15 AGAIN.

The Party met again in Room 15 on
Monday, the 8th of December, at 2 p m,
with Mr Justin M‘Carthy in the chair. Mr

Parnell had heard that his supporters had | Irish members,

)

i

been summoned to this meeting, and he was
early on guard at the House, stopping them as
they arrived, and dissnaded them from attend-
ing. Every member who left the committee
room with Mr Justin M‘Carthy on Saturday
was present. Mr Sexton moved—

That this meeting of the Irish Parliamentary
Party, to which every member was invited, do
hereby solemnly ratify the resolutions passed at
its meeting on Saturday evening last at the Con-
ference Room in the House of Commons.

This was unanimously passed. It was then
agreed that the chairman should, if he
deemed it expedient, prepare an address to the
Irish people with regard to recent events.
ELECTION OF A STANDING COMMITTER.
On the selection of a Standing Committee of
eight members of the party to assist the
chairman by their counsel and advice, the
following members were elected by ballot—

Mr WiLnLiam ABrasAM. Mr T P O’ConNNoOE.
,» JOEN DILLON, +» ARTHURO’CONNOR
«w TM HeALY. sy THOMAS SEXTON.
;s WILLIAM O’BRIEN. s, DAVID SHEEHY.

CABLEGRAM FROM THE AMERICAN DELEGATES,

Whilst the meeting was proceeding Mr,
M Carthy received the following cablegram
from the delegates in America—

New York.
We are of course in cordial sympathy with your
resolutions. As to methods employed in imme-
diate future, owing to impossibility in having
adequate consultation by cable, we desire, as
hitherto, to leave responsibility to you, we co-
operating by methods we believe best, to secure

| Parnell’s withdrawal, and the re-union of the

party.
DirLoen.
O’BRIEN.
O’CoONNOR.
SULLIVAN.
GILL.

OCCUPYING THE HOUSE.

By this time the House was sitting, and
the meeting broke up. Headed by Mr Justin
M‘Carthy, and followed by Mr Sexton and
Mr Healy, the party entered the House
and proceeded to take wup their old
geats. As they streamed into the chamber
business was at once suspended. All eyes
were directed to their benches, and even
the Speaker was carried away by curiosity.
There was some cheering, and members
from the library and smoking . rooms
rushed in pell-mell, hearing that the
under Mr M‘Carthy’s
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;‘leadership. were unaking a “ demonstration.”
“The chamber was soon filled, the only Par-
nellites present being Colonel Nolan and Mr
Richard Power.
THE WRIT FOR KILKENNY MOVED.

Immediately, as Whip of the Party, Mr
Deagy rose and moved that a mnew
writ be issued for the election of a member
for North Kilkenny in the room of the late Mr
Marum, deceased. His colleagues cheered
loudly. It was the first official act of the
party under Mr M‘Carthy, and was in the

THE

pature of an appeal to the country. The
House understood it. The reporters in the
Press Gallery rose in their seats and craned
over with curiosity.
Colonel Nolan rushed out in search of

| Mr Parnell, but he had not yet come

up from Brighton. Next day the House
adjourned for the Christmas recess, and Mr
Parnell set off for his disastrous campaign of
dissension in Ireland. whica was to terminate
only with his own tragic end at Walsingham-
terrace, Brighton, on Tuesday, Oct. 6, 1891.%

END.

| %71t will be of interest to give an extract
'from an adwmnirable speech of Mr Sexton, de-
livered a year after the foregoing events
(Newry, 3rd December, 1891), in reply to the
criticisms passed on the actiong of the Irish
Party in Room 15:—

Mr Davitt has said that the re-election of Mr
Parnell was the act of schoolboys—that we were
blind or stupid, and that if we had not re-elected
“r Parnell there would have been mo trouble.
e had no information upon that opening day,
2nd we had no hint that any competent witness
considered the success of Home Rule to be in-
volved under the leadership of Mr Parnell. We
believed on that opening day that Home Rule
was not deeply concerned. We believed that

" the most important question at issue was the
ouestion of the unity of the party, and that the
best way to consider the unity of the party was
to keep Mr Parnell in the chair. If a motion had
been made on that day to reject Mr Parnell, the
1-ish members, thepolitical agents with a limited
commission to advance the Home Rule cause
and to do nothing to retard it, would, in my
judgment, upon that opening day have elected
Mr Parnell by a majority vote, if a motion to re-
ject him had beenmade. If adivisionhad once been
taken upon that question, men having once taken

isides would keep the sides they had taken.
Whatever turned out afterwards, I believe Mr
Parnell would have been backed by the majority ;
they would have felt it-impossible to recede from
the position they had taken up, if there had been
. debate and a division, and Mr Parnell, backed
by his majority, would have cited the pledge of
the party, called upon the minority to yield ; and
if they had resigned their seats, does anyone
doubt that Mr Parnell would have come to Ire-
land with his majority athisback,with the pledge
of the party in his hands, and would have de-
nounced the minority as men whose malice or
whose ambition was so eager to get rid of him
that they did not even wait to hear that the
ieaders of the Liberal Party were of opinion that
his leadership was dangerous to Home Rule?
*hat would be the position if the rejection of Mr

Parnell had been moved before politi-
cal exigencies compelled it. We should
have had dissension in that case as well as in the
case before us. Mr Parnell would have retained
his hold upon the leadership at the time, and
Home Rule would be lost. 1Is it not better that
we should have dissension and win Home Rule
than have dissension and lose Home Rule
as well ? Tt is said, upon the other hand, that we
elected Mr Parnell upon one day and deposed
him on the next. But that was not what had
happened. We elected Mr Parnell on one day
and we asked him on the next day to eonsider his
position, and it needed to be considered. Eleven
days elapsed between the election and the de-
position. What happened in these eleven days?
We learned that Mr Parnell had withheld from
us what he ought to have made known—a ma-
terial factas to the bearing of his leadership
upon the fortunes of Home Rule. We heard his
speech after having been elected. I never re-
ferred to it before, but mnow it has been
given to the public, and undoubtedly it was a
speech which filled every man who heard it
with intense surprise—a speech which a great
many felt it a great humiliation to be obliged
to hear. We saw the unaffected delight of the
Tories when Mr Parnell was elected. Lord
Salisbury that very night, in a speech in fha
House of Lords, gave vent te a coarse and bitter
jest against Mr Parnell, which was intended
to give the cue to the campaign of ridienle and
denunciation with which the Tories would have
made, in the Press and on the platforms,
England ring against Parnell if he had been
the Irish leader. In those eleven days we had
the manifesto in which Mr Parnell substantially
took up the position of supporter of the Tory
Party. We had the judgment of the delegates in
America upon the question, and we had the
declaration of the Irish Bishops. And of the
declaration of the Irish Bishops I say that, to
whoever may have been in doubt in a difficult
situation, the declaration of the Irish Bishops
made it eclear that Mr Parnell’'s leadership
cdulc} not again command & united Irish
people.

War was declared. -
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